
a AGENDA. 
. Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

Thursday, September 16, 2021 at 4:00pm 
DISTRICT McGuire Community Room 
LIBRARY 

TRAVERSE AREA 

610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, Ml 49686 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Public Comment* 

5. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Meeting of August 19, 2021 

6. Reports and Communications 
a. Director Report I Departmenta l Reports 
b. Financial Report - Expenses I Revenues 
c. Member Library Reports - FLPL I !f!: I PCL 
d. Committee Reports 

a. Finance & Facilities and Services Committee - September 14, 2021 
b. Policy and Personnel Committee - September 7, 2021 

e. Other Reports and Communications 
1. Friends' Report - Donna Hornberger, President Friends of TADL 

7. Presentation - Fifth Third Representatives 

8. New Business 
a. Policy Revision - 5.1 Collection Materials Selection Policy 
b. Agreement Between TADL and Teamsters State, County and Municipal Workers 

Loca l 214, effective January 1, 2022 t hru December 31, 2024 
c. Accounting Software 

9. Public Comment* 
10. Trustee Comment 
11. Adjournment 

* If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are 
recognized; (2) approach the podium and use the microphone; (3) state your name and the county and 
township or city in which you reside; and (4) limit your comments to 5 minutes. Please sign in at the podium. 

The Traverse Area District Library will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting 
upon 3 days notice to the Library. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids should contact the Library Administration, 
610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, Ml 49686; (231) 932-8500 (voice/fax); llbadmln@tadl.org (e-mail). 

mailto:llbadmln@tadl.org


. 
.1ft 
~ 

TRAVERSE AREA 

DISTRICT 
LIBRARY 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
MINUTES (approved) 

Thursday, August 19, 2021 at 4:00pm 
McGuire Community Room 

610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, Ml 49686 

1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by President Jones at 4:00pm. Present were: Jones (President); 
Odgers (Vice President); Pakieser (Secretary); Vickery and Wescott (Trustees). Sullivan (Treasurer) 
and Budzinski (Trustee) were absent. Also present were: Zeits (Counsel); Howard (Director); 
Radjenovich (Business Manager); Denby, Bennett, McKenna, Brady, and Carpenter (Staff). 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
All members in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
Howard requested two amendments to the agenda: 1) Addition of New Business item m, 2021 
Officer and Employee Delegate Certification Form; 2) removal of New Business item d, approval to 
amend fixed asset amount from $500 to $5000 since this may need to be written into policy rather 
than an isolated approval. It was MOVED by Odgers, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to approve the agenda 
along with the aforementioned amendments as presented. Motion CARRIED. 

4. Public Comment 
President Jones opened the floor for public comment. The following people addressed the board : 
Josh Denby, Long Lake Township, introduced himself as the new Circulation Coordinator at TADL, 
noting that he was from Houston Texas, had spent 12 years at the University of Houston campus 
library, and was excited to be part of the Traverse Area District Library. 

President Jones welcomed Denby to the area and to the library staff. 

5. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Meeting ofJune 17, 2021 

It was MOVED by Odgers, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to approve the regular meeting minutes of 
June 17, 2021 as presented. Motion CARRIED. 

6. Reports and Communications 
• Director Report/ Departmental Reports 

Howard confirmed her written report and added the following: 

• Howard was happy to report a busy summer and back to historically normal circulation 
and visitor counts. 

• Following Labor Day, the library will reopen on Sundays. There has been no demand yet 
for later hours during the weekdays. 

• Plans for a teen advisor on the board have been delayed due to the drop in teen visits to 
the library over the past months. The new book boxes and other programs will hopefully 
draw them back in and getting involved again. 

(approved) 
Page 1 of 5 



Odgers noted that she really appreciates all the departmental reports and thanked everyone for 
their efforts. She also liked the photos in the electronic newsletter showing multi-generational 
programming at the library. 

Vickery underscored the depth and details of the reports and gave testimonial to the spectacular 
summer programs that his grandchildren and he attended. 

• Financial Reports 
Radjenovich confirmed her written report and highlighted the following: 

• Revenues are at 99.5% of the budgeted amounts. This is great considering penal fines 
are coming in under budget. Despite going fine free, revenues will hit budget. 
Radjenovich noted that thankfully a lot of grants and donations were received this year. 

• Expenses-Workman's Comp came in under budget. Materials budgeting took a hit with 
the introduction of the book leasing program but will turn around and show a return on 
investment in the future. 

• Member Library Reports 
• Kendall Spratt, Interim Director of Fife Lake Public Library (FLPL), introduced herself as 

FLPL's Interim Director since July of 2020 and would possibly become Director in 
September. FLPL is concentrating efforts on projects with the schools, updating the 
school collections and being a resource for teachers and students. 

• Vicki Shurly, Director of Peninsula Community Library (PCL), reported an incredibly busy 
summer with higher circulation stats than when the library was located in the Old 
Mission Peninsula school. The typical average number of participants finishing the 
Summer Reading Club program is 35-40, but this year there were 85 finishers. Shurly 
expressed great appreciation for everything TADL does for PCL. While PCL is a small 
Class 2 library, through their relationship with TADL they are able to offer big city things 
to a small-town group such as digital services, 24/7 Wi-Fi, and many things that are not 
normal offerings in a small library. She especially appreciates the great tech team who 
are supportive, kind, and understanding and also Director Howard who has been a great 
resource and a friend. 

Odgers highlighted the remembrance tree, donated by a local farmer, that will be planted at PCL 
to honor Old Mission Peninsula residents whose lives were lost to COVID-19. The Friends of PCL 
will be purchasing a bench to be placed near the tree. Odgers wished that more would follow 
suit in the same way. President Jones concurred. 

A written report from Jennifer Tho met, Director of lnterlochen Public Library {IPL) was included 
in the board packet. 

• Committee Reports 
• Finance and Facilities and Services Committee - Odgers reported that the committee had 

met and negotiations with IPL and PCL have taken place. The committee hopes to meet with 
FLPL in the next month. She also noted that the new bike repair station is not only used by 
cyclists but also by those with mobility assistance like wheelchairs or strollers. 

• Policy and Personnel Committee - Pakieser reported that the committee had met and had 
reviewed and recommended the policy revisions later on the agenda. Most had no 
significant changes. These were the first group of policies to be reviewed in the committee's 
plan to review and/or revise all policies in the library's Policy Manual. 

• Other Reports and Communications 

(approved) 
Page 2 of 5 



• Friends' Report - Donna Hornberger, TADL Friends Board President 
Hornberger noted the Friends board held a hybrid meeting in August. They will be looking 
for another board member soon. The library history book in the making now has a title; 
Beyond Books. Jazz CD sales are winding down. A book and media sale is still planned for 
September. 

7. Old Business 
a. Approval of Contract for Lighting Project 

Howard noted that Zeits (Counsel) was helpful in forming RFP bid request. There were six 
interested companies and three submitted bids. The bid amounts are good for a limited 30 days 
because of the supply chain shortage. Both Windemuller and Keen are good companies with 
similar bids and TADL has successfully worked with both companies before. Facilities Manager 
Bennett and the Facilities Committee both recommend awarding the bid to the lowest bidder of 
the two mentioned. It was MOVED by Vickery, SUPPORTED by Odgers to accept and approve the 
bid from Windemuller, in the amount of $182,410 for the LED Retrofit Lighting Project. A roll call 
vote was taken with the following results: 

Jones - aye Odgers - aye Vickery - aye Wescott - aye 
Pakieser- aye Sullivan - absent Budzinski - absent 

Motion CARRIED. 

8. New Business 
a. Approval of L-4029 Tax Rate Request 

Howard noted this standard L-4029 form is filled out each year. There is a Headlee rollback 
included in the request. This tax rate will bring in almost an extra $1S0K to the budget. It was 
MOVED by Wescott, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to accept and approve the 2021 Tax Rate Request 
of .9202mils as presented. A roll call vote was taken with the following results: 

Jones - aye Odgers - aye Vickery- aye Wescott - aye 
Pakieser - aye Sullivan - absent Budzinski - absent 

Motion CARRIED. 

b. Resolution to Pay MERS $200,000from Internal Service Fund and Revision of the Budget 
Howard noted that following the 2020 audit in June and per budget amendment guidelines, she 
was requesting approval to remit $200,000 to MERS toward the unfunded pension liability. It 
was MOVED by Wescott, SUPPORTED by Vickery, to correct the spelling of his name on the 
resolution and to approve the transfer of $200K from the Internal Services Fund to the General 
Fund for disbursement, and the budget for the Unfunded Liability Account shall be increased by 
that same amount to proceed with the payment. A roll call vote was taken with the following 
results: 

Jones-aye Odgers-aye Vickery - aye Wescott - aye 
Pakieser - aye Sullivan - absent Budzinski - absent 

Motion CARRIED. 

c. Approval ofSpending for Improvement to the Youth Story Room 
To make improvements to the Youth Story Room in the Main Library Howard made a request to 
use $1572 from the Public Improvement Fund for painting and $7630 from the Slear Fund 
interest accrued for flooring. Bennett is getting more quotes on flooring. It was MOVED by 
Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Wescott, to approve the spending request for improvements to the 
Youth Story Room in the amounts not to exceed those presented. A roll call vote was taken with 
the following results: 

Jones-aye Odgers-aye Vickery - aye Wescott - aye 
Pakieser - aye Sullivan - absent Budzinski - absent 

(approved) 
Page 3 of 5 



Motion CARRIED. 

d. Approval to Amend the Fixed Asset Amountfrom $500 to $5000 
This item was removed from the agenda. 

e. Policy Revision - 3. 7 Wi-Fi Hotspot and Laptop Lending Policy 
President Jones introduced the first of multiple policies revisions that are on the agenda for 
approval, which are mostly tidying up the policies rather than significant changes. Discussion 
and clarification was made regarding the hold time for the hotspots and lending laptops that 
they would be the same as for regular materials so that all items operate under the same hold 
policy. It was MOVED by Vickery, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to approve the revisions to 3.7 Wi-Fi 
Hotspot and Laptop Lending Policy as presented. Motion CARRIED 

f. Policy Revision - 5.2 Disposal of Withdrawn Materials 
Howard acknowledged credit to Carpenter for assisting in cleaning up consistency details of the 
policies presented for review. She also noted that policy 5.2 had not been reviewed in 5 years. It 
was MOVED by Vickery, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to approve the revisions to 5.2 Disposal of 
Withdrawn Materials as presented. Motion CARRIED. 

g. Policy Revision - 5.3 Access to Collection Materials Based on Age 
Howard noted that this policy had not been reviewed since 2003, and that the word media had 
been changed to the broader term, materials, which also includes media. It was MOVED by 
Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Odgers, to approve the revision to 5.3 Access to Collection Materials 
Based on Age Policy. Motion CARRIED. 

h. Policy Revision - 5.4 American Library Association's The Freedom to Read 
President Jones was pleased to bring The Freedom to Read Policy as updated by the American 
Library Association to the board for approval as it is important that the board stand behind and 
support the freedom to read. Vickery inquired whether this document should be policy or a 
resolution, and after discussion, it was unanimously agreed that being policy would be more 
appropriate since policies are readily available to the public and it would allow the Director and 
staff to use it as back-up if materials were challenged. It was MOVED by Wescott and Odgers, 
SUPPORTED by Vickery, to support and approve the revised 5.4 Freedom to Read Policy as 
presented. Motion CARRIED. 

i. Policy Revision - 5.5 American library Associations' Freedom to View Statement 
It was MOVED by Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Odgers, to support the American Library 
Association's updated Freedom to View statement as presented and approve 5.5 Freedom to 
View Policy. Motion CARRIED. 

j . Policy Revision -5.6 American Library Associations' Library Bill of Rights 
It was noted by Vickery that he was wholly in favor of including the explicit commitment to all 
people's access as updated in the American Library Association's update of the Library Bill of 
Rights. It was MOVED by President Jones, SUPPORTED by Odgers and Wescott, to support and 
approve the revision to 5.6 Library Bill of Rights Policy. Motion CARRIED. 

k. Policy Revision - 7.5 Nepotism 
President Jones noted that the current policy did not allow for hiring of such persons as an 
employee's spouse, for example, and that the major change to the nepotism policy brought 
before the board allows the Director to hire those once forbidden employee relations as long as 
the relations are made known and those employees are not in a direct reporting relationship. 

(approved) 
Page 4 of 5 



Howard also added that the current policy was restrictive and did not allow situations such as an 
employee's renters. Howard reviewed the revisions with TADL's labor attorney who approved of 
the changes. It was MOVED by Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Vickery, to approve the revisions to 7.5 
Nepotism Policy as presented. Motion CARRIED. 

1. CRT Critical Race Theory (Item Request by Trustee Odgers) 
Odgers commented on how well the new digital resource, Social Justice, ties into the strategic 
plan. Discussion ensued on ways the library is planning for and currently providing programming 
and educational opportunities to support an inclusive community. 

m. 2021 Officer and Employee Delegate Certification Form 
It was MOVED by President Jones, SUPPORTED by Vickery, to approve the nomination and 
selection of MERS conference Officer Delegate attendee Michele Howard and alternate Deb 
Radjenovich, and the MERS conference Employee Delegate attendee Kristi Jackowski and 
alternate Rosie May as indicated on the 2021 Officer and Employee Delegate Certification Form. 
Motion CARRIED. 

9. Public Comment 
President Jones opened the floor for public comment. The following people addressed the board: 
Heather Brady, TADL Marketing and Communications Manager, thanked the board for approving 
and wholeheartedly approving the policies because it helps TADL be everything a library should be 
and paves the way for the upcoming Big Read program as well as future collaborations and 
partnerships. 

10. Trustee Comment 
Vickery expressed a deep appreciation and support for the work and thoughtfulness gone in to all 
the things that took place on the agenda but in particular the policies that articulate the libraries 
vision of itself as a conduit and sacred space in our civil life at a time when things seems fractured 
and frayed. 

Odgers extended well wishes and thoughts to the two board members undergoing health issue 
treatments. She gave kudos to Brady on her work in the entrance garden and suggested having 
more videos of things going on at the library. Howard noted that Brady plans on attaching a Go Pro 
to a book and making a video of the book going through the check-in sorter very soon. 

Denby added that since he has spent his library career in an academic setting he had never seen 
what went on behind the scenes in a public library setting and seeing the check-in sorter in action at 
TADL was really amazing to watch and he plans to share Brady's video with all his friends who 'won't 
believe it!". 

11. Adjournment 
With a motion to adjourn by Wescott, President Jones adjourned at 5:25pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~.~ 
V. Carpenter, Recording Secretary 

(approved) 
Page 5 of 5 



Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

Library Director Report 
TRAVERSE AREA Meeting Date: September 16, 2021 
DISTRICT 
LIB RARY 

Library Activity 
For a graphical presentation of the statistical information included below, please visit the link: 
online TADL dashboard. 

Circulation Transactions 
Year-to-date activitv 

As of month 
end 

Print/audio/video 
Circulation 

Electronic 
books/audio/video 

Total 
Circulation/Electronic 

Usaae 
August2020 370,506 196,729 567,235 
Auqust 2021 517,654 189,503 707,153 

Lending 
Physical item circulation has increased 38% over last year. Patrons are truly enjoying getting 
books in person. 

E-Book. magazine, downloadable audiobook and database utilization 
In August, we saw electronic use continue to drop compared to 2020. August is traditionally a 
low month for electronic usage as people are outside enjoying the weather. 

Visitors -Woodmere, East Bay and Kingsley Facilities 
We are still a very busy place! The busiest day being Monday, August 2nd with 1,664 
patrons. This was also our Summer Reading Club Finale day so I'm sure that accounts for 
the visitors. In August 2021, we had 34,065 visitors, averaging 799 visitors per day. This is a 
64% increase from August 2020. In August 2021, we had 252 new patrons across the 
district: 7 Visitor, 2 Limited, and 242 Patrons. 

Public Computing 
Computer Use continues to be popular District wide with increases of 41 .6% with large 
increases in usage in Peninsula and Main Library teen area. This equates to 1,883 computer 
sessions in August 2021 versus, in August 2020 there were 1,584 sessions. 

Additions to the Collection 
In August 2021, 2,484 items were added to the collection compared to August 2020 which 
added 2,694. This is expected as the budget is about the same as 2020 and we encourage 
staff to spend the money throughout the year. 

Finances 
You will notice that representatives from Fifth Third will be at the meeting to update the 
Board about our investments which have slow returns right now due to many market factors. 
They will be available for questions. 

1 



Also on this agenda is an request for approval to purchase of new Accounting software. 

Facilities 
The order has been placed for the lighting and we'll know an estimated installation timetable 
soon. 

Covid Update 
I continue to watch numbers of community spread of Covid. Munson recently returned to 
Code Orange and is taking increased precautions. Like most libraries in our region, TADL is 
only offering outdoor or virtual programming. It is disappointing after such wonderful 
programming and participation this summer. We'll reassess once school settles for October 
programming. As of September 12, the main library is again open on Sundays, Kingsley 
Branch Library has returned to normal hours, and East Bay has expanded hours. 

We continue to offer vaccination clinics in conjunction with Northwest Michigan Health 
Services. 

Grant Updates 
I continue to wait for notice about the large ARPA Grant I applied for. The money is being 
held until the Legislators release the funds. The timing of that is uncertain. 

We did recently apply for and receive a Work Force Development Book Collection from the 
Library of Michigan made possible in part by the Institute of Museum and Library Services. 
Each location has a collection and patrons are really finding them useful. 

Personnel 
I am very happy to announce the Teamsters Union unanimously ratified the new contract on 
Sunday, September 12th . Overall, it was an amical process and I want to sincerely thank 
Betsy Myers, Brian Carey, Tony Pletscher (Teamsters Business Representative}, Deb 
Radjenovich, and Janis Adams for all their hard work to bring agreement to the Board for 
approval. 

Attorney Janis Adams will be preparing a memo explaining the major 
components of the agreement that you will receive this week before 
the meeting. 

T ADL Operations 
Please see the extensive departmental reports for a more in-depth 
look at what is happening at the Main Library and East Bay and 
Kingsley branches. We have been busy this summer! 

The picture left was taken at the Farmer's Market where the book 
bike visits. 

Happy Fall! 
Michele P. Howard 
Director 

2 



, ,, 

:_ ..: 
TRAVERSE AREA 

Administrative Reports DISTRICT 
for the month of August

LIBRARY September 16, 2021 Board Meeting) 

Adult Services 
• Adult Services would like to welcome two not-so-new pages to our department. Megan 

Esckelson was a page previously in Adult Services from 2013-2016 and Charlie Wunsch 
is a regular user of the library. We are excited to have them as part of our team! 

• In preparation of the new pages' start dates, Melissa McKenna and Kim Wiggins, AS 
Librarian, with input from current page staff, updated the page training process and 
instruction manual. We're hoping that this streamlines and simplifies the process, making 
the training process proceed more quickly and effectively. 

• Adult Summer Reading totals are in! We had 438 adults register for the program at 
Woodmere. 190 participants "finished" the program by reading at least 600 minutes over 
the course of the summer. And over 500,000 minutes were read by Woodmere adults 
this summer! For probably the first time ever, at the Summer Reading Finale Party, Adult 
Summer Reading had a table specifically for the adults. There were giveaways and a 
raffle for prizes that evening, in addition to the ones for completing the Adult Summer 
Reading program. Feedback from the adults in attendance at the event was positive. 
They were excited to have this one thing for themselves, instead of absolutely everything 
being for the kids. We were also able to share the existence of a summer reading 
program for adults with several others who were unaware. We spoke with over 40 adults 
that evening. 

• The library teamed up with Norte to be a partner for one of their Slow Rolls this month. 
When we were rained out on the August 11th date, we rescheduled for August 25th. 
Andy Schuck from the Youth Services Dept took the Book Bike over to F&M park prior to 
the beginning of the ride with craft supplies so that riders could decorate their bikes. And 
then Michele Howard and Melissa McKenna staffed the Book Bike out in front of the 
library for anyone who happened to roll on by! 

• In August, the Adult Services Dept. held 2 online book groups, Queer Tales and Books & 
Brewskis, with a total live attendance of 8. Also, the Book Bike made 2 visits to the 
farmers market where it served 170 patrons. The book bike also participated in the Norte 
Slow Roll on 8/25. 

• August Adult Services Statistics: 
o Questions Answered In-Person - 1327 
o Questions answered via Phone - 927 
o Questions Answered via Email/Chat - 256 
o Craft Kits Distributed - 68 (2 different crafts-braided dog toy & fabric book weight) 

Respectfully submitted, 
Melissa A. McKenna 
Adult Services Coordinator 

Youth Services 

Youth Services is happy to welcome Polly O'Shea, our new Early Literacy Librarian, to the 
department. Polly interviewed for and was awarded the job back in early June, but could not 
start full-time due to other job vacancies at TADL. We are excited to have our first Early Literacy 



TRAVERSE AREA 
Administrative Reports DISTRICT for the month of August

LIBRARY September 16, 2021 Board Meeting) 

Librarian, helping to direct and advise on Early Literacy programs and services like Storytimes, 
1000 Books Before Kindergarten, Early Literacy Texting, and StoryTime Kits, as well as be a 
sounding board for community partners and outreach to daycares and preschools. Polly comes 
with 1O+ years of experience in these areas and has already hit the ground running. Welcome, 
Polly! 

Summer Reading Club (SRC) wrapped up with two wonderfully attended Finale Parties and two 
bonus weeks in August for families who didn't finish during June and July. SRC was super 
successful this year (beyond our wildest dreams) with 3,467 registrations across the district, 
1,166 finishers, and 2.29 million minutes read. Youth Services also made and handed out over 
2,500 crafts this summer. During SRC, we hosted 25 early literacy programs for 387 patrons 
and 39 family programs for 1,702 patrons. 

Staff alternated taking time off after such a busy SRC and Youth Services hosted limited 
programming during August, mostly Storytimes and community collaborations with our friends at 
the Grand Traverse Area Children's Garden, Norte and the STEAM/Maker Alliance (Newton's 
Road). In total, we hosted 6 programs for 730 patrons during August. 

The department floor also slowed down during August as reflected by the following decrease in 
patron questions: 1,230 walkin, 108 phone, and 1 O digital for 1,348 total (all down between 35 -
50% from July). 

Youth Services staff spent much of the month preparing for the fall programming season, with 
several outdoor options for family during this time of Covid. 

Andy Schuck 
Youth Services Coordinator 

Sight & Sound 
August was a whirlwind of summertime activities. First and foremost we were delighted to be 
involved in the Summer Reading Finale party. Shannon and I designed a simple game for kids 
to enjoy. Pin the Tails on the Lemur, Ian was our host and kids loved it! They also enjoyed the 
gummy "tails" worms. It was a blast! 

We are working on our plans for meeting room use under the ever changing reality of Covid-19. 
We will continue to host limited events in the McGuire Room like TADL Board Meetings, TADL 
Friends book sale and blood drives. 

On August 18th, Michele and I worked together to host an organizational meeting on the Library 
of Things. The objective was to Improve the coordination on collection development and to 
improve the collections searchability and overall visibility for patrons and staff alike. This is an 
ongoing process and incremental steps are being taken. Improvements are on the way. 

Worthy of note: 
• We are pleased to welcome our newest S&S Page Kaz Balderach. Kaz started on 8/30. 



TRAVERSE AREA 
Administrative Reports DISTRICT for the month of August 

LIBRARY September 16, 2021 Board Meeting) 

• Wifi Hotspot & Lending Laptop policy changes are updated for patrons use. 
• Worked with TADL Programmers for fall and winter events. Many of these are now 

switched out to outside or virtual. 
• Keith processed huge donations and continues to maintain the ELM machine that 

conditions all our DVDs and CDs. 
• Shannon and Ian reconciled the foregin film list for patron browsing ease. 
• Personally I took some time off in August to spend with my daughter before her return to 

school. It was a needed and wonderful time. 

TADL Meeting Room Stats August 2021 
Total: 89 
TADL meetings: 23 
Personal/Outside Group Meetings: 66 
Paid Meetings: 0 
Unpaid Meetings: 89 
Walk-ins: 22 
Advance Reservation: 67 

Number of Meetings by Rm August 2021 
McGuire Room: 12 
Thirlby Room: 40 
Study Room D: 37 

On Aaron's Desk: 2022 S&S Budget, Performance Evaluations, Developing and supporting new 
programming. 

Thanks for reading. 
Aaron 

Circulation 
• The circulation department welcomes a new page; Briar Raye is the newest member of 

our staff! Briar is a regular visitor to the library and is working with our cool new sorting 
machine. 

• Curbside pickups for August 2021: 80 
• Circulation Statistics for MeLCat, August 2021: 

o TADL items sent to borrowing institutions: 1480 
o TADL items received from lending institutions: 1875 

• The screen for the Book Drop has been updated. Previously, the screen showed each 
item that the patron returned. Some items could not be checked in successfully (due to 
faulty tags or items from lenders which do not use tags), and patrons were visiting the 
desk, concerned by the message on the screen for these items. The item updates 
portion of the Book Drop screen has been removed. We will modify the screen further 
based on patron and employee feedback. 

Josh Denby 



TRAVERSE AREA 
Administrative Reports DISTRICT for the month of August

LIBRARY September 16, 2021 Board Meeting) 

Circulation Coordinator 

Marketing and Communications 

In August marketing assisted with the SRC finale parties, preparations for the upcoming Big 
Read events, and several Purposeful Partnerships events and introductions (NORTE Slow Roll, 
TC Dance Project, Write Michigan project with Kent District Library/Canton Public 
Library/Hancock-Houghton Public Library). In response to staff preference/opportunity to save 
budget dollars, marketing/IT completed migrating documents off the LucidPress platform. 
Successfully completed an initial video transcription/captioning test, which will allow us to 
establish future budgets to make our online materials more accessible (Strategic Plan -
Inclusive Space). Completed joint marketing campaign of Michigan Activity Pass with The 
Dennos Museum, in lead up to the new Sept. exhibits and provided support materials (teacher 
flyers, year-round reading challenge promotions) for TCAPS teacher 2021-2022 kickoff event 
Aug. 30 (Purposeful Partnerships). 

Press: SRC radio campaign with Midwestern Broadcasting; IPR Classical Music Series 
(Interlachen Public Radio 8/17); Mobile Children's Museum Visit (Record-Eagle 8/18, Ticker 
8/19); Michigan Activity Pass (Northern Express, 8/29); EV Charging Stations (9&10 News 8/29) 

Website: 12,200 visitors; 42,233 pageviews 

Heather Brady 
Marketing & Communications Manager 

HR & Finance 

Human Resources - Things were a little quieter in August other than bringing in Josh to the 
Circulation Dept. and hiring a new Desk Attendant in the Technology Center (Nicole Wenstrup ). 
We also brought Julie Kelly (retired from East Bay) back on board as a substitute! However, 



p TRAVERSE AREA 
Administrative Reports DISTRICT for the month of August

LIBRARY September 16, 2021 Board Meeting) 

that was just the calm before the storm as we will be hiring several pages at the beginning of 
September to support our increase in hours. We have come to some tentative agreements in 
the Union contract negotiations and hope to have that wrapped up in September. Michele and I 
also met with Raquel from Peterson McGregor to go over our benefit options in advance of our 
Open Enrollment in September. The Social Committee also hosted our first potluck since the 
beginning of the pandemic. It was great to get back together (carefully) and eat some good 
food. 

Fjnance - We received our second State Aid payment in August along with our Penal Fines 
from Benzie County which were under budget by 6% and about 14% less than in 2019. 
However, you'll see an increase on the Local Support line as we received just under $14,000 in 
grant funds for the NEA Big Read. As you can see by looking at this line, Michele and several of 
the staff have been pounding out the grant requests this year and getting many of the ones they 
applied for! Grants are such an important revenue stream for libraries and we are very lucky to 
have some great grant writers on staff! On the other hand, it is not looking like we will be 
picking up any revenue from meeting room rentals. Unfortunately, the pandemic continues to 
create havoc with some of our revenue streams. Lastly, you'll see an increase again in the Misc 
Revenue and Reimbursement line. We received a rebate of $2640.00 from DTE for putting in 
more energy efficient boilers last year. (or was it two years ago already??) 

There isn't much to say on the expense side. We are looking very good going into the last part 
of the year. When we were budgeting last fall, we had no idea how this year would play out with 
Covid and I suspect that will be the same this year when we budget. The unknowns are very 
hard to predict right now so we will stick to a more conservative approach. 

Deb Radjenovich 
Business Manager 

Facilities 
• We hope to begin the work as soon as the fixtures arrive for the lighting project. 
• I had the interior windows in the atrium and all the exterior windows cleaned. 
• The semi-annual test of the fire suppression system in the server room was completed 

and everything is working fine. 
• The circulation office for the new manager was painted. 
• The bike racks and benches in front of the library were cleaned by a company using a 

portable media blaster. This is similar to sandblasting only he uses a mixture of water 
and multiple types of media such as recycled glass. It is eco-friendly and the residue 
washes away. He will be painting the bike racks and staining the benches as soon as the 
weather dries up. 



TRAVERSE AREA 
Administrative Reports DISTRICT for the month of August

LIBRARY September 16, 2021 Board Meeting) 

• I ordered charcoal filters for the air handlers. They are very expensive but luckily they 
only need to be changed every seven years. I will install them when they arrive in 
September. 

Bruce Bennett 
Facilities Manager 

TADL Talking Book Library 
I officially started in TBL on August 20. I am excited to start this adventure. 

We have returned to another of our senior outreach locations. We are now visiting 3 and still 
providing curbside service for those who are not ready yet to come into the building. 

This month our Tuesdays @ Two book group met and discussed Little Shop of Found Things by 
Paula Brackston. 

Anita Chouinard 
Talking Book Library Manager 

East Bay Branch Library 
• East Bay Branch participated in the Summer Reading Club Finale parties in Hull Park. 
• We also continued outdoor programming this month: 

o Attendance at Sing & Stomp storytime continues to grow, with an average of 15 
attendees each week during August. We will continue holding these outdoors for 
as long as the weather permits. 

o Chantel's book club held a special in-person, outdoor meeting with author Tricia 
Frey. The group read Frey's book River Love. 

• Our 20th annual Ice Cream Social will be held on Saturday, September 11, from 1-3. 
We're very excited to welcome our patrons to a large, safe, fun, outdoor event! 

Respectfully submitted, 
Matt Archibald 



n TRAVERSE AREA 
Administrative Reports DISTRICT for the month of Augustg 

LIBRARY September 16, 2021 Board Meeting) 

Branch Manager 

Kingsley Branch Library 
Our staff engaged the community at large and our patrons in several high-visibility outreach 
activities, including the SRC Finale Party in Hull Park, Kingsley ODA-sponsored Night Out in 
Kingsley entertainment event, the Kingsley Heritage Days Festival, Parade, and SK Fun Run, 
and the Kingsley Area Schools' Open House. 

Teen Dungeons & Dragons remains popular with our core group of 15 participants. We also 
restarted our evening Reader's Digress book club after a summer hiatus. Wigglers Storytime 
took a break for August, but we will resume on September 7th and will be hosting two outdoor 
storytimes on Tuesdays and Wednesdays, weather permitting. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy Barritt 
Branch Manager 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY 
CONSOLIDATED EXPENSES 

MONTH ENDING 
AUGUST 31, 2021 

CATEGORY BUDGET 2021 
YTD 

2020 
YTD 

VARIANCE %OF 
BUDGET 

Salaries & Wages 2,431,419 1,476,544 1,410,622 954,875 60.7% 

Social Security/Medicare 68.125 37,926 38,562 30,199 55.7% 

Health/Hospitalization 375,446 256,174 238,424 119,272 68.2% 

Vision Insurance 4,035 3,059 2,590 976 75.8% 

Dental Insurance 28,908 20,968 15,146 7,940 72.5% 

Life Insurance 9,295 5,632 5,984 3,663 60.6% 

MERS Defined Contribution Retirement 153,995 93,133 89,241 60,862 60.5% 

MERS Unfunded Liability 320,000 280,000 80,000 40.000 87.5% 

401 K Retirement Contribution 115,820 67,731 63,682 48,089 58.5% 

Unemployment Comp. 1.500 0 7,146 1,500 0.0% 

Workers' Compensation 10,000 7,860 7,860 2,140 78.6% 

Disability Insurance 8,425 4,056 5,574 4,369 48.1% 

Office/Cat/General Supplies/Postage 119,795 83,241 56,796 36,554 69.5% 

Covid-19 Supplies 7,000 3,496 17,740 3,504 49.9% 

Books/Media/Online Resources 626.100 485,003 398,531 141,097 77.5% 

Repair & Maintenance Supplies 6,750 2,774 1,214 3,976 41 .1% 

Professional & Contractual Services 270,355 160,387 128,530 109,968 59.3% 

Communications 37,790 17,210 11,398 20,580 45.5% 

Education & Travel 45,460 16,587 24,628 28,873 36.5% 

Printing & Microfilming 3,900 525 1,316 3,375 13.5% 

Advertising & Outreach 17,500 13,216 4,598 4,284 75.5% 

Insurance & Bonds 33,746 34,013 30,993 (267) 100.8% 

Utilities 118,200 58,875 50,822 59,325 49.8% 

Covid-19 Building Maintenance 6,280 

General Building & Grounds Maintenance 355,170 169,656 126,794 185,514 47.8% 

Member Allocations 569,721 569,720 550,188 1 100.0% 

Miscellaneous 3,500 55 0 3,445 1.6% 

Property Tax Reimbursement 6,500 5,118 1 1,382 78.7% 

Furniture/Equipment/Software 85,925 57,736 38,912 28,189 67.2% 

Contingency 7,000 0 0 7,000 0.0% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,841,380 3,930,693 3,413,572 1,910,687 67.3% 

2021 APPROVED BUDGET 

EXPENSES BY CATEGORY 
Personnel 3,526,968 2,253,082 1,733,542 1,273,886 63.9% 

Supplies 759,645 574,514 413,347 185,131 75.6% 

Other Services and Charges 1,461,842 1,045,361 898,171 416,481 71.5% 

Capital Outlay 92,925 57,736 31,244 35.189 62.1% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,841,380 3,930,693 3,076,304 1,910,687 67.3% 

This statement reflects activity throuQh the eiQhth month of the 2021 fiscal year. 

PercentaQe of the year completed 66.7%. 

Certain items with hiqher oercentaqes may have been paid quarterly or annually for the fiscal year. 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY 
REVENUE 

MONTH ENDING 
AUGUST 31, 2021 --

CATEGORY DESCRIPTION BUDGET 2021 
YTD 

2020 
YTD 

VARIANCE %OF 
BUDGET 

Property Tax (Current, Delinquent, Other) 5,164,735 5,169,627 4,989,475 (4,892) 100.1% 

State Aid - Library 83,750 84,472 77,974 (722) 100.9% 

State Aid - TBL 41,075 41,072 41,073 3 100.0% 

Local Support - TBL & Other Grants 18,400 103,313 15,309 (84,913) 561 .5% 

Fees/Services 42,150 29,693 28,539 12,457 70.4% 

Sales 20,000 13,040 9,210 6,960 65.2% 

Penal Fines - $196,000 for this Category per budget 0 

Penal Fines - Grand Traverse Co. 168,250 147,612 168,240 20,638 87.7% 

Penal Fines - Leelanau Co. 5,900 6,604 5,888 (704) 111.9% 

Penal Fines - Benzie Co. 21 ,850 20,549 21 ,855 1,301 94.0% 

Overdue Fines/Replacement Fees 32,000 10,191 23,564 21,809 31.8% 

Interest & Dividends/Gains/Losses on Inv. 15,000 5,695 24,773 9,305 38.0% 

Rents & Royalties 2,200 0 850 2,200 0.0% 

Contributions 24,570 22,159 21,738 2,411 90.2% 

Misc Revenue & Reimbursements 1,500 27,539 1,456 (26,039) 1835.9% 

TOTAL REVENUE 5,641,380 5,681,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

Transfer In 200,000 200,000 0 

Use of Fund Balance 0 

TOTAL 5,841,380 5,881,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

TOTAL REVENUE, TRANSFERS & USE OF FB 5,841,380 5,881,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,841 ,380 3,930,693 3,413,572 1,910,687 67.3% 

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENSE 1,950,872 2,016,372 

This statement reflects activity through the eighth month of the 2021 fiscal year. 

Percentage of the year completed is 66.7%. 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY 
REVENUE 

MONTH ENDING 
AUGUST 31, 2021 

CATEGORY DESCRIPTION BUDGET 2021 
YTD 

2020 
YTD 

VARIANCE %OF 
BUDGET 

Property Tax (Current, Delinquent, Other) 5,164,735 5,169,627 4,989,475 (4 ,892) 100.1% 

State Aid - Library 83,750 84,472 77,974 (722) 100.9% 

State Aid - TBL 41 ,075 41,072 41,073 3 100.0% 

Local Support - TBL & Other Grants 18,400 103,313 15,309 (84,913) 561 .5% 

Fees/Services 42,150 29,693 28,539 12,457 70.4% 

Sales 20,000 13,040 9,210 6,960 65.2% 

Penal Fines - $196,000 for this Category per budget 0 

Penal Fines - Grand Traverse Co. 168,250 147,612 168,240 20,638 87.7% 

Penal Fines - Leelanau Co. 5,900 6,604 5,888 (704) 111.9% 

Penal Fines - Benzie Co. 21,850 20,549 21 ,855 1,301 94.0% 

Overdue Fines/Replacement Fees 32,000 10,191 23,564 21,809 31.8% 

Interest & Dividends/Gains/Losses on Inv. 15,000 5,695 24,773 9,305 38.0% 

Rents & Royalties 2,200 0 850 2,200 0.0% 

Contributions 24,570 22,159 21,738 2.411 90.2% 

Misc Revenue & Reimbursements 1,500 27,539 1,456 (26,039) 1835.9% 

TOTAL REVENUE 5,641 ,380 5,681,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

Transfer In 200.000 200,000 0 

Use of Fund Balance 0 

TOTAL 5,841,380 5,881,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

TOTAL REVENUE, TRANSFERS & USE OF FB 5,841,380 5,881 ,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,641,380 3,326,127 3,413,572 2,315,253 59.0% 
REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENSE 2,555,438 2,016,372 

This statement reflects activity through the eighth month of the 2021 fiscal year. 

Percentage of the year completed is 66.7%. 



9411 Tenth 51r,el, lnlerlochen, Ml 49643 

m-m,-6767 SEPTEMBER DIRECTOR'S REPORT-JENNIFER THOMET 

lnterlochen Public Library to Sponsor Money Management Workshop Presented by Northwest 
Michigan Community Action Agency 

lnterlochen Public Library invites the public to Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency's Money 
Management Workshops. It is a series of workshops facilitated by regional experts, offering a unique 
guidance of the basics of money management, improving credit and debt reduction, consumer 
protection and fair housing/lending, banking basics and developing a spending plan, and student loans 
and insurance. 

The Money Management Workshops offer an opportunity for those who want to strengthen their money 
management skills. There will be door prizes for each workshop and a drawing for those who attend 
multiple workshops for a grand prize. The Money Management Workshops are every Wednesday 
starting October 6 - November 3, 5:30 pm - 7:30 pm at the lnterlochen Public Library. Registration is 
available online at nmcaa.net/workshops or you may register at the lnterlochen Public Library. This 
program series is provided by the Friends of IPL 

Thank you to the Friends of IPL 

August's family program, "Voices of Our Past" by Lynn Johnson was a great success. Our audience 
witnessed the lifeways and traditional skills of the people who opened up Michigan's vast wilderness to 
exploration and settlement. Listeners were taken on a journey back in time to 1634, the year Jean 
Nicolet arrived to the Straits area. Interaction between French and Native peoples incorporate an 
engaging story of first contact - beginning the French Fur Trade time period. A collection of 
reproduction artifacts was displayed to enhance this imaginary journey into Michigan's past. 

Summer Reading Club Wrap-up 

SRC had a successful run again this year. We hosted six programs, which included both indoor and 
outdoor locations. We had drums, raptors, singing, a petting zoo, and a pizza party! Kindle Fires were 
given out to Tween, Teens, and adults as prizes for finishing a reading journey. The children were 
awarded a prize book which they can take to the participating business to redeem for a prize. Prizes 
and programs for SRC are supported by our awesome Friends group and with the generosity from our 
local business. Thank you for investing in our children and our community. 

Circulation August 2021 : 5,324; (August 2019: 6,272) 
Hold Transit Counts August 2021: 639 to other libraries; 658 from other libraries to IPL 
Programs: August 2021 : 49 programs, 565 General Attendance; SRC: 1 Programs, 135 General Attendance 
Patron Count: August 2021: 3,586 
Curbside Pickup: August: 2021: 4 
Questions Answered : August: 896 
Computer Use: August: 180 
Total New Library Cards Issued in 2021 : 160 

https://nmcaa.net/workshops


Peninsula 
coMMUNITY LIBRARY SEPTEMBER 2021 DIRECToR~s REPORT- VICTORIA SHURLY 

MIOSHA is encouraging all employers to follow updated CDC guidance to contain the spread of COVID. 

Staff, all of whom are vaccinated, are back to wearing masks. We are requiring masks for all program 

attendance, meetings and use of the meeting rooms. For general use of the library, we strongly 

encourage the wearing of masks, but staff does not demand it of those who don't. 

Two new employees have joined our staff. They are Denise Olson, a former Paraprofessional Library 

Media Aide at East Middle School, and Kim Lakes-Morman, a former high school math teacher and 

retired bank officer. Both are proficient in technology, people friendly and excited to be a part of our 

team! 17 people applied for these part-time positions. The two positions replace the hours of two staff 

members who are still working Saturdays by choice, but have taken on other fulltime positions 

elsewhere. It seems no one wants to fully leave PCL! 

We held a Volunteer Thank You Evening in our Children's Garden at the end of August. A harpist played 

on the back porch and we offered wine and nibbles for a pleasant evening to thank board members, 

gardeners, craft preparers, shelvers, Friends members and more. 

We are still giving out Covid vaccination card protection sleeves. We had to order another 100, having 

given out 350 to date. We anticipate that when children can be vaccinated, the demand will increase. 

Staff member Mary is working on a coloring book project for the Local History Room. It is based on Tim 

Carroll's boyhood on an Old Mission farm. Tim had donated funds toward the project pre-Covid. We 

hope to do a program for Old Mission Peninsula School's third graders as well as here at the library. 

Staff member Thena is now editing our quarterly newsletter. It has a fresh new look. The tree in the 

corners, reminiscent of the cherry tree on PCL newsletters of old, will change with the seasons. The 

autumn newsletter features falling leaves. The newsletter is mailed to all 3400 Old Mission households. 

We applied for & received a Work Force Development Book Collection from the Library of Michigan, 

made possible in part by the Institute of Museum & Library Services. They are patron popular. 

The Friends of PCL donated funds toward a bench, STEM kits, games, console tables for the circ desk, 

Explorer Bags and a bookcase. Their annual book sale is this month. We are so grateful for all they do. 

In collaboration with the Old Mission Peninsula Historical Society, a Covid Memorial tree was planted 

near the Carriage House. OM residents who have lost loved ones to the pandemic were invited to write 

letters on biodegradable paper which were planted with the tree . The ceremony included a welcome by 

the Historical Society, the reading of a poem, a short dedication by me and violin music. 28 attended. 

Circulation August 2020: 2317, August 2021: 3298: + 135 manual checkouts 

August Volunteers: 12 people, 32 hours of time to PCL. Curbside pickups: 3. New library cards: 29 

Hold Transit Counts August 2021: 570 to other libraries from PCL, 396from other libraries to PCL 

Programs August 2021: 12 Program Participation August 2021: 365 Reference Questions: 372 
Website Hits: 1624 



T AOL Board of Trustees 
Finance & Facilities Committee i□ 

a 

igz 

TRAVERSE AREA September 14, 2021 
DISTRICT 4:00 pm ~ Thirlby Room and Zoom 
LIBRARY 

61 OWoodmere Ave. I Traverse City, Ml / 49686 

Attendance: S. Odgers and C. Sullivan Trustees. B. Bennett, M. Myers, D. Radjenovich, and M. 
Howard, staff. 

Agenda Approval: The agenda was approved but was amended during the meeting. 

Minutes Approval: Minutes from the August 3, 2021 Finance and Facilities and Services 
Committee were approved. 

Public Comment: No public comment. 

Facilities 
Green Plan Ideas: 
There was a discussion about ways to make TADL more sustainable and "green". Odgers had 
just recently toured Ann Arbor Public Library and had many ideas to share with the committee. 
Ideas generated are: 

• Windmills on the clock tower 
• Updated bathrooms for water conservation 

• Ideas from Australia Library and Information Association Sustainable Libraries 

• Have Heather Share our current initiatives: EV chargers, check out bags, water 
fountains, lights, bike fix it station, etc. and information about yoga, gardens, etc. 

o Maybe get an article in a free paper like Northern Express (press release when 
new lights are in) and ask for input especially from kids. 

• We need to reduce our carbon footprint and model behavior for our community 

• Stress to public that using the Library is a "green" activity instead of buying everything . 

• No doors on the bathroom to make more accessible (like at airports) 

• We need to think long term/sustainable. 

Covid Memory Idea 
Odgers was impressed with the Covid Memory Tree at PCL. She would like TADL to think about 
a similar project/idea. 



Finance: 
Union Negotiation 
Howard updated Trustees about the main points of the now ratified Union Agreement. This will 
be on the September Board meeting for approval. These include: 

• Keeping the 3% raise 

• Adding New Year's Eve as a paid holiday and the employee's birthday as a Floating 
Holiday 

• Adding additional PTO days 

• Added Short Term Disability 

• Capped the Education Benefit at $5,000 

• Agreed to payout the staff with Reserve Sick Leave 

• Agreed to allow Supervisors to leave the Union (all did) 

• Minor language clarification changes. 

New Account Software Purchase 
As discussed last month, due to the State of Michigan adopting a new Uniform Chart of 
Accounts, Howard explained that TADL will need to reorganize and renumber all of our budget 
accounts and it must be adopted by December 31, 2022. Unfortunately, the accounting software 
we currently use will not conform to the new requirements. Radjenovich found 3 companies and 
got quotes and did demos for all three. These are very expensive. Radjenovich, Morey and 
Howard agreed that Tyler Technologies has the best product which will cost us roughly an 
additional $4,000 annually but the initial set-up will cost $55,730. Howard and Radjenovich will 
have final numbers for Thursday's Board meeting. It was motioned by Sullivan and seconded by 
Odgers to recommend the Board approve this software purchase. 

Member Library Negotiation 
Odgers mentioned information about an October 7th meeting. Howard will investigate and get 
back to the Trustees. 

Next Meeting Date I Time: October 5, 2021 at 4:00pm. The committee will be moving to 
the first Tuesday of the month. 

Next Meeting Topic Suggestions: Green Plan, Member Negotiation, Budget 

Public Comment: No public Comment. 

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 5:00 pm 



T ADL Board of Trustees 
Policy and Personnel Committee 

September 7, 2021TRAVERSE AREA 
10:00 am Thirlby Room DISTRICT 

LIBRARY 
61 OWoodmere Ave. / Traverse City, Ml / 49686 

Attendance: M. Vickery, Chair; M. Pakieser, Trustee; M. Myers. D. Radjenovich, M. Howard, 
Staff. J. Wescott, Trustee excused absent. 

Agenda Approval: The agenda was approved. 

Minutes Approval: The minutes of the August 3, 2021 meeting were approved. 

Public Comment: There was none. 

Policy: 
5.1 Collection Materials Selection Policy 
Howard presented proposed changes to the Trustees. All changes where vetted by staff. There 
was discussion regarding the importance of this policy and some minor changes where made. 
The policy will be brought to the whole Board for approval at the September meeting. 

Personnel: 
Union Negotiation 
Howard was happy with the progress of the negotiation. Aside from clarification, the major 
issues resolved with the negotiation are as follows: 

• 3% raise (Same raise as the last contract. 

• Adding and adjusting PTO levels and banks 

• Adding New Year's Eve as a paid and closed holiday. Adding an employee' s birthday as 
a floating paid holiday. 

• Added Short-term disability. 

• Reduced and capped the Education Benefit. 

• Payout for anyone who has a Reserve Sick Leave bank. 

• All supervisors have elected to leave the union. 
Trustees were supportive of these terms. The union will hold a ratification vote on Sunday, 

September 12 at 5pm. If it passes, the contract will be on the September Board Agenda for 
approval. 

Next Meeting Date/ Time: October 5, 2021 at 10:00 am. 



Next Meeting Topic Suggestions: Continued Policy Revisions 

Public Comment: There was none. 

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 10:38 am. 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 5.0 Collection Development 

5.1 Collection Materials Selection Policy 

Introduction 
The purpose of the Collection Materials Selection Policy is to guide librarians in building and 
maintaining the library collection and to inform the public about the principles upon which 
selections are made. 

The word materials includes all circulating and reference only materials such as books, 
magazines, newspapers, pamphlets, video recordings, audio recordings, e-resources, Library of 
Things items, and digital devices. 

The word selection refers to both the acquisition of new material for the collection and the 
retention of material already in the collection. 

Goal 
The Traverse Area District Library (TADL) strives to connect people to the transforming power 
of knowledge. The Library strives to provide current, credible, and authoritative informational, 
educational, cultural and recreational materials in all media, both published and unpublished, 
within the constraints of budget and space, while recognizing the personal, educational, and, 
and cultural diversity of the residents ofthe communities it serves. 

This policy operates in conjunction with the documents of the American Library Association 
approved by the TADL Board of Trustees: 

• The Library Bill of Rights Policy 
• Freedom to Read Policy 

• Freedom to View Statement Policy 

Responsibilities 
Final responsibility for materials selection is vested in the Library Director by authority of the 

Board of Trustees. Direct responsibility for the selection, maintenance, re-evaluation, and 

withdrawal of materials is delegated to professional librarians and staff. 

Selection Criteria 
The selection of any material should not be construed as an endorsement, by the Library, ofthe 
views contained therein. Consideration of potential selections shall be guided by the following 
criteria: 

General Criteria (not in priority order) 

• Insight into human and social conditions 
• Suitability of subject and style for the intended audience 
• Present and potential relevance to community needs and interests 
• Timeliness or permanent value 

Page 1 of 5 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 5.0 Collection Development 

• Relation to the existing collection 
• Attention of critics and reviewers 
• Scarcity of information in the subject area 
• Availability of materials elsewhere in the community 

• Cost 
• Format 

• Demand 
• Diversity of point of view 

Specific Criteria for Works of Information and Opinion: 

• Authority 
• Ease of use 
• Comprehensiveness and depth oftreatment 
• Clarity, accuracy and logic of presentation 
• Statement of challenging or original point of view 

Specific Criteria for Works of Imagination: 

• Representation of significant literary or social trends 
• Vitality and originality 
• Artistic presentation 
• Authenticity of historical, regional or social setting 
• Sustained interest and entertainment 

Selection Criteria for Select Formats and Topics 

Genealogy 

Histories of specific, non-local, small geographic areas and genealogies of individual families will 
not be added to the collection. The TADL genealogy collection concentrates on the geographic 
Great Lakes region, as well as regions east of the Mississippi River and the eastern provinces of 
Canada. 

Human Sexuality 

The Library has a responsibility to obtain materials suitable for the lay person at various levels 
of educational background and social skills. Materials are selected as to accuracy, simplicity and 
dignity of presentation. 

Law 

Provision of law materials for the professional lawyer is beyond the scope of the public library. 

The Library will limit its law selection to materials that are authoritative, current, and 
understandable on common legal matters for the lay person. 

Page 2 of 5 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 5.0 Collection Development 

Local History/Archival Collection 

The archival collections are composed of original materials of a documentary nature centered 
on the Greater Grand Traverse area. This may include the following, but is not restricted to; 
individual and organizational records, diaries, church records, maps, visual images of various 
formats, oral histories, scrapbooks, and Traverse and surrounding area newspapers. 

The library generally does not collect materials that are considered realia, or three-dimensional 
objects, and does not collect the official records of the City of Traverse City. 

Local Works 

Due to such factors as limited availability, local significance and the lack of published reviews, 
special consideration will be given to works by local authors and artists. Whenever possible, a 
preview copy will be obtained for examination for purchase consideration. 

Mass-Market Paperbacks 

Mass-market paperbacks, most of which are donated to the Library, will be considered for the 
collection if in suitable condition and warranted by popular demand (temporary in nature). 

Medicine 

Provision of medical materials for the healthcare professional is beyond the scope of the public 
Library. The Library will limit its medical selection to materials that are authoritative, factual, 
current, and understandable on common health and hygiene matters for the lay person. 

Politics 

The Library will not purchase partisan works promoting current candidates or political agendas 
unless a balanced selection can be maintained. 

Religion 

As an unbiased institution, the Library recognizes an obligation to identify and eliminate 
sectarian propaganda and proselytizing which tend to foster intolerant attitudes toward other 
groups. The selection must be broad and tolerant. 

Collection Considerations 

Challenged Materials 

Challenges to library collection material(s) are required to be presented on a "Request for 
Reconsideration of Library Collection Materials" form (supplement attached), signed and dated 
by the person challenging the item, and returned to the Library as directed. The item(s) will be 
reviewed by a committee composed of the Director and a minimum of two members of the 
library Leadership Team. The committee will decide whether to retain the item(s) or remove 
it/them from the collection. The challenger will be notified in writing, explaining the reasons for 
the decision. If the challenger wishes to appeal, they may schedule an appearance before the 
Board of Trustees whose decision will be final. 

Page 3 of 5 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 5.0 Collection Development 

Curricular Materials 

While the collection should contain materials for varying levels of literacy on many subjects, the 
Library will not attempt to provide curricula or multiple copies of other materials just to satisfy 
demand caused by school assignments. School libraries should be the primary source for 
materials for school assignments. Consideration will be given, however, to provide materials for 
people engaged in independent study. 

Duplication 

Multiple copies of items in popular demand will be provided but will generally be limited to one 
copy for every four reserves. 

Exclusion of Materials 

The library recognizes that some materials are controversial in nature and may offend some 
patrons. However, disapproval of an item by an individual or group should not be the criteria 
which dictate denial of that item to all individuals or groups. 

Although materials written solely to exploit sensationalism are not knowingly added to the 
collection, materials that otherwise satisfy the selection criteria (above) will not be excluded 
simply because of frankness, language or description. 

Gifts and Donations 

Unconditional collection material gifts, donations, and memorials are accepted without 
commitment as to their final disposition. The same criteria used to select gifted materials for 
the collection will follow the same criteria used to select purchased and adhere to the Library 
Gift Policy. 

Labeling 
The library collection will be organized, cataloged, and marked for the primary purpose of 
helping people find the materials they want. The library does not label, alter, or shield materials 
due to the nature of the content or imagery. The library does not add or remove evaluative 
labels from library materials, such as MPAA ratings on some motion pictures, or language 
ratings on some audio materials. 

Patron Suggestions 

Suggestions are welcome and often provide valuable information about community interests 
and unmet collection needs of patrons. All suggestions are assessed with the same selection 
criteria as other items added to the collection. 

Re-evaluation and Withdrawal 

Materials are subject to periodic re-evaluation and discard, including non-fiction that contains 
obsolete or dated information, and fiction no longer in demand. Factors to be considered 
include physical condition, number of copies available, use, adequate coverage in the field, and 
availability of similar material. Withdrawn materials are handled according to the Library's 
Disposal of Withdrawn Materials Policy. 

Page 4 of 5 



TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL 5.0 Collection Development 

Replacements 

While the Library attempts to have copies of standard and important works, it does not 
automatically replace all materials withdrawn. The same criteria that apply to original selection 
will apply also to replacements. 

Rental Collection 

In order to satisfy temporary demand, the Library may maintain a rental collection holding 
multiple copies of current best-sellers and other items of timely interest. 

Review and Revision 

This policy will be reviewed periodically by the staff, and revised as needed. It will also be 
formally reviewed by the Board of Trustees at least every five years. 

Revised on February 13, 2003 / Revised on September 16, 2021 

Motion by: Adopted: @ No 

Page 5 of 5 



-------------------------------

------------- ----------------

---------------------------

U TRAVERSE A RE A Request for Reconsideration 
DISTRICT 

of Library Collection Materials LIBRARY 

Most of the items we add to our collection are done so based on professional evaluation, critical 
reviews, and the needs of our community. We also understand that not everyone shares the same 
viewpoints and tastes. By submitting this form, you are asking TADL to remove a particular work from 
the collection because of some objection you have to it. Please be as specific as possible and 
remember that you must sign and date the form as well. 

Name--------------------------------

Address 

City, State & Zip _ ___________________________ 

Phone Email 

Please check the material format: D Print D Audio D Video D E-Resource D Other 

Which Library did you borrow this from? D Main Library DEast Bay Branch D Kingsley Branch 

Item Title -------------------------------

Author/Performer ____________________________ 

Publisher/Producer 

The following questions are to be answered after you have read, listened to, or watched the 
work in its entirety. If you need more room, please attach additional sheets. 

To what in the material do you object? (please be specific, citing pages, minutes into a movie, 
tracks on a CD, etc.) 

(page 1 of 2) 

- I Ile Oil e r I IL 



-----------------

-------- ----

What do you believe is the theme or purpose of this material? 

What did you find worthwhile in this material? 

What do you think might be the result of someone using this material? 

What recommendations do you have for other titles on the same subject and in the same 
format? 

Signature ___________________ Date _________ 

Printed Name 

Completed forms may be dropped off: In-person at any service desk of the Main Library; 
Mailed to the Library Director at Reconsideration Request, Traverse Area District Library, 610 
Woodmere Ave, Traverse City, Ml 49686; or Emailed to mhoward@tadl.org. 

We will review the item that you are requesting we reconsider. You should expect a written 
response to your request for reconsideration of library collection material(s) within thirty days 
of receipt. Thank-you for your interest in the library. 

(page 2 of 2) 

For Office Use ONLY: Received on Initials 

5.1 Collection IVlaLcrials Selection Policy Suppleniental Form 9-16-2021 

mailto:mhoward@tadl.org


AGREEMENT 

Between 

TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY 

And 

TEAMSTERS STATE, COUNTY & 

MUNICIPAL WORKERS LOCAL 214 

Effective: January I, 2022 through December 31, 2024 



Table of Contents 

ARTICLE I GENERAL PURPOSE AND INTENT ... ... ...... ..... ... ....... ..... ...... .... ........ ... ........ ......... . 1 
ARTIC LE II RECOGNITION .. ....... ...... ...... .................. .... ............ .. .... ........ .. .. .. .. ....... ....... ............ .. 1 
ARTICLE III DEFINITION OF EMPLOYEES ......... .. ............... .. ........... .. .. .. ... .... ... ....... ........ .. ..... 1 

Section 1. Regular Full-Time Employees . ............. .... .......... .... ........ .... .. .... ...... .. ....... ... .. .. ....... 1 
Section 2. Regular Part-Time Employees . ...... .... ... ... .. .. ........ .... ......... .... .. .......... .... ..... .. ..... ..... 1 
Section 3. Temporary Employees . .. .. ... .. .. ................ ..... ......... ........ ...... ... ....... ...... .... .... ....... .... 2 
Section 4. Non-Union Part-Time Employees ........................ ............ .... ..................... .. ... ....... 2 
Section 5. Probationary Employees . ...................................... .. .......... .. ..... .... .... ... ... .. .. ....... ..... 2 
Section 6. State and/or Federally Funded Employees ... ........ ...... ....... .. ............ ............ .......... 2 

ARTICLE IV UNION SECURITY AND DUES DEDUCTION...... ... ... ... .. ............. ....... .. ......... ....2 
Section 1. Union Membership . .... .. ... .......................... .. .. ..... ... .... .. ... .. .... ....... ......... ... ........ ... ... 2 
Section 2. Dues Deduction .............. .... ................. ..... ...... ... .... ........ ..... ... ........ .... ............. ........ 3 

ARTICLE V NO STRIKE- NO LOCKOUT .. ................ .. ..... ... ..... .......... ... .... ......... .. ..... ........ ... ... . 3 
Section I. No Strike/No Lockout. .. .. ....... ....... .... ... .... ..... ............... ...... .. .. .... ............. ... .. ... ... .. .. 3 
Section 2. Waiver of Liability.......... ... .... .. ........ ...... ... ... .. .... .... ..... .... ...... ......... ... ... ... .... ....... ... . 4 
Section 3. Publication Through Media . .......... ... ............ ....... ... ... ... .. ... ..... .... .... .... .. .. ..... .. .... .... 4 
Section 4. Penalty.................................................... ... .... .... ..... .... ........ .. .............. .. .... ..... ....... .. 4 

ARTICLE VI NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE ..... .. ......... .. .. .. .... .... .. ......... ... .. ... ... ..... ..... ... .. ...... .... .4 
ARTICLE VII MANAGEMENT RIGHTS .... .. ..... ... .... ...... ..... ... ...... ...... ..... ......... ... ...... .... .. ..... .... .. .4 

Section 1. Sole and Exclusive Rights Reserved ......... .. .. ..... ... ..... ... .... .. .. ... ........ .... .... .. .... ........ 4 
Section 2. Right to Operate and Manage .......... ..... ...... ... .. .... ... .. .... .... ... ..... .... .. ....... .......... .. .... 4 
Section 3. Work Rules and Regulations ............. ... ... ....... ... .... .... ..... .... ... ...... .. .......... .... ... .... ... 5 
Section 4. Work Schedules.... ...... .. ...... .. .. ... ... ... ... ...... .. ... ........ ......... .... ... .. .. ..... .... ... ... ............. 5 
Section 5. Contracting and Subcontracting . ... .. .. ... .. ... ......... ... ... .. ... .... .. ... .. ..... .. ...... ..... ... ... ... ... 5 
Section 6. Emergency Work Assignments........... ...... .. .... .. .. .. ... ..... ... ...... ......... .. .. .. ...... .. .. ...... . 5 

ARTIC LE VIII UNION RIGHTS ........ .... ... ............ .... ... ..... ......... ... ....... ... .... ... .... .... ..... .. ... ... .... ..... . 5 
ARTICLE IX SPECIAL CONFERENCES ....................... .... .. .. ........ ......... .... .... .... ....... ... ..... .. .... .... 5 
ARTICLE X REPRESENTATION .... ..... .. ... .... ....... .... ...... ...... ... ...... ........ .. .. .. ........ ...... ... ...... .. ..... .. .6 

Section I . Stewards. .... ...... .... ... .... .. .... .... .. ....... .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .... .. .. ... ...... ... ... .... ............. .. .. .... .. .. ... ... 6 
Section 2. Steward Duties and Responsibilities ................. ... ..... .... .... ... .... ........ ... .. ... .... ... ....... 6 
Section 3. Pledge of Cooperation.. ... ........... ........ ....... ... .... ... ........ ... .. ... .. ..... .. ......... ...... .... ... .. .. 6 
Section 4. Procedure for Stewards ... ...... .... .. .......... ...... .. ...... ...... .. .. ... ... ........ .... ... ... ... .. ... ...... .. . 6 
Section 5. Written Notification .............. ..... .. .. ... .. ......... ........ ..... ... .. ....... .. .. ...... .... ......... ....... .. . 7 

ARTICLE XI DISCIPLINARY ACTION .... .. ..... .... ... ... ......... ...... ...... ........ ... ...... ....... ...... ..... .... ... ... 7 
ARTICLE XII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ... .. ....... .... ... .. ... .... .... ..... ........ ..... ........ ....... .. .. ... .. ..... ..7 

Section 1. Definition of Grievance............. ....... .. .. .. ... ... .... ... .......... ....... .. .. .. ... .. .. .... ...... .... ... ... 7 
Section 2. Steps in the Grievance Procedure... ........... ... .. ........ ..... ....... ..... ..... ... .. .... ..... ..... ... .. . 7 
Section 3. Time Limitations. .... ....... .. ..... ... ...... .... ....... ...... ..... .... ................. .... ..... .. ... .. ... .. .... .. .. 8 
Section 4. Arbitration.. ... .. ........ ...... ..... ... ......... ......... ......... .... ... ... ...... ... .... ...... .... .. .. ... ..... .. .... .. . 8 
Section 5. Access to Records........... .. .. ............. .... .. ..... .......... .. ..... ... ........ .... .. ...... .. ... ... .. .. ..... .. 8 
Section 6. Grievance Form............. ..... ............. ....... ...... ...... ...... .. ... .. ... ............... ... ... .. .. .. .. ..... . 8 

ARTICLE XIII SENIORITY... .................... .. .. ...... ... ... .. ... ..... .. ... .. .. .. .......... ... ...... .. ... ....... ..... .. ..... ... .9 



Section l. Definitions ........ .. .. ........... ...... ................ ... ... ............... ..... ... ....... .. .. ...... .... .... ....... .... 9 

Section 4. Promotion Outside the Bargaining Unit... ................ .. .. ... ....... ... .... ... ... ..... .......... .. I0 

Section l. Definitions.. .................. .... ..................... ........ ........ ..... .. .. .. ...... ... ....... ... ... ...... .... .... I 0 
Section 2. Posting ..... .... .................. ......... .............. ...................... ........................ .. ............ .... I 0 

Section 8. Irregular Temporary Hours.. .... ....... .... ........ ....... .. .. ...... ...... ...... .......... ...... ... ......... l_ 

Section 1. Rights and Definitions... ...... ..................... ........ .. .... ... ... ..... .. ............... .. ....... .... .. .. L.J 

ARTICLE XVI SAFETY, ACCIDENTS AND REPORTS ............ .......... ...... ... ... .... ..... ........... .. .. 1-t 

Section 6. Call Back and Call In Pay... ....... ... ... ... .... ..... .... .. .. .. .................... ...... ..... ..... .... ... ... L6 

Section 2. Seniority List. ............................................................. ..... .. .. .. ......... ... ... ... ... .. .. ........ 9 
Section 3. Loss of Seniority................ ... .............. ...... ............... .. .. ..... .. .... .......... .... .. ... .. .. ..... .. . 9 

ARTICLE xrv PROMOTIONS, TRANSFERS AND VACANCIES .................... ..... ....... ......... 10 

Section 3. Candidates for Position . ... ... .. ... ....... .. .. ..... .. ............ .. ........ .. ... .. .. ....... .. ... ...... ... .. .... 11 
Section 4. Promotions for Part-Time Employees . .... ... ............... .. .. .... .. ..... ...... ..................... 11 
Section 5. Provisional Appointment/Trial Period. ...... ..... ....... .................... .. ..... .... ... ........ .... 11 
Section 6. Wage Increases For Promotions/Vacancies. ..... ....... .... ... .. .. ............... .. .. ........ .... .. 12 
Section 7. Out-of-Class Work Assignments........ ... ..... .. .......... ........................ ... .. .. ... ........ ... 12 

ARTICLE XV LAYOFF AND RECALL PROCEDURE .... ... .. ... ..... ... ... .... ......... .... ............. ....... 13 

Section 2. Layoff by Classification.. ... ....................................... ..... ......... ...... ....... ............ .... 13 
Section 3. Order of Layoffs............. ...................................................... .. ...... ... ... .. .... .. ..... .... 13 
Section 4. Part-Time Bumping.. ... ... ...... ... ...... .. ... ... ....... ...... .... .. ............. ............ .. ....... ......... 13 
Section 5. Bumping. ..................................... .. ... ............ ............. ... ......... ......... .. .... ........ ..... ... 13 
Section 6. Qualifications for Bumping.. .. .............................................. ............ ... ... ......... ... .. 13 
Section 7. Placement Upon Bumping.................................................... ........ ...... ...... .. .. ..... .. 13 
Section 8. Opportunity for Non-Bargaining Unit Work During Layoff. .. .... ...... .... .. .... ... ..... 13 
Section 9. No Expansion of Duties .. ..... ........ ........ ......... ....... .... .... ...... ... ............... ...... ...... .... 14 
Section 10. Order of Recall. ......... ... ............... ....... ... ........... .. .. .... .... ... ..... .. .. .. ..... ... ....... .... .... . 14 
Section 11. Notice of Recall. ................................................. .. ......... ......... .. .... ... ..... .... .. .. ..... 14 
Section 12. Alternatives to Layoff. .. ... ................................... .. ... .. ... .... ..... ... ....... ... .. .... ....... .. 14 
Section 13. Steward's Super Seniority... ............. ... .... ........... .... ... ........ .. ... .... ... ... .. .. ...... ..... ... 14 

Section 1. Safety Committee... ..... .. ................ ............ ...... ...... .......... ...... ....... ..... .. .. ... ...... ... ... 14 
Section 2. Equipment Deficiency Notification...................... .. .... ... ..... ... ...... .... ... ..... ..... .... ... 14 
Section 3. Accident Reporting ......... .... ................ .. ... ................ .. .. ... ... ..... .. .. .... ........ ... ........ .. 15 

ARTICLE XVII WAGES ........... ........... ...... ................. .... .. .......... ..... ... .... .. ........ ......... ....... ........... 15 
Section 1. Wage Ranges and Classifications..... ..... .. .... ... ........... .... ..... ....... ..... ... .. ...... ...... .... 15 
Section 2. Wage Rates . ..... ............... ..... ............... ........ .......... ....... ........ ...... .. ... .... ..... ..... .... ... 15 

ARTICLE XVIII HOURS OF WORK.AND PREMIUMPAY.... .. ... ........................ ..... ....... .... ... 15 
Section 1. Normal Work Schedule..... ..... ............................... ... .... .... .. ....... ..... .. ..... .. ... .. ........ 15 
Section 2. Flexible Hours. ................ ......... .. .. ............ .... ................. .. ......... .... ............. ........... 16 
Section 3. Overtime Assignments.. .. .. .. ..... ... ......... .............. .... .. ....... .... ......... ...... .. ......... ....... 16 
Section 4. Overtime Pay.............................. .. .... .......... .. ..... ... ... .... ....... .... .. .... .. ... .. .. .... ..... ..... 16 
Section 5. Changes in Pay Period Length. .. .......... ..... .... ........... ..... ... ...... ... ...... ... ..... ..... .. .. .. .. 16 

Section 7. Rest Breaks..... .. .. ............ .. .... .... ... ... ...... ................ .. ........ ......... ....... ... ...... ............ 16 
ARTICLE XIX NEW CLASSIFICATIONS AND/OR CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION ... .... 17 

Section 1. New or Revised Classification ..... .. .... .. ..... ....... ........ .. .... .... ...... ..... ... .. ... .. .. ........ ... 17 
Section 2. Posting............... ... ..... ..... ... ... ..... ... .... ... ..... .. .. ...... ....... ..... .... ... ..... ..... ... ..... ........ ... .. 17 

ARTICLE XX HOLIDAY PAY.. ... ... ... .... ....... ........ ....... ........ ...... .... ..... .... ... .... ............ .. ........ ..... .. 17 

2 



.

Section 1. Recognized Holidays... ...... ..... .. .. .. ... .......................... ............... .. ... ... ................ ... 17 

Section 1. Dental Insurance for Full-Time Employees.. ........... .... .. ...... ...... ................. ..... .... _3 

Section 4. Dental Insurance for Part-Time Employees.......... ..... ..... ..... .. ... ........................... _4 

Section 2. Insurance Coverage During Unpaid Leaves............... ..... .......... ...... ........ ... ....... .. _5 

Section 2. Eligibility for Holiday Pay...... ..... ..... ......................... .... .... ......... .. .... ... .... .... ..... .. . 17 
Section 3. Holiday Pay....................... ... ..... .. .. ............................. ..... ...... ....................... .. .. .... 17 
Section 4. Work on a Holiday............... .... ........... .. ..................... .... ... .. ....... .... .... .......... ... .. .. . 18 
Section 5. Floating Holiday............... .. ........ ........ ... .... ..... ..... .. ..... .... ........ ... ....... .. ...... .. .. .. .. ... 18 
Section 6. Penalty for Missing Scheduled Holiday Work...... .... ... ...... ................................ . 18 

ARTICLE XXI LEAVES AND PAID TIME OFF ... ... .. ........ ............................ .... ........ ... .. ... ..... .. 18 
Section 1. Paid Time Off (PTO). ............ ..... .. ..... ...... ......... ..... ... ......... ... ... ..... ................. ...... 18 
Section 2. Accrual of PTO................. .. ...... .... ... ... ..... .... .... .... ....... ........ ..... .. ...... .. .... ..... ..... ... . 18 
Section 3. PTO Bank... ... ........... .... ..... .. ... ..... ........ .... ........ .... .. ........ .. ..... ... ... ... ........ .............. . 19 
Section 4. Scheduled PTO Leave........ ........ ......... .... ..... .... ...... .... .... ... ..... .... ... .. .... ......... . .. ... .. 19 
Section 5. Unscheduled PTO Leave...... ... ........ .................................. ..... .. ................. ....... ... 19 
Section 6. Incremental Usage................. .... ............................................. ..... .............. ......... . 19 
Section 7. Historical Conversion to PTO.... ... .... ....... .. ................ .. .. ... ........ .... .. .. .... ..... ... .. .. ... 20 
Section 8. Coordination of Benefits.. .... ....... .... ......... ... .......... .. ........ ..... .. ... ... ..... .. .... .. .......... . 20 
Section 9. Use of PTO During FMLA Leave. .... .... .... ............ ...... ... .. ... ..... ..... ... ..... ... ... .. .. .. .. 20 
Section 10. Use of PTO - Unpaid Holidays and Bereavement Leave.......... ... ...... ... ... ... ... ... 20 
Section I I. Pay Out. ......... .. ................ ..... .. ........ .. .. ... ............... .... ..... ..... .. ........... .. ...... .. ........ . 20 
Section 12. Reserve Sick Leave Bank Payout. .................................... ................. ..... ......... .. 20 

ARTICLE XXII SHORT TERM AND LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE ...... ..... .......21 
ARTICLE XXIII BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ........ ......... .. ..... ... ... .................... .... ... .... ....... .. ..... ....21 
ARTICLE XXIV JURY DUTY..................... ... .. ....... .... .. ........ ..... ............ ....... ... ..... .. .... ...... ...... ....21 
ARTICLE XXV MILITARY LEAVE .. ... ............. ... .... ... ... .. .. .... .. ..... .... ..... .......... ........ ............ .. ...21 
ARTICLE XXVI EXTENDED PERSONAL LEAVES .... .. .. ... ... ...... ... ....... ...... ....................... .. ..21 
ARTICLE XXVII HEALTH INSURANCE ...... ... .. .. ....... ... .... ... ......... ..... ........... .. .............. ... .... .. .22 

Section 1. Health Insurance Benefit.. ... ...... ........ ... ... .......... ..... ... ..... ...... .. ... ......... ........ ... ...... . 22 
Section 2. Employee Contribution. .. ........ ... ..... ...... ......................... ... ..... ..... .. .... .. .......... .... ... 21 
Section 3. Notice to Union oflncrease.. ....... .... .... ....... ... .. .... .... ..... ... .... .. .... ... .. ..... ... ........... .. 22 
Section 4. Dependent Coverage.......... .... .. .... ... ...... ... ............ ....... ... .... .. .... ..... ........ ..... ... ... .... 22 
Section 5. Health Insurance for Retirees... ...... ...... ..... ..... ...... ....... ... ... .. ....... ..... ..... .. ..... ... ...... 22 
Section 6. Cafeteria Plan In Lieu of Health Insurance Coverage....... ..... ... .. ... .. ....... .... ...... .. 23 

ARTICLE XXVIII DENTAL AND OPTICAL INSURANCE........... ... .... ......... ........ ..... .... ........ .23 

Section 2. Dental Insurance Premiums... ... ............ ... ............. .... ... ........ ....... .... ......... .... .. .. .... 23 
Section 3. Dental Insurance for Dependents. .... .... .... .. ......... ...... ... ....... ... .......... ...... ... ... .... .... 24 

Section 5. Optical Insurance for Employees . ........... .................. .............. ... .. ........ .. ... ...... ... .. 24 
Section 6. Dental and Optical Insurance for Retirees................ ... ... ..... .. .... ..... .... ......... ...... .. 24 

ARTICLE XXIX LIFE INSURANCE .. .... .. .. ..... .... .... ...... ......... .. ........ ..... .. ... ..... ..... ... .... .... ..... ..... .24 
ARTICLE XXX CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS .... ... .. ... .. ....... ... .. .... .. .. ... .... .25 

Section 1. Continuation of Premiums... .... ... .... ...... ...................... .. ........ ... .... .. .... ........ ........ .. 25 

ARTICLE XXXI WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE............ ..... ........... .. ... .... .. .......25 
ARTICLE XXXII DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN .... .. ......... ...... ..... .................. .. ..... .... .... ...25 

Section 1. MERS Defined Contribution Plan.... .... .. .......... ... ....... ....... ........ ............ ... ... .. .... .. 25 
Section 2. Employee 401 (k) Plan.......... ... .................. ..... ............ ...... .. ... ... .... ... .. .... .... ..... .. .... 25 

3 



Section 3. Changes in Tax Law .................. ........... ... ... .... ..... ... ... .... ... ... ............... .. ..... .... .. .... 26 
ARTICLE XXXIII LONGEVITY ................................. .. ... .. .... .. ........ .. ..... ... ..... ... .... ..... .. ... .. ........ .26 
ARTICLE XXXIV EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVES ... .. ...... .... .... ..... .... ....... .. .. .. ....... ... ....... ......... 26 

Section 1. Reimbursement. ................. ....... .. .... ... ........... .... ........ .. ... .. ... ... ....... .... ...... ............. 26 
Section 2. Maximum Benefit. ............. ................. .... ... .... ...... .. ...... ..... ..... ... ... .. .... .... ...... ........ 27 
Section 3. Annual In-Service ............ .. ...... ... .. .... .......... ... .......... ... ............ .. ..... ........ ..... ......... 27 

ARTICLE XXXV CAR ALLOWANCE.... ........ ...... .. ..... .. ....... .... ....... ... .. ....... .......... ...... ..... .. .... .. .27 
ARTICLE XXXVI INCLEMENT WEATHER AND/OR UNSCHEDULED CLOSINGS .. ....... 27 
ARTICLE XXXVII MISCELLANEOUS ........ ............................................................................. 28 

Section I. IRS Section 125........................ .. ......................................................................... 28 
Section 2. Yearly Calendar ......................... ......................................... ...... ........................... 28 
Section 3. Leave Totals .............................. ... .. ..... ..... .. ...... ..... .. ..... ... ......... ..... ......... .. .... ........ 28 
Section 4. Home Department. .................... .... .... .............. ... ... ....... ... ... .... .. ....... ..... ...... .......... 28 
Section 5. Captions.................................... .... .......... .... ... ... ... ... ... ....... ..... ... ............ .... ... ........ 28 

ARTICLE XXXVIII SAVINGS CLAUSE ....... .............. ........ ........ ... ... ... ..... ..... .. ...... ...... .. .. .........28 
ARTICLE XXXIV TERMINATION ............ ..... .............. ......... ... ...... ...... .... .......... ... .. ... .. .... .........28 
SIGNATORIES .. ...... ....... ...... .......................... ................. ....... ... ....... ...... .. .... ........ .. ....... ... ... .........29 

4 



AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, effective January 1, 2022, by and between the TRAVERSE AREA 
DISTRICT LIBRARY, hereinafter referred to as the "Library" or "Employer" and TEAMSTERS 
STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL WORKERS LOCAL 214, (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Union"), expresses all mutually agreed covenants between the parties. 

ARTICLE I 
GEN£RAL PURPOSE AND INTENT 

The general purpose of this Agreement is to set forth terms and conditions of employment and to 
promote orderly and peaceful labor relations for the mutual interest of the Employer, the 
Employees and the general public. Pursuant to the authority of Act 379 of the Public Acts of 
1965 as amended. It is the purpose of this Agreement to promote harmonious relations between 
the Employer and the Union, and to establish rates of pay, hours of work, and other specified 
conditions of that employment. The parties recognize that the interest of the community and the 
job security of the employees depends upon the Employer's success in establishing proper 
service to the community. To these ends the Employer and the Union encourage, to the fullest 
degree, friendly and cooperative relations between the respective representatives at all levels and 
among all employees. 

It is the further purpose of this Agreement to promote the mutual interest of the Employer and its 
employees and to provide for the operation of services provided by the Library under methods 
which will further, to the fullest extent possible, service to the public, economy and efficiency of 
operation, safety of the employees, and cooperation of the parties to secure the advancement and 
achievement of these purposes. 

ARTICLE II 
RECOGNITION 

The Union is hereby recognized as the exclusive bargaining agent for all regular employees of 
the Library, excluding supervisory, management, and confidential employees, temporary 
employees, non-union part-time employees, and all employees specifically covered by other 
collective bargaining agreements. 

ARTICLE III 
DEFINITION OF EMPLOYEES 

Section I. Regu lar Full-Time Employees. Employees normally scheduled on a regular 
basis to work thirty-seven (3 7) to forty ( 40) hours per week shall be considered as regular full
time employees and shall be subject to all the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 2. Regular Part-Time Employees. Employees normally scheduled on a regular 
basis to work at least twenty (20) but no more than twenty-nine and one-half (29.5) hours per 
week shall be considered as regular part-time employees and shall be subject to all the terms of 
this Agreement unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement. 



Section 3. Temporary Employee ·. Employees who are scheduled for temporary 
employment (this is employment clearly understood to be of limited duration) shall be classified 
as temporary employees and shall not be subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 
Appointment to temporary positions may be for periods not to exceed twelve (12) continuous 
months. Employees hired as a result of temporary project-oriented state and/or federally funded 
programs shall be considered temporary employees. If, during the duration of a temporary 
position the position is changed from a temporary to a regular status, appointment to fill the 
regular position will be made in confonnity with the procedure for filling vacancies. All 
temporary employees who become permanent employees shall have as credit to their 
probationary period all time worked after date of hire in the same position. 

Section 4. Non-Union Part-Time Employees. Those employees hired as part-time not 
meeting the criteria for regular part-time are classified as non-union part-time, and shall not be 
subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 5. Probationary Employees. New employees covered by this Agreement shall 
be on probationary status for the first ninety (90) days of employment. If an employee is absent 
from work during such probationary period due to illness or other reasons for a period of seven 
(7) days or longer, such period of absence shall be added to the ninety (90) day probationary 
period. An employee's probationary period may, by mutual agreement, be extended for an 
additional ninety (90) days provided the Library Director gives advance notice of such request 
for said extension and the reasons therein. Upon completion of the probationary period, the 
employee shall be put on the seniority list and such seniority shall commence from the date of 
hire. Probationary employees may be laid off or dismissed without recourse to the grievance 
procedure. The Steward will be given notice of the termination of a probationary employee. At 
the conclusion of the first ninety (90) day probationary period, the employee shall become a 
regular employee eligible for health, dental, and optical benefits, and life insurance benefits, as 
described in other Articles of this Agreement. 

Section 6. State and/or Federally Funded Employees. Employees hired as a result of 
state and/or federally funded programs not excluded by Section 3 above, shall be subject to all 
the terms of this Agreement, as limited by the restrictions contained in said state and/or federal 
programs. 

ARTICLE IV 
UNION SECURITY AND DUES DEDUCTION 

Section I. Union Membership. Membership in the Union is not compulsory. Employees 
are not required as a condition of obtaining or continuing employment to become or remain a 
member of the Union, or to pay Union dues. All employees have a right to join, not join, 
maintain or drop their membership in the Union as they see fit. The Union recognizes, however, 
that it is required under this agreement to represent all employees included within the collective 
bargaining unit fairly and equally without regard to whether the employee is a member of the 
Union. The terms of this Agreement shall apply to all employees in the collective bargaining 
unit, regardless of whether the employee chooses to be a member of the union. 

2 



Section 2. Dues Deduction. 

A. During the life of this agreement, the Employer agrees to deduct Union 
membership dues and initiation fees from each Employee's pay (who have chosen to join the 
union), provided the Employee has filed with the Employer a proper check off authorization 
form as supplied by the Union. 

B. Dues and initiation fee will be authorized, levied and certified by the 
Secretary Treasurer in accordance with the Constitution and by-laws of the Union. Each 
employee who is a member of the Union hereby authorizes the Union and Employer, without 
recourse to rely upon and to honor certificates, furnished by the Secretary Treasurer of the Local 
Union, regarding the amounts to be deducted and the legality of deducting such union dues 
and/or initiation fees. The Employer agrees to provide this deduction service without charge to 
the Employees or the Union. 

C. Upon receiving a properly executed check off authorization form from the 
Union, the Employer shall deduct dues as applicable from that Employee's pay. 

D. Deduction of dues for any calendar month shall be made from the first pay 
period of that month, provided the Employee has sufficient net earnings to cover the dues and/or 
initiation fees. Any change in the amount of deduction for an individual must be submitted to the 
Employer by the Union. Deductions for any calendar month shall be remitted to the designated 
Secretary Treasurer of the Union not later than the 15th day of each month. 

E. In cases where a deduction is made which duplicates a payment already made 
to the Union by an Employee, or where a deduction does not conform with the Union's 
constitution or by-laws, refunds owed to the Employee shall be made by the Union. 

F. The Union shall notify the Employer in writing the proper amount of dues 
and/or initiation fees and any subsequent changes in such amounts. 

G. Employees who choose to revoke their authorization to pay Union dues shall 
provide the Union and Employer ninety (90) days written notice of their decision to no longer 
pay dues. Upon such notice, the Employer shall stop deducting Union dues from Employee. 

H. The Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Employer harmless against 
any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liabilities that shall arise out of or as a result 
of any conduct by the Employer for the purposes of complying with Sections 1 and 2 of this 
Article. 

ARTICLE V 
NO STRIKE - NO LOCKOUT 

Section L. No Strike o Lockout. It is agreed that during the term of this Agreement, 
and while both parties are willing to continue negotiations for the renewal of this Agreement, 
there shall be no lockouts, strikes, stoppages or work slowdowns or interruptions of service. All 
matters in dispute shall be handled in the manner provided by grievance procedure and other 
contract provisions. 

3 



Section - · Waiver of Liability. The Library agrees, as a part of the consideration of this 
Agreement, that neither the Union, its officers or official representatives shall be liable for 
damages for unauthorized picketing, strikes, concerted failure to report to work, slowdowns or 
stoppages of work if the Union gives written notice to the Library and the employees involved 
within twenty-four (24) hours of such action that it has not authorized the stoppage, strike, 
slowdown or suspension of work and such written notice directs the employees involved to 
return promptly to their jobs and cease any further violation of this Agreement. 

Section 3. Publication Through Media. The Library and the Union agree that the parties 
may jointly or separately publicize through the media the unauthorized walkout or work 
stoppage. 

Section 4. Penalty. Any individual employee or group of employees who violate or 
disregard the prohibition of this Article may be summarily discharged by the Library without 
liability on the part of the Library or the Union. 

ARTICLE VI 
NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE 

Members of the Union may be represented by a negotiating team consisting of not more than two 
(2) employees. Selection of these employees shall be in any manner determined by the Union. 
One (1) member of the committee shall be a Steward. The other member of the committee shall 
be the other Steward or the Alternate Steward. When bargaining occurs during their normal work 
shifts, they shall be released for such purposes without loss of time or pay. In no event will the 
Library compensate an employee for hours spent for bargaining purposes beyond their normal 
work shift. 

ARTICLE VII 
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

Section 1. Sole and Exclu ive Rights Reserved. The Union recognizes that the 
Employer retains the sole and exclusive right to manage and operate the Library in all of its 
operations and activities, except as otherwise specifically and expressly provided in this 
Agreement. The enumeration of management's rights in this Article is not to be construed as 
being all-inclusive, but rather as indicating the type of rights inherent to management. 

Section 2. Right to Operate and Man.age. The Union recognizes the exclusive right of 
the Library to operate and manage its affairs, to direct its workforce, to maintain order and 
efficiency, and to determine all matters pertaining to the services to be furnished and the 
methods, processes and procedures required to provide such services; to hire, promote, assign, 
transfer, suspend, discipline, discharge, lay off and recall personnel; to establish classifications of 
work and the number of personnel required; to re-classify existing positions based on assigned 
duties and responsibilities, or make changes in assigned duties and responsibilities, it being 
understood by the parties that only the principal duties and range of skills are enumerated in class 
specifications and job descriptions, and that incidental duties similarly related, although not 
enumerated, are intended to be performed by employees; to schedule overtime work as required 
and consistent with the provisions of this Agreement; to lay off employees for lack of work or 

4 



funds or the occurrence of conditions beyond the control of the Employer or where such 
continuation of work would be wasteful and unproductive; to determine methods, means and 
personnel necessary for operations, and to control budgets; to administer pay and fringe benefit 
plans; to determine the nature and number of facilities and departments to be operated and their 
locations; to continue and maintain its operations as in the past, to study and use improved 
methods and equipment, and in all respects to carry out the ordinary and customary functions of 
management; to detennine workloads and work locations; and to provide and assign relief 
personnel. 

Section 3. Work Rules and Regulation . The Union recognizes the exclusive right of the 
Library to establish reasonable work rules and regulations governing the conduct of employees, 
to set work standards, as set forth in the TADL Employee Handbook, as revised, and to require 
the observance of such rules, policies, regulations and standards. The Employer agrees to furnish 
employees with a copy of all rules, regulations and policies which apply to their employment. 

Section 4. Work Schedules. The Library has the right to establish work schedules, to 
determine the hours of work, including starting and quitting time and length of work week, and 
to detennine work locations. 

Section 5. Contracting and Subcontractine. The Union recognizes that the Library has 
statutory rights and obligations to contract and subcontract for matters relating to Library 
operations. However, when contracting or subcontracting no union employee shall be laid off. 

Section 6. Emergency Work Assignments. It is recognized that the Library is in the 
business of providing public services, and that during an emergency work assignment, personnel 
and procedures may be modified in any way necessary to meet the demands of the emergency. 
Emergency shall include any circumstances or a combination of circumstances which calls for 
immediate action, including severe storms, floods, or other "acts of God," riots, epidemics, or 
other conditions beyond the control of management or declarations of emergency called by the 
governmental official authorized to do so. 

ARTICLE VIII 
UNION RIGHTS 

Authorized representatives of the Union shall be permitted to visit the operation of the Employer 
during working hours to talk with the Stewards of the Local Union and/or representatives of the 
Employer concerning matters covered by this Agreement without interfering with the progress of 
the work force. The Union will arrange with the Employer for the time and place prior to the 
occurrence of such visits. 

ARTICLE IX 
SPECIAL CONFERENCES 

Special conferences on important matters will be arranged between the Union and a 
representative of the Library upon the request of either party. Such meetings shall be between the 
Employer and representatives of the Union unless otherwise mutually agreed. Arrangements for 
such conferences shall be made in advance and an agenda of the matters to be taken up at the 
meeting shall be presented at the time the conference is requested. Matters taken up in special 

5 



conferences shall be confined to those matters included in the agenda, unless both parties agree 
to include other items. 

ARTICLE X 
REPRESENTATION 

Section 1. Stewards. The Library agrees to recognize two (2) Stewards and one (1) 
Alternate Steward who shall be regular Library employees in the bargaining unit. The Alternate 
Steward shall only act in the capacity of the Steward in the Steward's absence. Stewards will 
have the necessary time to act in their Union capacity without loss of pay where in so acting they 
lose time from their regular scheduled work. 

Section 2. Steward Duties and Responsibilities. The authority of the Stewards and 
Alternate Steward shall be limited to and shall not exceed the following duties and activities: 

A. Attending all Special Conferences, as defined in Article IX. 

B. The investigation and presentation of a grievance with the designated Library 
representative in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

C. The transmission of messages and information which shall originate with, 
and are authorized by the Local Union or its officers, provided such messages and information: 

1. Have been reduced to writing; or 

2. If not reduced to writing, are of a routine nature and do not involve 
work stoppage, slowdowns, refusal to handle goods, or any other 
interference with the Library's business. 

D. Signing up new employees for membership or agency fee. 

Section 3'. Pledge of Coopetat.i on. The Union agrees that Stewards will not let their 
stewardship interfere with their duties or the operations of the Library and the Library agrees to 
give the Stewards reasonable time and access to other employees to fulfill their obligations 
hereunder. 

Section 4. Procedure for Stewards. Stewards shall request permission of their immediate 
supervisor when leaving their work area for the above purposes and such permission shall be 
granted within twenty-four (24) hours of the request, with the exception of times of extraordinary 
work pressure or periods of emergency. The privileges of the Steward leaving the Steward's 
work during working hours without loss of time or pay are subject to the understanding that the 
time will be devoted to the proper processing of grievances, or other listed duties and will not be 
abused. Employees abusing such time shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including 
discharge. The Stewards and Alternate Steward may be required to record time spent on 
processing grievances. No overtime shall be paid for Union activities. Union Stewards and 
Alternates shall not meet on Library time to confer on matters not specifically permitted under 
the terms of this Agreement. 

6 



Section 5. Written Notification. The Union shall furnish the Employer in writing with 
the names of its authorized representatives who are employed within the unit and such changes 
as may occur from time to time in such personnel so that the Employer may at all times be 
advised as to the authority of the individual representative of the Union with whom it may be 
dealing. 

ARTICLE XI 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

Disciplinary action, up to and including suspension, demotion, or discharge may be made for just 
cause. It is recognized, however, that the principles of progressive discipline will normally be 
followed, except in serious cases. All written and verbal reprimands along with coaching memos 
will be taken out of the employee's personnel file after three (3) years if the employee has not 
had additional reprimands relating to the initial discipline. 

ARTICLE XII 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Section 1. Definition of Grievance. A grievance shall be defined as any complaint or 
dispute which may arise with respect to the application or interruption of this Agreement and 
may be taken up for settlement in accordance with the procedure set forth below: 

Section 2. Steps in the Grievance Procedure. 

Step 1. Any employee having a complaint in connection with the employee's 
employment pertaining to the provisions of this Agreement shall first present the 
complaint to employee's immediate supervisor for discussion and possible resolution 
within five (5) work days from actual discovery of the basis for said grievance or from 
the date when the basis for the grievance should have been reasonably discovered. The 
complaint shall be in writing on a grievance form as supplied by the Union. The 
employee, Steward and supervisor are required to sign and date the form. The supervisor 
shall provide the grievant with a written response within two (2) work days of the Step 1 
discussion. 

Step 2. If the matter is not resolved at Step 1, the Steward and/or employee may move 
the grievance to Step 2 by notifying the Library Director or the Library Director's 
designee within five (5) work days of the Step 1 response. The form shall clearly identify 
the grievance as a Step 2 grievance, and state the date the Step 1 discussion was held with 
the supervisor. The Employer shall answer said grievance within five (5) work days of 
receipt of same. 

Step 3. If the matter is not settled at Step 2, the Union may, within five (5) work days 
after receipt of the Employer's answer, request a meeting between Union representatives, 
consisting of the Local Union representative, the grievant, the Steward, and the Library 
Director or the Director's representative to review the matter. Such meeting will be held 

7 



within ten ( l 0) work days after the date of the written request to move to a Step 3 
grievance, unless extended, as mutually agreed by the Employer and the Union. The 
Employer will render its decision within ten (10) work days from the meeting, with a 
copy of the decision to the Union and employee. 

Section 3. Time Limitations. For purposes of this section all reference to days shall be 
work days and shall not include Saturdays, Sundays or holidays. Grievances not filed or appealed 
within the designated time period shall be considered settled on the basis of the last 
determination by management. Grievances not answered by management within the designated 
time limits shall be considered denied on the last day of the contractual time period for a 
management response and may be appealed to the next step, or if at Step 2, to arbitration, if such 
appeal is submitted within the specified time limits for appeal. The time limits established in the 
grievance procedure may be extended by mutual agreement in writing. 

Section 4. Arbitration. If the grievance is not settled in the last step above, either party 
to this Agreement may submit such grievance to arbitration. This submission is to be made 
within forty-five ( 45) days after receipt of the Step 3 answer. Each grievance submitted to 
arbitration shall be submitted via the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service ("FMCS") in 
accordance with its voluntary rules and regulations at the time of submission, within the time 
specified above. The FMCS rules shall govern the arbitration hearing, unless stated otherwise in 
this Article, or as mutually agreed upon by the parties. The arbitrator shall be selected from a 
panel of arbitrators obtained from the FMCS by each party alternately striking a name from the 
panel with the remaining name serving as the arbitrator. Alternatively, the parties may mutually 
agree on the selection of an arbitrator. 

The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to alter, amend, add to or subtract from the terms 
of this Agreement, establish wage scales, except as those provided in this Agreement, or to 
require the Library to purchase buildings, equipment or material. In the event a case is appealed 
to an arbitrator on which the arbitrator has power to rule, it shall be referred back to the parties 
without decision or recommendation on its merits. There shall be no appeal of an arbitrator's 
decision. It shall be final and binding on the Union, its members, the employee(s) involved, and 
the Library. The compensation and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the 
Library and the Union. The fees and wages of each party's witnesses and representatives shall be 
borne by the party incurring them. The Employer shall not be required to pay for any time spent 
in arbitration by bargaining unit employees; provided, however, that the Steward and grievant 
shall be paid for such time, not to exceed a regular eight (8) hour day. 

Section 5. Access to Records. The Union shall have the right to examine time sheets 
and other records pertaining to the computation of compensation for an employee who has 
submitted a specific grievance relative to such compensation. Other records pertaining to a 
specific dispute may be examined by the Union upon specific grievance subject to the applicable 
state and federal laws. 

Section 6. Grievance Form. Grievance forms shall be supplied by the Union. Written 
grievances shall include the following: 

8 



A. The name of the aggrieved employee. A "class action" gnevance must 
include the name of at least two (2) employees. 

B. The date of the alleged dispute or controversy. 

C. The provision of the Agreement alleged to have been violated. 

D. Signed by aggrieved employee(s), and Steward or Union Representative. 

ARTICLE XIII 
SENIORITY 

Section I. Definitions. 

Library seniority (overall seniority) - The continuous length of time an employee within the 
bargaining unit has been employed by the Library in any job classification, commencing from 
the most recent date of hire and shall be used to determine benefits. 

l.assiu cation enjoritv - The length of time an employee has been employed in a particular 
classification. 

Bargaining w1i t ' eniority - The length of time an employee has been employed in the bargaining 
unit. 

Both "classification seniority" and "bargaining unit seniority" shall be frozen if an employee 
moves to a non-bargaining unit position in the library. 

Section 2. Seniority Li t. The seniority list as of the date of this Agreement will show 
the names and job titles of all employees of the unit entitled to seniority. The Employer will keep 
the seniority list up-to-date and posted annually in a conspicuous place in the Library, and will 
provide the Local Union membership with up-to-date copies. The Employer shall notify the 
affected Steward of any change on the seniority list within thirty (30) days of such changes. 

Section 3. Loss of Seniority. An employee shall lose employee' s seniority with the 
Library and employee's employment shall terminate for the following reasons: 

A. Employee quits, retires or receives a pension under the Library; 

B. Employee is discharged for just cause, and the discharge is not reversed 
through the procedures set forth in this Agreement; 

C. Employee is absent without authorization for three (3) consecutive working 
days (voluntary quit); 

D. Employee fails to report to work as required following notice ofrecall; 

9 



E. Employee fails to return to work within three (3) consecutive days of the date 
following a leave of absence or vacation, unless a satisfactory reason is given or because of an 
emergency situation; 

F. Employee is laid off for a continuous period of more than eighteen ( 18) 
months or the length of employee's seniority, whichever is less; 

G. Employee is on an unpaid leave of any type other than layoff for more than 
one (1) year or the length of employee's seniority, whichever is less; or 

H. Employee gives a false reason in requesting a leave of absence, or engages in 
other employment during such leave of absence. 

Section 4. Promotion Outside the Bargaining Unit. An employee in a classification 
represented by the Union who has been in the past, or will be in the future, promoted to a 
position outside the bargaining unit, may return to the bargaining unit in the same position from 
which employee left without loss of seniority for a trial period of ninety (90) calendar days. 

This provision shall not preclude the Employer, during this initial ninety (90) day trial period, 
from demoting the employee to employee's former position if, in the opinion of the Employer, 
the employee is not perfonning satisfactorily. In this case, the employee will return to 
employee's former position and seniority status. 

After completion of the initial ninety (90) day trial period, a promoted employee no longer in the 
bargaining unit may regain seniority status in the bargaining unit if there is an open position 
which employee has previously held prior to employee's promotion. Upon return to the 
bargaining unit, the employee shall maintain the classification seniority he/she held prior to the 
promotion to the non-bargaining unit position. 

All vacancies created by promotions outside the bargaining unit shall be of a provisional status 
during the initial ninety (90) day trial period. Upon completion of the ninety (90) day trial period, 
all provisional appointments shall become permanent. 

ARTICLE XIV 
PROMOTIONS, TRA.l~SFERS AND VACANCIES 

Section l. Definitions. A promotion is defined as a status change from an employee's 
present wage range and classification to a higher wage range and classification. A transfer is 
defined as a lateral move to the same wage range and classification in another branch location or 
different department. A transfer does not constitute a promotion. 

Section 2. Po ting. Within seven (7) days after Employer decides to fill a vacancy, a 
posting shall be made for seven (7) days in the Library before other posting or outside 
advertising takes place. The Library will provide notice to bargaining unit employees of jobs 
through posting on the Library's staff portal system and via e-mail to all employees. 



Posting shall include the wage range and classification of the position, the job description, and 
the minimum qualifications as set by the Employer. The minimum qualifications are provided to 
give potential applicants the necessary minimum level of skill, ability, and education and training 
required for the position. Application for the position shall be made on a Library application 
fonn as outlined in the posting for the position. Lateral transfers are not required to be posted. 

Section .) . Candidates f, r Position. Promotions to a higher ( or lower classification, if 
applied for) shall be based on ability, skills, and education or training (if necessary for the 
particular position). Merit shall also be considered. Merit includes demonstrated consistent 
performance on the current job, including initiative, reliability and the ability to learn new skills. 
Ability shall include having the appropriate skills for the promotion under consideration, being 
able to perfonn the essential functions of the position, and the ability to interact with other 
people. Every attempt will be made to standardize tests, if utilized, so that applicants are equally 
aware of the criteria, weight and expectations, and the same basic interview questions will be 
asked of all candidates. 

Qualified employees may apply according to Article XIV. If no qualified applicant applies, an 
assignment may be made by the Library. After reviewing the applications of current employees 
within the Library, the Employer may advertise the position publicly, based on the same above 
criteria. 

If two or more applicants are considered to be equal in terms of the above criteria, and are 
adjudged to be the best candidates for the position, selection shall be made in the following 
order: 

1. Current bargaining unit employees. 

2. Outside applicants. 

If two (2) or more top applicants are from one of the above groups, bargaining unit seniority 
shall determine the order of placement within the order of selection indicated. 

An explanation as to why a candidate was not selected for the position will be provided upon 
request. To the extent possible, unsuccessful candidates will be notified prior to the release of 
such information to the general public. Nothing in this Article shall be construed so as to limit 
the Employer's authority to assign appropriate duties to employees working within their 
classification. 

Section 4. Promotions for Part-Time Employees. Regular part-time employees shall 
have the same opportunity for advancement into wage ranges and classifications as regular full-
time employees. · 

Section 5. Provisional Appomtment/Trial Period. All promotions shall be provisional 
for a period of ninety (90) days. An employee's probationary period may, by mutual agreement, 
be extended for an additional ninety (90) days provided the Library Director gives advance 
notice of such request for said extension and the reasons therein. During this time, the employee 

11 



may opt to return to employee's prior classification without loss of seniority. The Employer may 
return the employee to employee's prior classification without loss of seniority if the employee's 
performance in the new classification is unsatisfactory or, if due to a chain of bumping, the 
provisional appointee in the next higher classification returns to employee's prior position. 

Section ._ Wage lncreases For Promotions/Vacancies. Future pay increases will be 
according to this Agreement. An employee promoted to a higher wage range and classification 
shall be placed at the step which affords employee an increase from employee's current rate of 
pay. The employee's anniversary date shall become the date of promotion for the purpose of 
classification seniority. 

An employee who has applied for and has been chosen for a position in a lower wage range and 
classification shall be placed at the employee's current seniority step. 

Employees receiving a promotion to a higher classification within the unit may receive a one
time adjustment that will ensure the employee a pay raise within the pay scale as determined by 
the Library. 

Section 7. Out-of-Class Work Assignments. Where an employee is qualified for and is 
temporarily required by a supervisor to serve in, and accepts the responsibility for all work in a 
higher classification, such employee shall be paid at the higher rate of the classification being 
assumed. The higher rate will apply immediately upon accepting these duties. 

An employee may be temporarily assigned to work in any related position in the same or lower 
class ranges without change in pay. 

Section 8. Irregular Temporary Hours. When the Library has less than three (3) days' 
notice of the need for additional hours the following procedure will be used: 

Irregular temporary hours will be offered to bargaining unit and/or non-bargaining unit 
employees at the discretion of the Library in the manner in which the Library deems in its 
sole discretion to be the most efficient and effective use of Library personnel and 
resources . 

When the Library has three (3) or more days' notice of the need for additional hours the 
following procedure will be used: 

Irregular temporary hours will be offered to bargaining unit members by seniority on a 
rotation basis within the department, and next to other qualified bargaining unit members, 
before being offered to subs or other non-bargaining unit employees. 

The addition of irregular hours will not result in overtime, nor will it be a basis for change in the 
regular benefit status of employees working additional irregular hours. 

12 



ARTICLE XV 
LAYOFF AND RECALL PROCEDURE 

Section I. Rights and Defi11itions. The Library reserves the right to layoff employees 
for lack of work, lack of funds, the occurrence of conditions beyond the control of the Library, or 
where such continuation of work would be wasteful or unproductive. The Employer shall 
determine the type of activities to be curtailed and the classifications or positions to be affected. 

Section ~- Layoff by Classification. Layoffs shall be by classification. The first 
bargaining unit employees to be laid off in the affected classification shall be those employees 
with the least amount of "classification seniority," as defined in Article XIII, Section 1. 

Section 3. Order of Layoffs. The order of layoffs within an affected classification shall 
be: 

A. First, non-bargaining unit employees; 

B. Second, probationary employees; 

C. Third, regular employees (part-time and full-time) will be laid off last. 

Section 4. Part-Time Bumping. In such a case where a regular part-time employee has 
more classification seniority than a regular full-time employee and the part-time employee 
bumps the full-time employee, that position shall not change to a part-time position. 

ection 5. Bumping. In the event a laid-off employee is the least senior person in the 
classification affected by the layoff, employee may bump the least senior employee in any lower 
classification provided the employee has more bargaining unit seniority than the employee 
bumped. 

Section 6. Qualifications for Bumping. Tt is understood that in every case of 
displacement, the displacing employee must have the ability, with minimal training, to perform 
the work. Any and all employees displacing other employees due to layoff will have thirty (30) 
working days within which to demonstrate their ability to perform the work. Failure on the part 
of the employee to demonstrate employee's ability to perform the work required will result in 
being laid-off without further recourse. 

Section 7. Placement Upon Bumping. Employees bumping into another classification 
will receive the rate of pay and benefits for that classification. No bumping into a higher class or 
rate of pay is permitted. It is understood that the employee will have no choice of assignment, 
but must displace the appropriate employee with the least bargaining unit seniority. 

Section 8. Opportunity for Noo-Bargaini-ng Unit Work .Dw"ing Layoff. If regular full
time employees with seniority are laid off, it is understood that they will be offered the 
opportunity for any available non-union part-time or temporary jobs they may be qualified to 

13 



perform at the applicable rates of pay and benefits for those jobs. Jt is agreed that a laid off 
employee working in such a position during employee's layoff will be credited with the 
equivalent amount of time worked to extend the recall limitations referenced in Article XIII 
(Seniority), Section 3(F). 

Section 9. o Expansion of Duties. During a period of a layoff, the Library will not 
substantially expand the duties of non-union part-time or temporary employees simply to avoid 
rehiring permanent employees on layoff. It is understood that this provision is to be interpreted 
reasonably, as some part-time or temporary job duties may overlap with full-time job duties. 

Section 10. Order of Recall. When it is determined that the Library will recall, recall 
will be done in inverse order of layoff in the classification affected by the recall. It is understood 
that the Library retains the right to decide which services are to be resumed, and to recall those 
employees appropriate to the resumed services. 

Section 11. Notice of Recall. In the event of a layoff, an employee so laid off shall be 
given two (2) work weeks' notice ofrecall to work, mailed to the employee's last known address 
by registered or certified mail. In the event the employee fails to make themself available for 
work or fails to notify employee's supervisor at the end of this two (2) work week period of good 
cause for employee's unavailability, employee shall be deemed to have waived employee's 
rights to reemployment. During a layoff an employee should inform management if employee is 
to leave employee's place of residence for any extended time, and when and how employee 
might be contacted in the event of recall. 

Section 12. Alternatives to Layoff. Nothing herein shall be construed in such a way as 
to preclude negotiations between the Library and the Union aimed at avoiding layoff by 
exercising such alternatives as shortened work days, work weeks, or pay reductions. 

Section 13. Steward's Super Seniority. The Steward shall continue to work 
notwithstanding the Steward's position on the seniority list as long as there is a job in the 
Steward's classification that the Steward has the present ability to perform. This provision shall 
not apply to the Alternate Steward. 

ARTICLE XVI 
SAFETY, ACCIDE TS AND REPORTS 

Section I. Safety Committee. A Building and Safety Committee will be established to 
address health and safety concerns on an as-needed basis and shall be composed of two (2) 
members of the bargaining unit, and two (2) members of management. This committee will 
meet quarterly unless the situation needs immediate attention. 

Section 2. Equipment Deficiency Notification. It is the duty of employees to 
immediately report any hazardous circumstances or equipment defects to their immediate 
supervisor. If the supervisor does not consider these reports, the employee may take the matter 

14 



up with the Building and Safety Committee who will convene a meeting to discuss the matter 
with the Employer. 

Section 3. Accident Repot1ing. Any employee involved in any accident shall 
immediately report the accident and any physical injury sustained to their supervisor. The 
employee shall make out an accident report in writing on forms furnished by the Employer and 
shall tum in all available names and addresses of witnesses to any accidents. Failure to comply 
with this provision shall subject such employee to disciplinary action by the Employer. 

ARTICLE XVII 
WAGES 

Section l. Wage Range and Classifications. The classifications and corresponding 
wage ranges are as follows: 

Pay Range Classification 

1 None 

2 General Clerk 1 

3 Library Aide 

4 Library Assistant 1 

5 Library Assistant 2 

6 Library Assistant 3 

7 Librarian I/Library Assistant 4 

8 Librarian 2/Library Assistant 5 

9 None 

Section 2. Wage Rates. As of the effective date of the Agreement, and for each 
subsequent year of the Agreement, employees shall receive annual increases in wages, if any, as 
indicated in Appendix A of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XVIII 
HOURS OF WORK AND PREMIUM PAY 

Section l. Normal Work Schedule. A normal two-week pay period for regular full-time 
employees shall consist of seventy-four (74) to eighty (80) hours. A normal two-week pay period 
for regular part-time employees shall consist of at least forty (40) hours and no more than fifty
nine (59) hours. 

15 



Section 2. Flex ibl e Hours. The Employer shall continue to schedule employees as has 
been customary in the recent past. Unless scheduled otherwise by the Employer, employees may 

work more or less than eight (8) hours per day for up to forty ( 40) hours per week without 
receiving overtime compensation or suffering loss of pay, provided that the pay period 

limitations are not exceeded. The hours worked may also be non-consecutive. 

Section 3. Ove1time As ignments. 

A. Overtime assignments shall be made among employees engaged in similar 
work as far as practical on a rotating basis while still maintaining efficiency of operation. The 
Employer shall consider bargaining unit seniority in making such overtime assignments when 
initially invoking the above rotational system. All overtime must be authorized by the Library 
Director or the Library Director's designee. 

B. It is understood that this Section does not apply to hours worked immediately 
prior to or after a regularly scheduled shift, and shall not require the minimum two (2) hour call 
back. 

C. The Employer shall not arbitrarily change the schedules of work to avoid 
payment of overtime. 

D. Employees who work overtime without authorization to do so from the 
Library Director or the Library Director's designee will be subject to disciplinary action. 

Section 4. Ove1time Pay. Employees required to work in excess of forty (40) hours per 
work week shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half ( 1 ½) times the regular hourly rate of pay. 

For purposes of overtime, a work week shall commence at 12:01 a.m. on Sunday. 

Section 5. Changes in Pay Period Length. Should the pay period change from two (2) 
calendar weeks, the limits shall be adjusted accordingly. 

Section 6. Call Back and Call In Pay. Employees required to return after their regular 

scheduled work day shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours call back time pay and be 
compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1 ½) times the regular rate of pay. Employees who 
are called in outside of their regular work schedule shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours call 
in pay. 

Section 7. Rest Breaks. Employees shall be permitted to take one (I) fifteen ( 15) minute 
paid break for every four (4) to six (6) hour shift, and an additional thirty (30) minute unpaid 

lunch break for a shift of six (6) hours or more. Rest breaks shall not be combined, and shall not 
be used to reduce the length of the shift to leave early or to extend lunches. 

16 



ARTICLE XIX 
NEW CLASSIFICATIONS AND/OR CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION 

Section 1. New or Revised Classification. It is within the sole discretion of the Library 
to establish a new or revised classification based on business and operational needs. When the 
Library establishes a new or revised classification, it shall establish the pay rate, job 
description(s) within the classification, and minimum qualifications for the classification deemed 
appropriate. A classification is separate from a job description; any classification may contain 
different job descriptions. The Library shall notify the Union of such changes. In the case of a 
new or revised classification, the Library shall provide the Union with a copy of the job 
description, minimum requirements and assigned pay range. Within ten (10) days after 
notification, the Union shall have the right to initiate negotiations with respect to such rates of 
pay. Failure to reach agreement on the new rate of pay shall be subject to the Grievance 
Procedure beginning at Step 3. 

If no notice of intent to negotiate is given to the Library by the Union within the ten ( 10) day 
period, the rate of pay established by the Library shall be final. 

Section 2. Posting. The Library agrees that any proposed increase in duties and/or 
responsibilities which will result in a promotional opportunity, and for which a number of 
bargaining unit employees may be qualified, will be posted consistent with Article XIV to ensure 
that all employees have equal access to said promotional opportunities. 

ARTICLE XX 
HOLIDAY PAY 

Section l. Recognized Holidays. Eligible employees shall be entitled to holiday leave 
with pay on New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 41

\ Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve 
Day, Christmas, New Year's Eve, and Birthday (floating holiday). The Birthday (floating 
holiday) can be used during the month of employee's birthday prior to the end of the month. 
Eligible employees shall also participate in an in-service day, to be selected by the Library 
annually. 

Section 2. Eligibility for Holidav Pay. Employees must work their scheduled day before 
and their scheduled day after a holiday or be on authorized leave in order to be paid for the 
holiday. 

Section 3. Holiday Pay. Eligible employees who perform no work on a holiday shall 
observe these holidays with the time off at regular pay. Regular full-time employees will be paid 
for eight (8) hours of work. Regular part-time employees who regularly work at least twenty (20) 
hours and no more than twenty-five (25) hours will be paid for four (4) hours of work; regular 
part-time employees who regularly work over twenty-five (25) hours and no more than thirty 
(30) hours will be paid for five (5) hours of work. 

17 



Section 4. Work on a Holiday. When an employee is called back to work on a holiday, 
employee shall be paid straight time for hours worked in addition to holiday pay. 

Section 5. Floati11g Hollday. In the event one of the above holidays falls on a day the 
Library is closed, and if the Library does not recognize the holiday by closing on another day, 
employees will be allowed a floating holiday (separate from their Birthday floating holiday) that 
shall be taken anytime within thirty (30) days of the holiday. 

Section 6. Penalty for Missing Scheduled Holiday Work. Holiday pay will not be 
allowed an employee who, without authorization, does not work when employee is scheduled on 
the holiday. 

ARTICLEXXI 
LEAVES AND PAID TIME OFF 

Section 1. Paid Time Off (PTO). Paid time off ("PTO") shall be used by eligible 
employees when an employee misses work for any reason, including without limitation, for 
vacation, personal or sick time. PTO may also be used for time related to an employee's or 
employee family member's illness, injury, or health condition and any related diagnosis, care or 
treatment; time to attend an employee's or employee family member's preventative medical, 
dental, and vision appointments; time to seek care, counseling, victim services, legal services, or 
relocate or participate in civil or criminal proceedings related to domestic violence or sexual 
assault against an employee or employee family member; time to cover absences related to 
closure of the workplace or the employee's child's school due to a public health emergency; and 
time to cover absences related to any employee's or employee family member's exposure to a 
communicable disease. Employees working at least twenty (20) hours per week on a regular 
basis are eligible to accrue PTO. 

Section 2. Accrual of PTO. PTO is accrued based upon the employee's length of service 
and hours worked. In determining length of service, an employee who completes twelve (12) 
months of employment with the Library is deemed to have completed one year of service. 
Regular full-time and regular part-time employees are eligible to earn PTO hours on a pro-rated 
basis, according to the accrual rate per hour. Length of service determines the rate at which the 
employee will accrue PTO. Eligible employees will accrue PTO time beginning on their first day 
of employment, and are pennitted to begin using accrued PTO in accordance with the other 
terms of the Agreement on the ninetieth (90th

) calendar day after commencing employment, 
regardless of whether they are in probationary status at that time. PTO hours do not accrue while 
on unpaid leaves of absence, or on overtime hours. No PTO hours will accrue on hours worked 
in excess of forty ( 40) hours per week or two thousand eighty (2080) hours per year. The accrual 
rates are as follows: 

18 



Years of Service Accrual Rate/Hour Maximum Annual Accrual 

0 to <2 1 PTO Hour/13.00. Hours Worked 160 

2 to< 5 1 PTO Hour/10.40 Hours Worked 200 

5 to < 10 1 PTO Hour/8.66 Hours Worked 240 

10+ 1 PTO Hour/7.43 Hours Worked 280 

Section 3. PTO Bank. PTO not used by the end of the calendar year may be carried over 
into the following year. However, employees are not permitted to maintain more than a total of 
five hundred sixty (560) hours in their accrued PTO bank at any time. 

Section 4. Scheduled PTO Leave. Employees are asked to submit requests for scheduled 
PTO to their direct supervisor as far in advance as possible. For scheduled PTO of five (5) days 
or longer, employees shall be required to submit their requests at least ten (10) working days in 
advance of the requested leave. For scheduled PTO of less than five (5) days, the employee shall 
submit the request five (5) working days in advance of the requested leave. A request for 
scheduled PTO time for medical reasons will be granted consistent with federal law. When such 
a request is made in conjunction with the Family Medical Leave Act, it shall be made directly to 
the Library Director or the Library Director's designee. Approval or denial of a request for 
scheduled PTO time for non-medical reasons will be made at the discretion of the employees' 
direct supervisor and shall not be arbitrary or capricious. To the extent that documentation is 
requested for the use of accrued PTO, employees will be provided with at least three (3) days to 
provide requested documentation. 

Section 5. Unscheduled PTO Leave. Employees requiring unscheduled PTO time for 
unanticipated needs must inform their direct supervisor as soon as possible. If unscheduled leave 
is for more than one day, employees must inform their direct supervisor as soon as possible each 
day of any continued unscheduled absence. The Library may require the employee to provide a 
statement from employee's health care provider for authorization to return to work. An employee 
may not use PTO hours for missed time due to tardiness. An employee who has eight (8) or more 
days of unscheduled absences within a three (3) month period may be subject to non-disciplinary 
verbal counseling with employee's direct supervisor. Following counseling, continued excessive 
use of unscheduled PTO time may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

Section 6. Incremental Usage. PTO hours may be used in increments as low as one
quarter ( I /4) hour that does not go over the scheduled hours in a work week. 

19 

https://Hour/7.43
https://Hour/8.66
https://Hour/10.40
https://Hour/13.00


Section 7. Historical Conversion to PTO. As of January I, 2013, employees will accrue 
only PTO time. Employee Reserve Sick Leave Banks were frozen as of December 31, 2012 and 
Reserve Sick Leave Bank time has not be added to PTO accruals since that date. 

Section 8. Coordination of Benefits. An employee may use any portion of employee's 
PTO time for absences due to injuries or illness resulting from employment to provide an amount 
equivalent to full pay when combined with Worker's Compensation Insurance and any other 
Library disability plans. PTO leave will be charged only for the amount necessary to provide full 
compensation. 

If all PTO time is exhausted, employees will receive compensation in accordance with Worker's 
Compensation Insurance and any other Library disability plans. An employee may use any or all 
of employee's current PTO time for absences due to non-work related accidents or illnesses to 
provide an amount equal to full pay when combined with any other Library disability plan. 

Section 9_ Use of PTO Dw-ing FJvlLA Leave. An employee granted leave under the 
Family Medical Leave Act must use employee's accrued PTO time during the leave; any 
remainder of the leave period will consist of unpaid leave unless employee takes FMLA for 
employee's own serious health condition and is eligible to use any Library disability plan. 

Section 10. Use of PTO - Unpaid Holiday ' and Bereavement Leave. An employee may 
also use PTO time to cover non-open, non-holiday unpaid days (days which the Library is closed 
that are not negotiated holidays), such as Easter and Cherry Festival Parade Day, to provide 
protection against a loss of pay. 

If an employee is on a PTO leave and during such leave employee becomes eligible for 
bereavement leave, the employee's leave request may be amended to reflect bereavement leave. 

Section 11. Pay Out. Upon voluntary or involuntary termination, retirement, or death, 
an employee's accrued PTO hours will be paid out at the employee's current rate of hourly pay. 

Section 12. Reserve Sick Leave Bank Payout. Bargaining unit employees who began 
their employment with the Library prior to January I, 2013 were allowed to transfer Current 
Leave not used by the end of the year into a "Reserve Sick Leave Bank" and bank up to one 
thousand forty (1040) hours of reserve sick leave. For all employees with a Reserve Sick Leave 
Bank, between January 22, 2022 and March 15, 2022, the Library shall pay all such employees 
one-half (50%) of their current rate of pay, not to exceed 1040 hours ("RSL Payout"). The RSL 
Payout shall be made in one check, which will be deposited separately from any other 
compensation. Employees who began their employment with the Library on or after January 1, 
2013 are not subject to this Section. 

20 



ARTICLE XXII 
SHORT TERM AND LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 

The Library shall provide at its expense, upon eligibility for fringe benefits, for all regular 
employees and regular part-time employees, short term disability insurance providing a benefit 
of sixty percent (60%) of the employee's base compensation/salary after eight (8) days of 
continuous disability up to twenty-six (26) weeks. The Library shall also provide at its expense, 
upon eligibility for fringe benefits, for all regular full-time and regular part-time employees, 
sixty percent (60%) of employee's base compensation/salary following one hundred eighty days 
(180) of continuous disability, subject to specific plan benefit durations based on age at the time 
disability begins. 

ARTICLE XXIII 
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

Up to three (3) days bereavement leave with pay will be granted to an employee in the case of 
the death of a member of the employee's immediate family. "Immediate family" shall be defined 
as a spouse, domestic partner, child, parent, parent of child, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, 
parent-in-law, brother/sister-in-law, son/daughter-in-law, step-child, step-parent, aunt/uncle, or 
member of the employee's immediate household. An employee desiring additional days off may 
use PTO time for said extension. A "day" of bereavement leave will be calculated in the same 
manner as in Holiday Pay above. 

ARTICLE XXIV 
JURY DUTY 

Employees shall be granted a leave of absence with pay when they are required to report for jury 
duty. Employees shall be paid the difference between any jury duty compensation they receive 
and their regular wages for time necessarily spent in jury service. Seniority will continue to 
accrue to the employee while on jury duty. Employees will be paid for the full day after 
endorsing the jury check to the Employer, less mileage allowances. An employee released from 
jury duty during their regularly scheduled work hours shall report to work, however, such 
employees are never required to work more than their regularly scheduled work hours, including 
time spent in jury duty. 

ARTICLEXXV 
MILITARY LEA VE 

Employees who enter active duty with the Armed Forces of the United States or National Guard 
shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for the period of service or duty required and 
granted reemployment rights in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

ARTICLE XX.VI 
EXTENDED PERSONAL LEAVES 

The Library, for good cause shown, may grant an extended personal leave of absence without 
pay for up to sixty (60) days. No PTO leave time shall accrue during such leave. No step 
increases with the salary range credits that accrue during the leave shall issue if such leave 

21 



exceeds thirty (30) days. The Library has discretion to grant or deny such leave requests. All 
requests must be made to the Library Director or the Library Director's designee. 

ARTICLE XXVII 
HEALTH INSURANCE 

Section 1. Health Insurance Benefit. The Library shall provide health insurance 
coverage comparable to the current plan, subject to budgetary and varying market conditions. 
Health insurance coverage shall be available to all regular, full-time employees covered by this 
Agreement who are actively working for the Library. Health insurance coverage shall also be 
available to all regular, part-time employees who are covered by this Agreement, actively 
working for the Library, and are regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours but not 
more than twenty-nine and one-half (29.5) hours per week. 

Section 2. Employee Contribution. The regular, full-time employee premium co
payment will be ten (10%) of the applicable premium. The regular part-time employee premium 
co-payment will be fifty (50%) of the applicable premium. The applicable premiums are set forth 
in accordance with Large Group Rates, which are subject to the required number of full-time 
employees as set by the Affordable Care Act (ADA). 

Section 3. Notice to Union of Increase. The Employer shall provide the Union with 
written notice of any increase in health insurance premiums at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
effective date of the increase, if possible, and the Union and the Employer reserve the right to 
reopen negotiations on health insurance, upon written request to the other party, to consider 
alternate coverage to lessen the premium increase. The Employer agrees to meet with the Union 
within thirty (30) days of such request. 

If negotiations are requested by the Union or the Employer under this section, the employees 
shall not be responsible for the increased premium costs until thirty (30) days following written 
notice to the Union of such increase, or the effective date of the increase, whichever is later; 
provided, however, the parties shall have the option of negotiating with regard to alternative 
benefit levels and/or providers to lessen the premium increase. 

Section 4. Dependent Coverage. Subject to the premium co-payment, the Library shall 
pay the premium for the employee, employee's spouse and dependent children up to age twenty
six (26) as may be applicable under coverage provisions. 

Participation in this plan requires properly signed application forms by each employee. Effective 
date of coverage for new employees will be in accordance with the carrier's provisions. 

Employees are responsible for notifying the Employer of changes affecting coverage including 
the birth or death of a dependent, marriage, divorce, and when a dependent reaches the age of 
twenty-six (26) as may be applicable under coverage provisions. 

Section 5. Health Insurance for Retiree . The Employer will make available to all 
retirees, at retiree's cost, health insurance continuation through the Employer's then-current 

22 



health insurance provider at the then-current rate. An employee who desires to continue on 
Employer's health insurance as a retiree is required to notify Employer at least thirty (30) days 
prior to employee's retirement date in order to ensure that employee is eligible for such 
continuation. A retiring employee who is under the age of 65 and not Medicare eligible may 
continue with employee's current health insurance plan until employee reaches the age of 65 and 
becomes Medicare eligible. If, at the time of retiring, employee is eligible for the health plan but 
has a spouse who is age 65 or over and Medicare eligible, only the employee shall be eligible to 
continue under the Employer's health plan. A retiring employee who is 65 or over and eligible 
for Medicare and employee's spouse (of any age) shall be eligible to continue if the Employer's 
current health plan includes a Medicare option. A retiree who is eligible for continued health 
insurance under the Employer's plan shall be required to make monthly health insurance 
continuation payments to Employer on or before the tenth (10th

) day of the month prior to the 
upcoming month of coverage. A retiree who continues with the Employer's health insurance 
plan but fails to make timely payments, as required, or decides to leave the Employer's plan prior 
to age 65, shall not be allowed to re-establish health insurance coverage under the Employer's 
plan, subject to applicable laws and regulations. 

Section 6. Cafeteria Plan In Lieu of Health Insmance Coverage. Subject to the 
requirements of the plan, regular full-time employees who are eligible for health insurance shall 
receive up to nine hundred dollars ($900.00) annually, to be paid in quarterly installments if they 
elect not to be covered by the Employer's health insurance program. Subject to the carrier's 
rules, employees will still be eligible for Employer paid dental and optical coverage. Employees 
electing the payment must be covered by health insurance from another source to be eligible, and 
must sign an Employer waiver form. Such employees are subject to the open enrollment periods 
designated by the Employer's current health insurance carriers. 

ARTICLE XXVIII 
DENTAL AND OPTICAL INSURANCE 

Section I. Dental Insurance for Full-Time Emplovees. The Library shall provide dental 
insurance coverage comparable to the current plan, subject to budgetary and varying market 
conditions. Dental insurance shall be available to all regular full-time employees who are 
covered by this Agreement and actively working for the Library. 

Section 2. Dental Insurance Premiums. There shall be no deductions toward dental 
insurance premiums. The Employer shall provide the Union with written notice of any increase 
in dental insurance premiums at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such increase. 

The Union reserves the right to reopen negotiations on dental insurance, upon written 
notification to the Employer, to consider alternate coverage in lieu of a premium increase. The 
Employer agrees to meet with the Union within thirty (30) days of such notification. 

If an increase in premium would cause an employee to contribute to the premium, the employee 
shall not be responsible for such contribution until thirty (30) days following written notice to the 
Union of such increase, or the effective date of the increase, whichever is later. Provided 

23 



however, the employees shall have the option of selecting alternative benefit levels and/or 
providers in lieu of contributing to the premium. 

Section 3. Dental Insurance for Dependents. The Library shall pay the full premium for 
the employee, employee's spouse and dependent children up to age twenty-six (26) as may be 
applicable under coverage provisions. Participation in this plan requires properly signed 
application forms by each employee. Effective date of coverage for new employees will be in 
accordance with the carrier's provisions. 

Employees are responsible for notifying the Employer of changes affecting coverage including 
the birth or death of a dependent, marriage, divorce, and when a dependent reaches the age of 
twenty-six (26) as may be applicable under coverage provisions. 

Section 4. Dental Insurance for Part-Time Employees. A regular part-time employee, at 
employee's option, may participate in dental insurance coverage with the cost of the premium 
divided between the Library and the employee. For employees regularly scheduled to work at 
least twenty (20) hours per week but no more than twenty-nine and one-half (29.5) hours per 
week, the Library shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the premium. 

Section 5. Optical Insurance for Emplovees. The Employer shall provide optical 
insurance for employees comparable to the current plan, subject to budgetary and varying market 
conditions. Optical insurance coverage shall be available to all employees who are covered by 
this Agreement and actively working for the Library. Employees may add spouses and/or 
children at employee's cost. 

Section 6. Dental and Optical Insurance for Retirees. The Employer will make available 
to all retirees, at the retiree's cost, optical and dental insurance at the then-current rate. An 
employee who desires to continue on Employer's dental and/or optical insurance as a retiree is 
required to notify Employer at least thirty (30) days prior to employee's retirement date in order 
to ensure that employee is eligible for such continuation. A retiree who is eligible for continued 
dental and/or optical insurance under the Employer's plan shall be required to make monthly 
premium continuation payments to Employer on or before the tenth (10th

) day of the month prior 
to the upcoming month of coverage. A retiree who continues with the Employer's dental and/or 
optical insurance plan but fails to make timely payments, as required, or decides to leave the plan 
at any time, shall not be allowed re-establish dental and/or optical insurance coverage under the 
Employer's plan, subject to applicable laws and regulations. 

ARTICLE XXIX 
LIFE INSURANCE 

The Library shall provide at its expense term life insurance in the amount of twice the 
employee's annual wages up to a maximum benefit of $150,000 and term accidental death and 
dismemberment insurance in the same amount for each regular employee of the unit. 

24 



ARTICLEXXX 
CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS 

Section 1. Continuation of Premiums. The Library shall pay the required insurance 
premium for life insurance, health insurance, dental and optical insurance for the first (1s t

) full 
month following the date that an employee takes an authorized leave of absence. If the leave of 
absence is for a disability sustained while working for the Library, the Library shall pay the 
required premium for either six (6) months, or until the employee terminates employment, 
whichever comes first. Upon cessation of the Library's payment of insurance premiums, an 
employee shall assume responsibility for the full cost of the required insurance premiums to 
maintain coverage. The Library agrees to notify the employee thi11y (30) days before any 
employer paid premiums would be terminated pursuant to this understanding. 

Section ? . Lnsurance Coverage During Unpaid Leaves. In the event that an employee is 
on an unpaid extended personal leave pursuant to Article XXVI, the Library agrees to continue 
to provide health insurance and life insurance coverage at the employee's expense up to sixty 
(60) days. 

ARTICLE XXXI 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 

The Library shall provide Workers' Compensation protection for all employees as required by 
law. 

ARTICLE XXXII 
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 

Section 1. MERS Defined Contribution Plan. Effective November 1, 2016, or as soon 
thereafter as the Plan is established by MERS, regular full-time employees shall participate in the 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan ("MERS") Defined Contribution Plan, a 
qualified retirement plan under Section 401(a) of the IRS Code. Regular part-time employees 
after having worked for four (4) years shall be considered as working thirty (30) hours per week 
for the purposes of MERS, and shall, therefore, be eligible for MERS coverage. 

The Library shall contribute 8.0% of employees' compensation into the MERS Defined 
Contribution Plan. Regular full-time employees shall contribute 3.0% of their compensation into 
the Defined Contribution Plan. 

The MERS Defined Benefit Plan, which employees were covered by prior to the effective date of 
this Agreement, was frozen as of November 1, 2016. Employees will maintain their benefits 
pursuant to the MERS Defined Benefit Plan (Plan B-4, Benefit F-55/25 Option and the V-6 
Rider). 

Section 2. Employee 40 l(k) Plan. The Employer shall also establish and maintain an 
auxiliary retirement plan under IRS section 401(k) in which employees may participate. 

25 



If an employee contributes at least five percent (5%) of employee's base pay to the Plan, the 
Employer will contribute five and one-half percent (5 1/2%) of the employee's base pay to the 
Plan. If an employee contributes less than five percent (5%) to the Plan, the Employer will 
contribute two percent (2%) of the employee's base pay to the Plan. 

S ction 3. Changes in Ta Law. If the required contribution to Social Security exceeds 
the amount currently paid as of the effective date of this Agreement, minus the Medicare 
contribution, the Employer agrees to increase the 401 (k) contribution to an amount at least equal 
to said Social Security contribution. Should changes in the tax law reduce this benefit, the 
Library agrees to negotiate the effects of such changes on this benefit. 

ARTICLE XXXTIT 
LONGEVITY 

In addition to the base pay of the employee, additional payment shall be made depending upon 
the continuous length of time an employee within the bargaining unit has been employed by the 
Library in any job classification. 

Longevity shall be paid according to the following schedule in a lump sum payment at the 
beginning of employee's anniversary year. Should an employee leave employment by the 
Library before receiving full payment for earned longevity pay under this Article, the balance of 
the earned longevity pay will be paid to employee, as follows: 

Ten (I 0) years: $300.00 annually 
Fifteen ( 15) years: $500.00 annually 
Twenty-five (25) years: $700.00 annually 

In determining continuous service, any employee who voluntarily leaves the employment of the 
Library and subsequently returns to employment with the Library, for purposes of this Article, 
shall start from the date of employee's re-employment. 

ARTICLE XXXIV 
EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVES 

Section 1. Reimbursement. The Library will provide tuition reimbursement, per 
calendar year, for eligible employees' successful completion of educational courses taken 
towards obtaining an Associate's, Bachelor's or Master's degree that are related to the 
employee's current job description, deemed to improve job qualifications related to potential 
advancement opportunities within the Library and/or otherwise benefit the Library, as 
determined by the Library. The Library will provide tuition reimbursement to eligible full-time 
employees up to Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) per calendar year. For eligible regular part
time employees, the Library will provide tuition reimbursement up to Two Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($2,500). Reimbursement shall be for actual tuition costs only; costs related to 
books, supplies and other course-related expenses are not reimbursable. Reimbursement shall be 
restricted to accredited educational institutions, subject to approval of the Library. Employee 
shall be required to submit appropriate documentation demonstrating a minimum grade point of 
2.0 or a "pass" designation if the course is graded as "pass/fail" in order to be reimbursed for the 

26 



course. Employees desiring to take advantage of this educational assistance program must 
complete an application, provide a course description, and sign an acknowledgment stating that 
they are not receiving any duplicative, non-reimbursable funds through other programs for the 
same course(s) they seek reimbursement for from the Library, and agree to the repayment 
obligations set forth in Section 2. Employees are required to submit their application for 
educational assistance benefits to the Library on or before September 15 th in accordance with 
budgetary considerations. The Library Director or the Library Director's designee shall 
approve/deny applications for educational reimbursement within fifteen (15) days of submittal of 
all required information. Employees who pursue their continued education while employed by 
the Library through this program or otherwise shall not be allowed to work on coursework 
during scheduled work hours, excluding regular meal or other breaks. 

Section 2. Maxi mum Benefi t. Employees who voluntarily leave their employment with 
the Library within twenty-four (24) months of receipt of reimbursement for completion of their 
course(s) under this program shall be required to reimburse the Library on a pro rata repayment 
basis as follow: (i) employee who leaves within 6 months, shall be required to repay 100% of 
the total amount; (ii) employee who leaves within 6-12 months, shall be required to repay 75% 
of total amount; (iii) employee who leaves within 12-18 months, shall be required to repay 50% 
of the total amount; and (iv) employee who leaves after 18 months, shall be required to repay 
25% of the total amount. 

Section 3. Annual In-Service. The Employer agrees to enhance educational 
opportunities for bargaining unit members by providing an annual in-service. 

ARTICLE XXXV 
CAR ALLOWANCE 

Employees who are required by the Library to use their own automobile while on Library 
business shall be compensated at the then current Federal Standard Mileage Rate. 

ARTICLE XXXVI 
INCLEMENT WEATHER AND/OR UNSCHEDULED CLOSINGS 

If the Library is closed due to inclement weather or power outage, or for any other unscheduled 
reason, employees who were scheduled to work will be paid for the time the Library was closed 
and they were scheduled to work. The Employer will announce a close down of functions to 
local radio stations, social media and its website. All employees will be notified by their 
supervisors. If the Library is open, and in the event that an employee is unable to report to work 
after a good faith effort due to inclement weather, the employee shall have the following options: 

A. Take the day off without pay; or 

B. Use PTO leave time. 

C. Or make up hours during same pay period as scheduled by Employer. 

27 



ARTICLE XXXVII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1. IRS Section 125. Subject to the requirements of the plan, the Library will 
provide a Section 125 Flexible Spending Arrangement for payment of qualifying un-reimbursed 
medical and dependent care expenses. 

Section 2. Yearly Calendar. In January of each year, the Library agrees to provide, one 
year in advance, a working calendar for the year, including extra holidays, days closed and in
service days, in accordance with Library Board by-laws. 

Section 3. Leave Totals. The Library will provide a running total of each employee's 
current paid time off (PTO) on employee's pay check stub subject to the availability of this 
service by the Library's vendor at no cost to the Library. 

Sectjon 4. Home Department. Any employee not assigned to a regular department shall 
be supervised by the Administrative Department. 

Section 5. Caption . The captions used herein are for descriptive purposes only and do 
not constitute a substantive part of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XXXVIII 
SA VIN GS CLAUSE 

If during the life of this Agreement, any provision contained herein is deemed to be invalid by 
operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction or if compliance with or 
enforcement of any provisions should be restrained by such tribunal pending a final 
determination as to its validity, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. In 
the event any provision herein contained is so rendered invalid, the parties shall immediately 
enter into collective bargaining for the purpose of negotiating a mutually satisfactory 
replacement for such provision. 

ARTICLE XXXIV 
TERMINATION 

This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from January 1, 2022 through December 
31, 2024. If either party desires to amend and/or terminate this Agreement, it shall, sixty (60) 
days prior to the above termination date, give the other party written notice. If no notice is given, 
this Agreement shall continue in effect from year to year thereafter. 

28 



SIGNATORIES 

TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY TEAMSTERS STATE, COUNTY AND 
MUNICIPAL WORKERS LOCAL 214 

Tony Pletscher, Business Representative 

BY:_____ ________B~~'V~~J 
Michele P. Howard, Library Director Margaret E. Myers, Steward 

29 



SIGNATORIES -

TRAVERSE AREA 01STRTCT LIBRARY TEAMSTERS ST -
MU1 ICCPA 1 

I 

Tony Pletscher. Business Representative 

e.<lfv½LL..R~~J 
Michele P. Howard , Library Director 

29 



APPENDIX A - WAGE SCALES 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2022 

{3% increase) 

Start 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years 5 Years 6 Years 7 Years 8 Years 9 Years 

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 

1 $ 13.11 $ 13.57 $ 14.01 $ 14.47 $ 14.91 $ 15.35 $ 15.81 $ 16.25 $ 16.71 $ 17.14 

2 $ 16.47 $ 17.04 $ 17.61 $ 18.18 $ 18.75 $ 19.32 $ 19.89 $ 20.46 $ 21.02 $ 21.60 

3 $ 17.51 $ 18.13 $ 18.75 $ 19.37 $ 19.99 $ 20.62 $ 21.23 $ 21.87 $ 22.50 $ 23.09 

4 $ 18.58 $ 19.23 $ 19.89 $ 20.54 $ 21.21 $ 21.87 $ 22.52 $ 23.19 $ 23.82 $ 24.49 

5 $ 19.73 $ 20.44 $ 21.13 $ 21.83 $ 22.53 $ 23.22 $ 23.93 $ 24.63 $ 25.31 $ 26.01 

6 $ 20.98 $ 21.70 $ 22.46 $ 23.20 $ 23.94 $ 24.67 $ 25.41 $ 26.14 $ 26.88 $ 27.62 

7 $ 22.21 $ 22.99 $ 23.76 $ 24.54 $ 25 .34 $ 26.11 $ 26.89 $ 27.67 $ 28.45 $ 29.23 

8 $ 22.89 $ 23.68 $ 24.49 $ 25.31 $ 26.11 $ 26.91 $ 27.73 $ 28.53 $ 29.34 $ 30.15 

9 $ 23.61 $ 24.42 $ 25.22 $ 26.04 $ 26.86 $ 27.67 $ 28.48 $ 29.29 $ 30.10 $ 30.90 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2023 
{3% increase) 

Start 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years 5 Years 6 Years 7 Years 8 Years 9 Years 

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 

1 $ 13.50 $ 13.98 $ 14.43 $ 14.90 $ 15.36 $ 15.81 $ 16.28 $ 16.74 $ 17.21 $ 17.65 

2 $ 16.96 $ 17.55 $ 18.14 $ 18.73 $ 19.31 $ 19.90 $ 20.49 $ 21.07 $ 21.65 $ 22.25 

3 $ 18.04 $ 18.67 $ 19.31 $ 19.95 $ 20.59 $ 21.24 $ 21.87 $ 22.53 $ 23.18 $ 23.78 

4 $ 19.14 $ 19.81 $ 20.49 $ 21.16 $ 21.85 $ 22.53 $ 23.20 $ 23.89 $ 24.53 $ 25.22 

5 $ 20.32 $ 21.05 $ 21.76 $ 22.48 $ 23.21 $ 23.92 $ 24.65 $ 25.37 $ 26.07 $ 26.79 

6 $ 21.61 $ 22.35 $ 23.13 $ 23.90 $ 24.66 $ 25.41 $ 26.17 $ 26.92 $ 27.69 $ 28.45 

7 $ 22.88 $ 23.68 $ 24.47 $ 25.28 $ 26.10 $ 26.89 $ 27.70 $ 28.50 $ 29.30 $ 30.11 

8 $ 23.58 $ 24.39 $ 25.22 $ 26.07 $ 26.89 $ 27.72 $ 28.56 $ 29.39 $ 30.22 $ 31.05 

9 $ 24.32 $ 25.15 $ 25.98 $ 26.82 $ 27.67 $ 28.50 $ 29.33 $ 30.17 $ 31.00 $ 31.83 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2024 

(3% increase) 

Start 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years 5 Years 6 Years 7 Years 8 Years 9 Years 

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 

1 $ 13.91 $ 14.40 $ 14.86 $ 15.35 $ 15.82 $ 16.28 $ 16.77 $ 17.24 $ 17.73 $ 18.18 

2 $ 17.47 $ 18.08 $ 18.68 $ 19.29 $ 19.89 $ 20.50 $ 21.10 $ 21.70 $ 22.30 $ 22.92 

3 $ 18.58 $ 19.23 $ 19.89 $ 20.55 $ 21.21 $ 21.88 $ 22.53 $ 23.21 $ 23.88 $ 24.49 

4 $ 19.71 $ 20.40 $ 21.10 $ 21.79 $ 22.51 $ 23.21 $ 23.90 $ 24.61 $ 25.27 $ 25.98 

5 $ 20.93 $ 21.68 $ 22.41 $ 23.15 $ 23.91 $ 24.64 $ 25.39 $ 26.13 $ 26.85 $ 27.59 

6 $ 22.26 $ 23.02 $ 23.82 $ 24.62 $ 25.40 $ 26.17 $ 26.96 $ 27.73 $ 28.52 $ 29.30 

7 $ 23.57 $ 24.39 $ 25.20 $ 26.04 $ 26.88 $ 27.70 $ 28.53 $ 29.36 $ 30.18 $ 31.01 

8 $ 24.29 $ 25.12 $ 25.98 $ 26.85 $ 27.70 $ 28.55 $ 29.42 $ 30.27 $ 31.13 $ 31.98 

9 $ 25.05 $ 25.90 $ 26.76 $ 27.62 $ 28.50 $ 29.36 $ 30.21 $ 31.08 $ 31.93 $ 32.78 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: TADL Board ofTrust~es 

From · Janis L Adams 

Date : September 16. 2021 

Re: Material Terms of the TADL and Teamsters Ratified Union Agreement 

The Teamsters Local 214 State. County & Municipal Workers ("Teamsters") and the Traverse 
Area District Library ("TADL") negotiated the terms of their new Agreement, as the current 
Agreement was set to expire on December 31, 2021. On September 12, 2021, the Union members 
ratified the new Agreement. The Agreement, which is contained within the Board packet, has 
been submitted for adoption by the Board of Trustees (the "Board") as an agenda item at the 
September 16, 2021 Board meeting. This Memorandum shall set forth the material terms of the 
Agreement, as follows: 

• Term: The term of the Agreement is for a period of three (3) years (January 1, 2022 to 
December 3L 2024). 

• Annual Wage Lnc:r a ·e: Three percent (3%) annual wage increases each year. This 
represents no change from the current Agreement, which was in place for four (4) years 
and extended for an additional two (2) years. 

• lncr ase in PTO Accrual and Carrv-o er: Increased the annual accrued Paid Time Off 
(PTO) by approximately one (1) week for all union members, and the maximum PTO 
accrual that can be carried over from year to year from 520 to 560 hours. 

• Pay Lrt of Reserved Sick Leave (RSL): The RSL amount for eligible employees was frozen 
as part of the 2012-2015 Agreement as a result of conversion from separate paid time off 
banks for vacation, sick and personal leave, to just one PTO bank. The employee RSL 
accounts, which only terminated through retirement or death, created an ongoing liability 
for TADL over the last 10 years. The RSL payout will nd this liability canyover fr m 
year to year. Additionally, the early payout of the RSL accounts of eligible union 
members' current rate of pay will cost TADL less than pay out at their future rates of pay. 
The early RSL payout also allows eligible union members the opportunity to invest their 
lump sum payout amount in the retirement account(s) of their choice. 

• increase in Paid Holidays: New Year's Eve and Employee's Birthday (as a Floating 
Holiday to be used within the birthday month) were added as paid holidays. 

• Short-Tem1 Disability: Short-term disability (STD) up to 180 days (following 8 days of 
disability) was added as a new benefit. Employees who remain disabled after 180 days 
may apply for benefits under TADL's long-term disability plan (LTD). 

• Educational Assistance: The maximum annual educational assistance benefit available for 
full-time employees is capped at $5,000 and at $2,500 for part-time employees. Employees 
awarded educational assistance are required to remain employed with T ADL for two (2) 



Accounting Program Update 

Implementation & ADP Contract Total Start Up Annual ADP 

Training Software Cost Annual Fee Buyout Costs Cost Savings 

lncode - On Premise $55,730.00 $23,970.00 $11,019.00 $3,000.00 $93,719.00 $12,000.00 

lncode - Saas $55,730.00 $19,821.00 $3,000.00 $78,551.00 $12,000.00 

On-Premise 

license Fees: License fees ($23,970) are invoiced as follows: (a) 25% on the Effective Date (signed contract); (b) 60% on the date the 

applicable software is made available to us for downloading; and (c.) 15% on the earlier of use of the software in live production or 180 days 

after the Available Download Date 

Maintenance and Support Fees: Year 1 maintenance and support fees are waived through the earlier of (a) availability of the Tyler Software fcir 

use in a live production environment; or (b) one (1) year from the Effective Date. 

Implementation and Other Professional Services: Implementation and other professional services are billed and invoiced as delivered, at the 
rates set forth in the Investment Summary. 

Saas/Cloud 

Saas Fees ($19,821) are invoiced on an annual basis, beginning on the commencement of the initial term. This is because they are providing 

and supporting a cloud environment from onset of implementation. 

Implementation and Other Professional Services: Implementation and other professional services are billed and invoiced as delivered, at the 
rates set forth in the Investment Summary 

Motion: That the Director be allowed to contract with Tyler Technologies for Governmental Accounting Services for an amount 
not to exceed $80,000.00. 

https://80,000.00
https://12,000.00
https://78,551.00
https://3,000.00
https://19,821.00
https://55,730.00
https://12,000.00
https://93,719.00
https://3,000.00
https://11,019.00
https://23,970.00
https://55,730.00


TRAVERSE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY 
REVENUE 

MONTH ENDING 
AUGUST 31, 2021 

CATEGORY DESCRIPTION BUDGET 2021 
YTD 

2020 
YTD 

VARIANCE %OF 
BUDGET 

Property Tax (Current, Delinquent, Other) 5,164,735 5,169,627 4,989,475 (4 ,892) 100.1% 

State Aid - Library 83,750 84,472 77,974 (722) 100.9% 

State Aid - TBL 41,075 41,072 41,073 3 100.0% 

Local Support - TBL & Other Grants 18,400 103,313 15,309 (84,913) 561.5% 

FeeslServices 42,150 29,693 28,539 12,457 70.4% 

Sales 20,000 13,040 9,210 6,960 65.2% 

Penal Fines - $196,000 for this Category per budget 0 

Penal Fines - Grand Traverse Co. 168,250 147,612 168,240 20,638 87.7% 

Penal Fines - Leelanau Co. 5,900 6,604 5,888 (704) 111 .9% 

Penal Fines - Benzie Co. 21,850 20,549 21,855 1,301 94.0% 

Overdue Fines/Replacement Fees 32,000 10,191 23,564 21,809 31 .8% 

Interest & Dividends/Gains/Losses on Inv. 15,000 5,695 24,773 9,305 38.0% 

Rents & Royalties 2,200 0 850 2,200 0.0% 

Contributions 24,570 22,159 21,738 2,411 90.2% 

Misc Revenue & Reimbursements 1,500 27,539 1,456 (26,039) 1835.9% 

TOTAL REVENUE 5,641,380 5,681,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

Transfer In 200,000 200,000 0 

Use of Fund Balance 0 

TOTAL 5,841,380 5,881,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

TOTAL REVENUE, TRANSFERS & USE OF FB 5,841 ,380 5,881,565 5,429,944 (40,185) 100.7% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,841,380 3,930,693 3,413,572 1,910,687 67.3% 
REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENSE 1,950,872 2,016,372 

This statement reflects activity through the eighth month of the 2021 fiscal year. 

Percentage of the year completed is 66.7%. 



rL_ L_ L.. ~ c__: c__: L-.: L__: .__ ~ :__J ::.____J :__] __J __J _:____]~ ~ ~ 

- {~} -- INVESTMENT REVIEW September 09, 2021 

FIFTH THIRD 
Traverse Area District Library 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Presented by: 

Brian Lee 



___,L_. [_ L_ . ~ _J---' INVESTMENT REVIEW 
._,j 

FIFTH THIRD 
INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Table of Contents 

Economic and Financial Market Overview 

Fixed Income Market Overview 

Investment Policy Statement(lnstitutional Services) 

Holdings Summary 

Fixed Income: Individual Holdings 

Performance Summary: Asset Class 

Reconciliation Summary 

Disclosure Page 

Your Fifth Third Bank Team 

Officer Phone Email 

Portfolio Manager Brian Lee (616) 653-5423 briant.lee@53.com 

Relationship Manager Fred Ruffin (419) 259-0310 fred .ruffin@53.com 

Page 2 of 13Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 

mailto:fred.ruffin@53.com
mailto:briant.lee@53.com


.

_ ·

(__ L_ (__ L_ L_; 1L..: I,___ 
r , 

L....: '.___] -----' 
__J __J___J 

INVESTMENT REVIEW ~ 
FIFTH THIRD 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Economic and Financial Market Overview 

Data as of 8/31/2021 

Current and Projected Real GDP Growth Rates:I % of I 4th Quarter 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter IConsensus* IConsensus* 
Component Economy 2020 2021 2021 2021 2022t lPrivate Consumption 69.0% 3.4% 11.4% 11.9% 8.2% 3.9% 

Government · 17.7% -0.5% ·· ·4.2% -1.9% 1.1% 1.6% 
....o-uno.... -•· n • - ■ - ~ n • -non•-----• . • • • •••••• ,,., ,. • .-...,.,.. 1 11ll- ■ " U u . . ..........-.-,.au....., .. ,_._....,......... ■ . •...... ........•••• · •-• -LoUI H.-•u■ -.o- • • - • ■ -•--..U~u.u,_,, ..u_ ,_H_H_..,.,. .,.....,_O• •• ·••--•-•n-oo,o•••-

Private Investment 17.3% 24.7% -2.3% -4.0% 8.9% 6.4% 

Exports . ........ ..........._.... , ...... _____10..8%_,. __.., 22.5% . ..... ...-2.9% . __ ····--··-6.6°.¼__ ,....... ~--· ..... _6.0%_ ... __ 
Imports -14.7% 31.3% 9.3% 6.7% 13.5% I 5.0% 

' 

Total 100% I 4.5% 6.3% 6,6% I 6.1% I 4.3% 
Source: Bloomberg, as of 8/31/2021 *Bloomberg monthly economist survey 

View,eoint for Investors 
Economic Numbers: 

> The U.S. economy expanded at an annualized 6.6% rate in the second quarter, according to data from the Bureau of Economic 
Analysis. Personal consumption, the largest contribution to GDP, increased at an annualized rate of 11.9%, one of the largest 
gains in decades. Economists currently expect growth to progress as the U.S. economy continues to reopen. 

> Prior to the outbreak of the virus, the U.S. economy was experiencing positive momentum driven by the easing of trade 
tensions, improvements in manufacturing, and strength in the housing sector. The housing and manufacturing sectors in 
particular have been experiencing renewed strength in recent months. 

> While the pace of the domestic economic recovery is uncertain, our view remains that the domestic recession of 2020 is over. 
The combination of the domestic healthcare response, Federal Reserve monetary action, Government fiscal initiatives, and the 
continued reopening of commerce will lead to the resumption of economic growth in 2021 and beyond. 

Global Economic Update: 
> The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to have a major impact on life across the globe, and therefore economic activity, 

employment, and corporate earnings. Governments around the world are beginning to tighten COVID-19 related guidelines as 
global cases mount. 

> Lingering COVID-19 economic restrictions, vaccine distribution and administration data, government fiscal stimulus measures, 
central bank policy actions, geopolitical tensions, and inflation measures are topics that the Investment Management Group is 
monitoring. 

Page 3 of 13Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 



.

. .

2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

0.50 

O.OC 11I:•~ I 
._M <O N "'11:f' CO 

,--NM 
O 
CO 

V 
a:, 

0 
N 

0 
CD 
C') 

- Yield(Now) - Yield(One Month ago) ,_._Yield(One Year ago) 

L_ L_ L_ L_ L._~ L_: L__ L_ ..___ - l __l __.....J 

-~ J 
INVESTMENT REVIEW FIFTH THIRD 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Fixed Income Market Overview 

Data as of 8/31/2021 

Index 1-Month 3-Months YTD 1-Year 3-Years* 5-Years* 

BC U.S. lntm Gov/Credit -0.16 0.68 -0.30 0.17 4.69 2.75 
-■ . •• •• • • ·- u ,n• •·•..• • •·•HH 4 HO ■ Ml "-· uHr ,o....■ -uo-. , -•. --•--oa •-•-•· --• -•o· H• -n • ......, . .....uuu u , ., 1,0.0.00 0, ••·•--- o - ■ o.o•••• ..•·•••..••.. .. •-•·-•••·•·•• •u-.,u•u.000....,_••-••· HHO• ,...,_·•• ..••·-'"....• .. •• •.. •u•.. •·•·••..•·••""""...... . .., ___, 

BC Global Agg excl. USO -0.61 -1.15 -3.57 0.75 3.66 1.81 
II-m m •m •..••••..••••.... ..... ..... ,•••••u .. . ........... . . . •u•mn••u• ••• ••••••• ..••••••••••..••..••••••••••••........... ....•••n-u•u•m n n ••••••• •..•.•••••............. ....... ..•·•••••·••••• •• • 

BC U.S. TIPS -0.18 3.11 4.26 5.56 7.32 4.60 
,., ..,, , ,.,- ■ -•· • • • •-■ • • • « • _ _ _ .......... . .u, .... . ,.. . ..,- .......• • ••----- -- - ■ -•-- • · • · •-•· -H■ O•"--· •• · .. · •• u o- ■-•• • · -•· - • •••• -• · • • U■ Ooouuo,-o . ono • OH UHHH ■ -■•--•---•~ • -••-•-■ -uo.o - ■ - .. ..... . ...••• n•-•-- ■ •• -•- .......,._. ....., . ... -•-UO.,. 

....BC.u.s...Municipal.Bonds........-....... -0.37 ... ...., ,......... 0. 74m....... .... 1.53....................... 3.40··-······.............. ~.OB.........................3.30 ·--·... 
BC U.S. High Yield Bonds 0.51 2.25 4.55 10.14 7.11 6.66 

Source: Bloomberg, as of 8/31/2021 *Annualized return 

Fixed Income Market Comments 
> Intermediate term yields rose in August. The yield on the benchmark 10-year U.S. Treasury rose 9 basis points in August to end 

the month at 1.31 % and remains 40 basis points higher than at year-end 2020. 

> After a significant rise through March 2021, interest rates have been range-bound and may stay near current levels in the near
term, as accommodative global central bank policies and modest inflation remain in place. 

> Global central banks continued to support the global economy by maintaining low interest rates and implementing programs to 
increase market liquidity. 

YTD trends in the U.S bond market: 

> High Yield over U.S. Investment Grade 

> Municipals over Treasuries 

> U.S. over ex-U.S. 

Leading BC bond sectors YTD: 

> High Yield 

> TIPS 

> Municipals 

Lagging BC bond sectors YTD: 

> Global Aggregate ex-U.S. 

> Treasuries 

> U.S. Aggregate Gov't 

4.55% 

4.26% 

1.53% 

-3.57% 

-1.43% 

-1.43% 

U.S. Government Yields 
2.50 -r--------------------------, 

Source: Bloomberg 

Page 4 of 13Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 



__lL...: L-- L.... __J 
INVESTMENT RiVIEW ~ 

FIFTH THIRD 
INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Investment Policy and Asset Allocation Summary As of os131 12021 

Account Name: TRAVERSE AREA DIST LIBRARY Account Number: xx-xx-xxx-xxx7825 

1. Risk Posture 

Asset Class Risk Posture "Reference" 
Market 
Value 

Current 
Position 

Policy 
Target Variance 

Policy Range 
Min - Max (1) Policy Notes 

Equity 

Fixed Income 

Total Portfolio 

BofAML 1-3 Year Gov 

-
2,319,610 

2,319,610 

-
100.0% 

100.0% 

0% 

100% - p 

2. Asset Classes (1-5) & Categories 

Asset Class/Category "Policy" & "Strategic" Benchmarks 
Market 
Value 

Current 
Position 

Policy 
Target Variance 

Policy Range 
Min - Max 

%of 
Class (1) (2) Policy Notes 

1. Equity 0% 

Large Cap Domestic - 0% - - e 

Small & Mid Cap Domestic 0% - e 

Developed International 0% e 

Emerging Markets 0% - - e 

Other Equity - 0% 

2. Fixed Income BofAML 1-3 Year Gov 2,308,525 99.5% 100% (0.5)% 100% p 

Domestic BofAML 1-3 Year Gov 2,308,525 99.5% 100% (0.5)% 100% p f 

International - 0% - f 

High Yield 0% - - f 

Inflation Indexed - 0% - - f 

Other Fixed Income 0% 

3. Real Assets 0% 

REITs - 0% - e 

Global Infrastructure - 0% - e 

Other Real Assets - 0% - - e 

4. Alternative Strategies - 0% 

Diversifying Strategies - 0% - - e 

Opportunistic - 0% - e 

5. Cash & Equivalents 11,085 0.5% 0% 0.5% 100% 

(1) "P" indicates Client policy item; otherwise, Fifth Third guidelines assigned (2) Market value of categories are assigned to Equity and/or Fixed Income for risk posture calculation 
* Individual securities via Separately Managed Account (SMA); otherwise, mutual fund or ETF/ETN 

Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 Page 5 of 13 



_ -- 1 l __ _ L_ ---·- ·- L. ,_ r.._: , 1 r= 
INVESTMENT REVIEW ~ 

FIFTH THIRD 
INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Holdings Summary .i\s of 03 3 1 2021 

Account Name: TRAVERSE AREA DIST LIBRARY Account Number: xx-xx-xxx-xxx7825 

CUSIP / %of Unrealized EstAnnual Current 
Ticker Units Price Market Value Holdings Total Cost Gain or Loss Income Yield 

Cash and Equivalents $11 ,085.11 0.48% $11 ,085.11 $0.00 $3.33 0.03% 

Taxable Cash $11 ,085.00 0.48% $11 ,085.00 $0.00 $3.33 0.03% 

Taxable Money Market Funds $11,085.00 0.48% $11,085.00 $0.00 $3.33 0.03% 

FEDERATED 99FEDGOP6 11,085.00 $1.00 $11,085.00 0.48% $11,085.00 $0.00 $3.33 0.03% 
GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
PREMIER 

Cash Uninvested $0.11 0.00% $0.11 $0.00 $0.00 N.A. 

UNINVESTED CASH 999999CA1 0.00 $0.00 $0.11 0.00% $0.11 $0.00 $0.00 N.A. 

Fixed Income $2,308,525.10 99.52% $2,304,552.29 $3,972.81 $25,187.50 1.09% 

Domestic Fixed Income $2,308,525.10 99.52% $2,304,552.29 $3,972.81 $25,187.50 1.09% 

Domestic Fixed Income Government $2,308,525.10 99.52% $2,304,552.29 $3,972.81 $25,187.50 1.09% 

Bonds 

US TREASURY NOTE 912828XR6 35,000.00 $101 .24 $35,434.70 1.53% $34,922.07 $512.63 $612.50 1.73% 

05/31/171 .750 05/31/22 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 3130A5P45 80,000.00 $101 .81 $81,449.60 3.51% $81,144.80 $304.80 $1,900.00 2.33% 
06/12/15 2.375 06/10/22 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 313379Q69 55,000.00 $101.56 $55,860.75 2.41% $55,092.90 $767.85 $1,168.75 2.09% 
06/01/12 2.125 06/10/22 

US TREASURY NOTE 9128287C8 100,000.00 $101.44 $101 ,445.00 4.37% $100,523.44 $921 .56 $1,750.00 1.73% 

07115/19 1.750 07/15/22 

FEDERAL HOME LN BKS 3130AJY52 75,000.00 $100.03 $75,024.00 3.23% $74,855.25 $168.75 $93.75 0.12% 

08/14/20 0.125 08/12/22 

UNITED STS TREAS NTS 91282CAG6 25,000.00 $100.05 $25,011 .75 1.08% $24,986.33 $25.42 $31 .25 0.12% 

08/31/20 0.125 08/31/22 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 313380GJO 30,000.00 $101 .96 $30,588.90 1.32% $30,429.00 $159.90 $600.00 1.96% 

08/13/12 2.000 09/09/22 

US TREASURY NT 912828YKO 65,000.00 $101.42 $65,924.30 2.84% $64,601.37 $1,322.93 $893.75 1.36% 

10/15/19 1.375 10/15/22 

US TREASURY NT 912828TY6 55,000.00 $101 .82 $56,001 .00 2.41% $55,036.52 $964.48 $893.75 1.60% 

11/15/121.62511/15/22 

FEDERAL HOME LN BKS 313381BR5 40,000.00 $102.20 $40,878.40 1.76% $40,252.80 $625.60 $750.00 1.83% 

11 /13/12 1.875 12/09/22 

FANNIE MAE 3135GOT94 50,000.00 $103.08 $51,540.00 2.22% $52,192.00 ($652.00) $1,187.50 2.30% 

Page 6 of 13Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 



I 
L_ r r r t• l I I r- ·1 , -1 ___J _J - - ,L_ ' ' L._ '-·~ • ___, ' 1-~ ·-·-INVESTMENT REVIEW - - - - - - ~----· 

RFI'H THIRD 
INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

CUSIP / %of Unrealized Est Annual Current 
Ticker Units Price Market Value Holdings Total Cost Gain or Loss Income Yield 

01/23/18 2.375 01/19/23 

US TREASURY NOTE 912828P38 25,000.00 $102.29 $25,572.25 1.10% $25,694.34 ($122.09) $437.50 1.71% 
01/31/161.750 01/31/23 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 3130AJ7E3 60,000.00 $101.84 $61,104.60 2.63% $60,343.20 $761.40 $825.00 1.35% 
02/21/201.375 02/17/23 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 313382AX1 100,000.00 $102.97 $102,970.00 4.44% $103,191.50 ($221 .50) $2,125.00 2.06% 
02/08/13 2.125 03/10/23 

FREDDIE MAC 3137EAEQ8 100,000.00 $100.45 $100,449.00 4.33% $99,917.20 $531.80 $375.00 0.37% 
04/20/20 0.375 04/20/23 

FREDDIE MAC 3137EAER6 130,000.00 $100.31 $130,400.40 5.62% $130,236.05 $164.35 $487.50 0.37% 
05/07/20 0.375 05/05/23 

FANNIE MAE 3135G04Q3 85,000.00 $100.14 $85,120.70 3.67% $84,886.60 $234.10 $212.50 0.25% 
05/22/20 0.250 05/22/23 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 3133834G3 30,000.00 $103.44 $31,032.30 1.34% $31,363.50 ($331.20) $637.50 2.05% 
05/09/13 2.125 06/09/23 

FREDDIE MAC 3137EAES4 90,000.00 $100.06 $90,058.50 3.88% $89,772.80 $285.70 $225.00 0.25% 
06/26/20 0.250 06/26/23 

FANNIE MAE 3135G05G4 45,000.00 $100.09 $45,041.40 1.94% $44,903.25 $138.15 $112.50 0.25% 
07/10/20 0.250 07/10/23 

UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 912828S92 65,000.00 $102.03 $66,320.15 2.86% $66,706.25 ($386.10) $812.50 1.23% 
07/31/16 1.250 07/31/23 

FEDERAL HOME LN MTG CORP 3137EAEV7 75,000.00 $100.03 $75,023.25 3.23% $74,972.50 $50.75 $187.50 0.25% 
08/21/20 0.250 08/24/23 

FEDERAL HOME LN BKS 3130A3DL5 85,000.00 $104.32 $88,672.85 3.82% $89,995.38 ($1,322.53) $2,018.75 2.28% 
10/17/14 2.375 09/08/23 

FREDDIE MAC 3137EAEW5 35,000.00 $100.12 $35,040.95 1.51% $34,988.45 $52.50 $87.50 0.25% 

09/04/20 0.250 09/08/23 

FREDDIE MAC 3137EAEZ8 55,000.00 $100.00 $54,999.45 2.37% $54,950.50 $48.95 $137.50 0.25% 

11/05/20 0.250 11/06/23 

UNITED STS TREAS NTS 91282CAW1 55,000.00 $100.00 $55,000.00 2.37% $55,025.78 ($25.78) $137.50 0.25% 

11/15/20 0.250 11/15/23 

FANNIE MAC 3135G06H1 125,000.00 $100.06 $125,073.75 5.39% $124,969.90 $103.85 $312.50 0.25% 

11/25/20 0.250 11/27/23 

FREDDIE MAC 3137EAFA2 60,000.00 $99.97 $59,980.80 2.59% $59,940.60 $40.20 $150.00 0.25% 

12/04/20 0.250 12/04/23 

UNITED STATES TREASURY 91282CBE0 70,000.00 $99.61 $69,729.10 3.01% $69,729.30 ($0.20) $87.50 0.13% 

NOTE 
01/15/210.12501/15/24 

US TREASURY NOTES 91282CBV2 75,000.00 $100.10 $75,073.50 3.24% $75,125.98 ($52.48) $281.25 0.37% 

DUE 04/15/24 

UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 9128286R6 50,000.00 $105.06 $52,531.50 2.26% $52,900.39 ($368.89) $1,125.00 2.14% 

04/30/19 2.250 04/30/24 

Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 Page 7 of 13 



_L __ _ L __ ' ,. . . . , . . . . 
;_,_ ._._ ____, ___JL"_ ' l,_ L- {_ r r r 

~ ---J -----' -- - - -- - ~ lINVESTMENT REVIEW 
FIFTH THIRD 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

CUSIP / %of Unrealized Est Annual Current 
Ticker Units Price Market Value Holdings Total Cost Gain or Loss Income Yield 

UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 912828X70 50,000.00 $104.44 $52,220.50 2.25% $52,470.70 ($250.20) $1 ,000.00 1.91% 
04/30/17 2.000 04/30/24 

UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 912828XT2 50,000.00 $104.51 $52,254.00 2.25% $52,519.53 ($265.53) $1,000.00 1.91% 
05/31/17 2.000 05/31/24 

UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 9128282N9 75,000.00 $105.07 $78,799.50 3.40% $78,996.09 ($196.59) $1 ,593.75 2.02% 
07/31/17 2.125 07/31/24 

US TREASURY NT 912828YE4 75,000.00 $102.53 $76,898.25 3.32% $76,916.02 ($17.77) $937.50 1.22% 
08/31/19 1.250 08/31/24 

Total Marketable Holdings $2 .319.610.21 100.00% S2.315.637.40 $3.972 .81 S25.190.83 1.09% 

[Total Holdings $2,319,610.21 100.00% $2,315,637.40 $3,972.81 $25,190.83 1.09% l 

Page Bof 13Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 



fL_L_L__L L~ .____. _ _____J1..-......~---- - ~ ]INVESTMENT REVIEW ------
FIFTH THIRD 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Fixed Income : Individual Holdings -, ._ .3: 2CJ2 1 

Account Name: TRAVERSE AREA DIST LIBRARY Account Number: xx-xx-xxx-xxx7825 

% Total Fixed Estimated Current Individual Holdings by Category 
Category Income Market Value Annual Income Yield (% of Total Fixed Income) 

Domestic Fixed Income Government Bonds 100.00% $2,308,525.10 $25,187.50 1.09% 

Domestic Fixed Income Mortgage Backed 0.00% $0.00 N.A. N.A. 

Total lndiv Fixed Income Holdings 100.00% $2,308,525.10 $25,187.50 1.09% 

Total Fixed Income Holdings 100.00% $2,308,525.10 $25,187.50 1.09% 

100.00% Domestic 

Government Bonds 

lndiv Fixed Income Statistics Moody's Credit Quality S&P Credit Quality Maturity Schedule 

Fixed Income ------" 

120%Average YTM (%): 0.20 120% ] 
120% 

100% I 100% 
100%Average Maturity (yrs): 1.84 100% - 100% 

80%Average Moody's Quality: M1 80%--I - 80% 

Average S & P Quality: AA+ 60%60%7 - 60% 

Average Coupon (%): 1.12 
-

-

40% 40%40%--I 

Average Duration (yrs): 1.82 
20%20% --I 20% 

0% 0% 0%
AAA AA A BAA BA B Below Not AAA AA A BBB BB B Below Not <3yr 3-<Syr 5-<7yr 7-<10yr 10- 15+yr 

B Rated B Rated <15yr 

Statistics (Avg YTM, Avg Maturity, Avg Duration) and Maturity Schedule may not reflect revised maturity date of securities that have been pre-refunded, are callable or have mandatory put dates. 
Some asstes may utilize implied credit ratings 

Page 9 of 13Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 

https://25,187.50
https://2,308,525.10
https://25,187.50
https://2,308,525.10
https://25,187.50
https://2,308,525.10


L_ L_ L_ L__ L_ L....: l._,_ 
r ..____ __J l

--------' ___,j __JINVESTMENT REVIEW 
r --- ~ 

FIFTH THIRD 
INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Performance Summary : Asset Class ,:.s or o;- 31 2c,21 

Account Name: TRAVERSE AREA DIST LIBRARY Account Number: xx-xx-xxx-xxx7825 Investment Objective: EXTERNALLY MANAGED - FIXED INCOME-100% Fixed Income 

Policy %of Benchmark ITD 
Category Benchmark Range Holdings Allocation Market Value 1 Mo 3Mo YTD 1 Yr 3Yr 5Yr 10Yr 06/01/2004 

ICE BofAML 91 Day Treasury 0,0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 1.3% 1.2% 0,6% 1.3% 

Fixed Income 0% -0% 99.6% 100% $2,317,843,65 0.2% 0.1% 0.1% -0 .0% 2.6% 1.6% 1.6% 2,9% 

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Gov 0,2% 0.1% 0. 1% 0,2% 2.7% 1.7% 1.2% 2.2% 

Total Marketable Holdings (Net of Fees) 100.0% $2.326.472.04 0.1% 0.0% -0.0% 0.0% 2.5% 1.5% 1.4% 2.6% 

[ Total Holdings $2,326,472.04 

Page 10 of 13Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 

https://2,326,472.04


I 
- ~----~J ---- ~ -..,

INVESTMENT REVIEW 
~ '--'- .___ ..___. 

---' -~ · 
FIFTH THIRD 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Reconciliation Summary From 0110112021 To os 31,2021 

Account Name: TRAVERSE AREA DIST LIBRARY Account Number: xx-xx-xxx-xxx7825 

Total Holdings on 01/01/2021 $2,327,659.71 

Beginning Marketable Holdings on 01/01/2021 $2,319,860.02 
Beginning Accrued Income $7,799.69 

Beginning Value $2,327,659.71 

Contributions 

Cash Contributions $166.42 

Asset Receipts $0.00 

Other Contributions $0.00 

Total Contributions $166.42 

Withdrawals 

Cash Withdrawals $0.00 

Asset Delivery ($0.05) 

Fees ($3,850.57) 

Total Withdrawals ($3,850.62) 

Income Earned 

Interest Collected $19,050.05 

Dividends Collected $0.00 

Other Income $0.00 

Net Accrued Income ($1,365.94) 

Total Income Earned $17,684.11 

Net Change ($15,615.66) 

Ending Marketable Holdings on 08/31/2021 $2,319,610.21 

Ending Accrued Income $6,433.75 

Ending Value $2,326,043.96 

Total Holdings on 08/31/2021 $2,326,043.96 

Total Earnings $2,068.45 

Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 Page 11 of 13 

https://2,068.45
https://2,326,043.96
https://2,326,043.96


L_ L L-_ L_ L_ 
~ _J 

INVESTMENT REVIEW ~ 
FIFI'H THIRD 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

Disclosure Page 

Economic lndlcabrs: The U.S. _GDP (Gross Domestic Produdl ls the tctal market valte of all final goods and services produced in the United Sta:es In a given year, equal to tctalconsuma-, inwstment and government spendng, 
plus the value of exports, mi~us the value of imports. The Consumer Price Index (CPI) Is an inflationary lndlc.tor !hat me;;isures the charge In the cost ofa fixed basket of products and services. includirg housing, eledrlcity, food 
and transportation. The CPl 1s publls~ monthly and Is alsoc~lled coot-of-llvirg Index. Gold lndeK is the U.S. dollar per Troy ounce as reported from FactSet. The U.S. Industrial Production I ndexis a month ly Federal Reseve 
Board statistic for the total outpu: of U.S. mines, utilities and fac1Dries. Reference year is2012 at 100. The U.S. ISM Manufacturing Purchasing Managers' Index (PMI) is a monthly index relea;ed by the Institute of Supµy 
Management which tracks the amount of manufacturing activity that oa:urred in previous month. Ifthe index has a value below 50, it tends to indicate a contra:tion in the economy. A value substantially above 50 indicates economic 
growth. Value is between Oand 100. The Unemployment Rate tracks the number ofunemµoyed persons as a percenti:ge of the labor force (the td:al number of employed plus unemplcyed). The NFIB Small Business Optimism 
Index is an index derived from 1 Ocomponents using month~ surveys from a large samµe of res~ndents drawn fran the membership of the National Federation of Independent Business. West Texas Intermediate (Wll) Crude is a 
grade of crude oil used as a benchmark for oil pricing. 

Equity Indices: The Standard & Pool's (S&P) 500 Stock Index is a composite of 500 of the largest companies in the United States and it is often used as a measure of the overall U.S. stock market The S&P 100 Index, a sub-set 
of the S&P 500", measures the performance of large cap companies in the Uni1ed Stites. The Index comprises 100 major, blue chip companies across multiple Industry groups. lndivici.Jal stock options are listed for each index 
constituent The Russell 2500 Index mea;ures the performance of the smallest 2,500 companies in the Russell 3000 Index. This index is constructed to give a comprehensive and unbiased barometa-for the smal and mid-cap 
segment of the U.S. equity universe. The Morgan Stanley Capital International Index (MSCI) EAFE Index captures large and mid-cap representation acroos 21 Developed Markets countries around tt-e world, exduding the US and 
Canada. The index covers approximately 85% of the free flcat-aqusted market captalization in each country. 

The MSCI Emerging Markets Index captures large and mid-caprepresertation across 27 Emeiging Markets (EM) countries. The index covers approximately 85% of the free float-adjus1ed market capitalizatbn in each country ... The 
MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI) capttres large and midcap representation across 23 De,elq,ed Markets (OM) and 27 Emerging Markets (EM) countries. The index coversapproxmately 85% of the global investable equity 
opportunity set 

Fixed Income Indices: The Bloomberg BardaysU.S. Intermediate Government/Credit Bond Index is composed ofall investment grade, U.S. dollar-denomilated, fixed-rate Treasuries, government-related and corporate 
securities. Total return comp-ises price appreciation/dep-eciation and income as a percentage of the original investment The Bloomberg Bardays US Corporate High Yield Index measures the USD-denomina1ed, high-yield, fixed
rate corporate bond market. Securities are classified as high-yield if the middle rating of Moody's, Fitch, and S&Pis Ba1/BB+-/BB+ or below. The index excudes emerging markets debt The Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate 
Index is a flagship measure of global investment grade debtfrom 24 local currency markets. It is comprised of the U.S. Aggregate, Pan-Etrope Aggreg.te, Asian.PacficAggregate and Canadian Aggreg.te Indices. The Bloormerg 
Barclays US Municipal Bond Index covers the USO-denominated long-term tax exempt bond market. The Bloormerg Barclays Quality Intermediate Municipal Bond Index tracks the perfamance of municipal bonds issued afta' 
December 31, 1990 with remaining maturities between two and 12 years and at least$5 million in principal outstanding. The JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index (EMBI) Global tracks total returns for traded external debt 
instruments in the emeiging markets, including U.S. dollar-denominated Brady bonds, loans and Eurobon<i! with an outstanding fa:e value of at least$500 million. 

Cash & Equivalent Indices: The Bank of America (BOFA) Merrill Lynch 91-DayTreasury Bill Index is an unmanaged index consisting of U.S. Treasury Bills maturing in 90 days. The U.S. Dollar Index indicates the general 
international value of the U.S. dollar by avera!jng the excharge rates between the U.S. dollar and six major world currencies. The Fl NEX computes this by using the rates suppled by sane 500 banks. The iMoneyNet Government 
Institutional Money Market Funds includes all national institutbnal money market fun<i!. The index exdudes restricted funds and funds with assets less than $100 million. Only domestic share classes and master cla;ses funds are 
reported to iMoneyNet. The iMoneyNet Tax-Free National Institutional Money Market Funds indudes all national institutional and municipal money market funds . Portfolio holdirgs oftax-freefunds include rated and unrated 
demand notes, rated and unrated general market notes, commercial paper, put bonds - six months or less, put bona; - over six months, Alternative Minmum Tax (AMT) paper and other tax-free holdings. A tax-free money market 
fund is tax-free at the federal level forthe majority of investors. For a fund to call itself "tax-free,' no more than 20% of its assets may be invested in paper that is subject to AMT. 

Real Asset Indices: S&P U.S. Real Estate Investment Trust (REil) Composite Index tra:ks the market performance of the U.S. real estate investment trusts, kno.vn as REITs. The REIT Composite consis1s ofapproxmately 100 
REITs with at least$100 mllion in market capitalization, chooen for their liquidity and represents a balance of property types and geographi:: locations. Mortgage REITsare not eligible fer inclusion. S&P Global Infrastructure NR 
tracks 75 companies from around the world chosen to represent the listed infra;tructure industry and indudes three distinct infrastructure dusters: ener!l{, transportatbn and utilities. The Real Asset Benchma-k is a custom-blended 
real assets benchmark consisting of 100% Standard & Poor's US REIT Composite Index as of 1/1/21 and a blend of the S&P U.S. R Err and the S&P Global Infrastructure N R prior to 1 /1/21 (see detailed descriptions above in Real 
Asset Indices). 

Alternative Indices: The Thompson Reuters/Core Commodity- CRB Index is based on Exchange Traded Futures. The Index represents 19 canmodities, grouped by liquidity into 4 groups. Petrdeum products capped at 33%, 
other 3 groups equal weighted. The S&P GSCI is widely recognized as the leading measure of general commodity price movements and inflation in the world economy. The S&P GSCI Gold Total Return Index, a sub-inde< of the 
S&P GSC I, provides investors with a reliable and publidy availa~e benchmark tracking the COMEX gold future. The index is desgned to be tradable, readily accessible to market particpants and cost effi::ientto implement The 
HFRX Global Hedge Fund Index is designed to be representative of the overall canpooition of the hedge fund universe. It is comprised of all eligible hedge fund strategies; induding but not limied toconvertble arbitri:ge, distressed 
securities, equity hedge, equity market neutra( event driven, macro, merger arbitrage, and relative vaue arbitri:ge. The strategies are asset weghted based on the distribution of assets in the hedge fund industry. 

Proprietary Benchmarks: The Reference Benchmark' consists of the S&P 500 and the Bloombeig Barclays U.S. Intermediate Government/Credit Bond index weighted based on the investment objective of the account The 
Strategic Bench nark" consists of the representative asset class benchmarks weighted based on the policy allocation of the accourt. 

Investments in foreign markets entail special risks such as currency, political, economic and market risks. Small compary investing inwlves s~cificrisks not necessarily encountered in large canpallf investing, such as increased 
volatility . Mldcap stocks generally have higher risk characteristics than large cap stocks. All bonds are sugect to a.vailabillty and yields are subject to change. Market value will fluctuate. Bond values will decline as interest rates rise. 
The bond's income may be subjectto certail state and local taxes depending upon ywr taxsta:us and/or the feda-al alternative mirimum tax. 

Indices defined above are reflective of standard benchmarks used for perfcrmance reporting or market ova-views. Ifyou have requested that we use different or custom benchmark for your performance meastrements, that 
benchmark will not be defined above. Contact your portfolio mani:ger for information regarding the benchmark. Net offee performance will include only fees paid or rebated directly. Fees paid by invoi::e or charged to another accourt 
are not included in this calcuation. Performance since 1/1/17 is calculated using daily prices and reported monthly. Priorto this time, performance was calculated based on month-end pricing. Changes in asset categorization, operilJ 

Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 Page 12 of 13 

https://Aggreg.te
https://Aggreg.te


rI...,.____ 
I 

---J - · -..J 
I 

~ INVESTMENT REVIEW 
FIFTH THIRD 

INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES 

and closing of accoun1s and transfening of asse1s between accoun1s could imP3ctreporting of performanceresul1s. lndec performanceshown within this presenta:ion is not representative of a managed accourt. You cannot invest 
directly in an index. I ndces are unmanaged and do not ina.ir investment management fees. Past performance is no guarantee of futureresul1s. 

MainStreet Investment Advisors, LLC a wholly-owred subsidary and Franklin StreetAdvisors, Inc. an indirect subsidiary of Fifth Third Bank, National Association are affiliated companies within the Fifth Third Bank Wealth &Asset 
Management division. ClearArcCapital, Inc. was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fifth Third Bank, National Association and was affiliated with the Fifth Third Bank Wealth & Asset Management division through 12/31/19. On 1/1/20, 
ClearArc Capital, Inc. merged into MainStreet Investment Advisors, LLC. 

Effective 1/1/20, 5/3 Dividend Growth and 5/3 Dividend Growth Pl are managed by Franklin Street Advisors, Inc., and are renama:I Franklin Street Dividend Growth and Frankin Street Premium Income, respectively. Prior to 1/1/20, 
these strategies wa-e managed by Ffth Third's Investment Management Group from 12/1/18 - 12/31/19 and ClearArcCapital, Inc. fran inceptiCJ1 to 11/30/18. There is a 30 bp fee associated with these strateges in addition to Fifth 
Third investment managementfees (exduding ERISA and IRA accoun1s). 

Franklin Street ESG is managed by Franklin StreetAdvisors, Inc. There is a 30 bp fee associated with these strategies in addition to Fifth Third investment managementfees (exduding ERi&\ and IRA accoun1s). 

MSA S&P 500 Equity Index SRI is mana!J:ld by MainStreet lnvestmert Advisors, LLC. Prior to 1/1/20, the strategy was managed by ClearArc Capital, Inc. There is a 30 bp fee associata:I with these strategies in addition to Fifth Third 
investment mana!J,lment fees (excludng ERISA and IRA accourts). 

Equity and S&P 500 Characteristics are provided by FadSet Credit qualify and ma:urify schedule infamation for fixed income funds is provided by Morringstar and FactSet 

© 2021 Morningstar, Inc. All Righ1s Reserved. The information cortaina:I herein: (1) is proprietary to Mornirgstar and/or its con1ent providers; (2) may not be copied or distrbuted; and (3) is not warranted tobe accu-ate, complete or 
timely. Neither Morningstar nor i1s ca,tent providers are responsible for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information. Past performance is no guarantee of future resul1s. 

Fifth Third Bank may rely on outside sourcesforvariouscomponen1s of valuation and indexing information. Fifth Third Bank has exercised reasona~e professional care in the preparation of this performance report HONever, we 
cannot guarantee the accuracy/completeness of all informati:m and we are not responsible for any clerical, computational, or other errors contained withi1 the report 

Where applicable, the market values on performance reports inck.ide accruals. Accruals are not included in the market value of other repor1s. Positiais are repor1ed as of trade-date (notsette date). 

Market values lists:! refled the most recent price information or estimate available. The method and frequency of pricing assets varies depending on thetypeof asset; therefore, the price shown on your statement for certai1 assets 
may not be a current value as of the statementdate. 

Asset AllocatiCJl does not assure or guarantee better performance and cannot eliminate the risk of investment loss. Alternative Strateges and hedgirg are subjedto a higher degree of market risk than a well-diversified portfolio. An 
investor should understand the cos1s, cash flows and risks inherent in a stratew prior to making any investment decision. There are no guarantees that any strategy presented will perform as intended 

Information in the endosed materials may inclllle historical investmert performance for accoun1s in which Fifth Third Bank may have full investmentauthorify, shared investment responsibilify, or may not have any investment 
responsibility at all. The governirg documentfortheaccountdelineates the role and investment respoosibiitythat Fifth Third Bank has for these assets and should be reviewed if tha-e are any questiCJ1s. 

The opinions expressed herein are ttDse of Fifth Third Bank and may not actually come to pass. This information is current as of the date of this presentation and is subjed to change at any time, based on market and other 
conditions. This informction is intends:! for educatiCJ1al purposes only and does not constitute the rendering of investment advice or specific recanmenda:ions on investmert adivities and trading. The mention of a specificsecurify 
within this presentation is notintenda:I as a solicitation to buy or sell the specifc security. 

Representatives of Fifth Third Bank do not offer or provi:le legal, accountirg or tax advice. Please consult with your attorney, accountant and/or tax professional as needed. 

Investments and investment services are offered througi or made available by one or more of Fifth Third Bancorp's indired subsi:liaries, induding Fifth Third Bank, National Association. Investments, Investment Services and 
Insurance: 

.gency 

nsurance products n,ade available through Fifth Third lrisuranceAgency, Inc, 

Provided by Brian Lee on September 09, 2021 Page 13 of 13 



Morning Market Report m 
FIFTH THIRD BANK 

9/18/21 9:10 AM Compiled by: Investment Strategy Team 

Equity Markets (Total Rttuma (change In 01Gtln1 prlct + dividend yield)) Other Markets 

Index Level Dally MTD YTD 1-Year Index Level Dallv MTD YTD 1-Year 
MSCI AC World 737.08 0.26% -0.47% 15.69% 30.56% U.S. Dollar 92.55 -0.08% -0.08% 2.90% -0.54% 

MSCIWorld 3127.71 0.38% -0.34% 17.90% 32.38% Gold (oz.) 1794.06 -0.58% -1 .08% -5.49% -8.19% 

S&P 500 4480.70 0.85% -0.86% 20.52% 33.70% Sliver (oz.) 23.84 -0.06% -0.22% -9.70% -12.14% 

S&P400 2701.63 1.07% -1 .80% 18.13% 44.59% 011 (barrel) 72.61 3.05% 6.00% 49.65% 89.68% 

S&P 100 2059.69 0.83% -0.88% 20.97% 32.57% Commodity (CRB) 557.75 0.48% -0.34% 25.67% 37.43% 

RuHall 2500 919.58 1.08% -1 .24% 16.05% 45.63% Bltcoln (USD) 47941 .58 2.38% 1.98% 65.34% 341 .15% 

RUHlll 2000 2234.45 1.11% -1 .68% 13.87% 46.72% Bbarg Muni 1358.71 0.00% 0.03% 1.56% 3.42% 

DJIA 34814.39 0.68% -1.45% 15.34% 26.74% Bbarg Int. G/C. 2373.48 -0.06% 0.04% -0.26% 0.14% 

NASDAQ 15161 .53 0.82% -0.61% 18.21% 36.48% Bbarg 1-3Y G/C. 1374.38 0.00% 0.00% 0.18% 0.39% 

MSCIEAFE 2372.26 -0.75% 0.81% 12.93% 27.36% Bbarg Agg. 2381.38 -0.10% 0.25% -0.44% 0.02% 

Stoxx Europa 600 463.91 -0.80% -1 .41% 19.13% 28.63% Bborg High Yield 2455.65 0.03% 0.46% 5.03% 10.93% 

MSCIEM 1288.68 -0.56% -1.41% 1.47% 18.48% Bbarg U.S. TIPS 368.95 -0.02% 0.45% 4.73% 6.51% 

S&P U.S. REIT 1753.58 0.31% -1 .54% 28.01% 36.28% Bbarg ax. USD 514.23 0.00% 0.06% -3.51% 0.87% 

Alerlan MLPI 293.62 0.52% 1.47% 37.34% 70.89% JPMEM Bond 1005.36 0.05% 0.30% 1.03% 4.33% 

S&P Global lnfraatr 2692.11 -0.21% -0.14% 8.15% 20.70% LIBOR 1-month: 0.08% 3-month: 0.12% 12-month: 0.22% 

HFRX Global HF 1438.48 0.01% 0.22% 4.20% 9.53% Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR): 0.05% Fed Funds: 0.25% 

Fifth Third (FITS) 40.27 3.31% 3.63% 48.14% 91 .02% Bankrata.com 30yr fixed mortgage average: 3.02% Prima Rate: 3.25% 

4 
-

Corl!orate A and Treasuries Yield Curves 

lndusbialA 
3 

-

Munlcil!al Yield Curves 

Muni A+AA- GO 

y 
3 - Treasuries 

1.99 
2.46 

2.70 2.83 2.84 

y 2 
-MuniAAGO 
- MuniAAAGO 

1.264 
1.539 . 

1.678 
1.834 1.898 

,. ----A. 

I 
e 
I 
d 

2 

1 

0 

0.16 

0.03 

0.18 

0.04 

0.23 

0.07 

0.33 

0.21 

0.54 

u ..... 

1.08 

0.81 

1.53 ---1.31
1.10 

--
1.87 

i 
e 
I 
d 

1 

0 

0,288 0.293 . . 
0.157 0.162 
0.078 0.083 

0.307 

0.174 
0.09 

0.329 

0.187 
0.1)91 

0.421 

0.266 
0.16 

0.718 

"'"' 
u .-41> 

0.955 

u.780 
0.639 

1.098 
o942 

1.384 
1.216 

1.528 
1.356 

1.685 
1.512 

1,749 
1,577 

-1 -1 
3M 6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 5Y 7Y 10Y 15Y 20Y 25Y 30Y 3M 6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 5Y 7Y 10Y 15Y 20Y 25Y 30Y 

Overnight News 
> U.S. equity futures were mixed pre-market and Treasury yields jumped. The dollar rose. Australia will acquire nuclear submarines in a deal 

with the U.S. and Britain in response to the recent developments in the Pacific region and worry of Chinese influence. 

> European stocks rose while bond yields dipped. The U.K. will get about 10 billion pounds in investments over the next five years from the 
UAE. Clean energy, infrastructure and technology will all be a part of the commitment. 

> Shares across the Asia Pacific region were down. Normal operations will continue at China's Ningbo port after the Typhoon hazards have 
passed. Around 200 ships, including container ships, were waiting to enter the port. 

> West Texas Intermediate (WTI) futures and Brent Crude steadied along with Natural Gas. Brent edged up toward $76 a barrel in early 
morning pricing. Gold fell for a second day. Copper and aluminum also pulled-back. 

> The European Central Bank will investigate trading operations of large lenders as well as study reputational and operational risks banks face 
next year as part of climate stress tests. 

Economic Reports 
> Retail sales in August unexpectedly grew 0.7% month-over-month, better than estimates of a decline of 0.7%. Autos were the primary 

detractor from the reading as retail sales excluding autos grew 1.8%. 

> Initial Jobless Claims and Continuing Claims were 332k and 2.665 million, respectively. Jobless claims came in above estimates of 322k and 
continuing claims were below expectations of 2.740 million. 

> Export growth in Japan slowed to 26% in August from July's 37% pace. The reading missed estimates and was the third consecutive month 
of declines with car shipments slow. Imports grew 45%, up from 29% in July. 

> The Philadelphia Fed business outlook jumped to 30.7 in September, above estimates of 19.0. 

Company News 
> Southwest Airlines (LUV) introduced a new incentive program to help urge employees to get vaccinated. The airline company will offer 

increased pay for staff who show proof of full vaccination by the middle of November. 

> DoorDash (DASH) received an upgraded rating of buy from Bank of America (BAC). The bank claimed there is "robust" five-year growth 
opportunity in DoorDash, and mentioned the company's upside to 2021 estimates. Shares of DoorDash were up 3% pre-market. 

> Cisco (CSCO) received multiple outperform and overweight calls from Wall Street after its investor day. Credit Suisse upgraded its rating of 
the company, citing Cisco's ability to increase recurring revenue streams. Shares of Cisco Systems were up pre-market. 

> The auto industry is continuing to be crippled by the global chip shortage as the industry is losing an estimated 20-30% of potential sales 
each month. Ford (F) dealers in India may face legal action from customers after factories in the country were shut down. 

> Wynn Resorts (WYNN) and Las Vegas Sands (LVS) continued to fall as the Macau-related companies presented worries for investors. 
JPMorgan (JPM) downgraded both firms to neutral weight saying the uncertainty in China is worrisome. 



L 

Traverse Area District Ubrary Polley Manual Finance Section 2.0 

Z.7 INVESTMENT POUCY STATEMENT 
(Surplus Funds SUbfact to Mlchlpn Publlc Act 20 af 1941) 

Statement of Purpose 
It Is the policy of Traverse Area District Library ("TAOL•) to Invest Its funds In a mannerthatwfll 
provide the highest Investment retum with the maximum security, while mHtln1 the d1Dy cash 
flow needs ofTADL. and complyl111 with 1111 state statutes .,vemln1the Investment of public 
funds. 

II, Scape al the Polley 
This Investment policy applies to all financial assets of TADL that are not employee retirement 
funds. These funds Include the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital 
project funcb, tru5t and qency funds and any new fund established by TADL subject to the above 
limitation. 

Ill. lnvestment()bJecdves 
In priority order, the primary objective ofTADL Investment activities under this policy statement 
shall be: 

a. Safety: Safety of prtnclpal Is the foremost objective ofthe Investment program. 
Investments shall be undertaken In a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 
capital In the overall poltfollo. 

b. Diversification: lhe Investments wHI be diversified by security type and Institution In order 
that potential losses on lndlvtdual securities do not e,cceed the Income pJlt!rated from the 
remainder of the portfolio. 

c. Liquidity: 1he investment Portfolio shall remain sufficiently Aqukl to meet all operattns 
requirements that may be reaonabtv anticipated. 

d. Retum on invutment The Investment portfolio shall be desianecf with the objective of 
obtaining a rate of return throupout the budptary and economic cycles, taking into 
account the investment risk constraints and the Cish flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

N. Deleptipn of Authority to Make lnveslmeats 
Authority to manaae the Investment proaram is derived from MO.41.76 and TADL Board 
resolutions desllnatlng depositories. Management responslblltty for the Investment proaram Is 
hereby delqated to the TADL Director ("Director"'), who shall establish writtlln procedures and 
Internal controls for operatln& the Investment propam consiStent with this investment poUcy. 
Procedures should lndude references to: safetceepln,, deliwry vs. payment, investment 
accounting, repurdlase agreements, wire transfer agreements, collateral/depository aereements 
and bJnkJns service contnKts. No per,on may engage In an Investment transaction except as 
provided under the tenns of this pollcy and the procedures established by TADL. The Director shaH 
be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to raa:ulate 
the activities of subordinate offlclals. 

V. Authorized lllloelbnent lnstnnnenb 
TADL Is Umited to Investments authorized by Mtchlpn Public Ac;t 20 of 1943 (1943 PA 20), u 
amendad, and may Invest In the foftowlng: 

a. Certfftcates of deposit, &aYlnp accounts, deposit accounts or deposll'ory receipts ofa 
finandal Institution. The flnanclal Institution must: 

Pap1of2 



Traverse Area District Library Policy Manual Finance Section 2.0 

i. Be a state or nationally chartered bank or a state or nationally chartered savings 
and loan association, savings bank or credit union whose deposits are insured by 
an agency of the United States Government, and 

ii. Maintain a principal office or branch office located In the State of Michigan under 
the laws of this state or the United States. 

b. Bonds, securities or other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality 
of the United States. 

c. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications by 
at least two standard rating services and that matures not more than 270 days after the 
date of purchase. 

d. Repurchase agreements of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the United 
States. 

e. Bankers' acceptances of United States banks. 
f. Obligations of the State of Michigan or any of Its political subdivisions that at the time of 

purchase are rated as investment grade by not less than one standard rating service. 
g. Mutual funds registered under the federal Investment Company Act of 1940, composed of 

the investment vehicles described above. 
h. Obligations described above If purchased through an interlocal agreement under the 

Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 (EK Sess) PA 7, MCL 124.501 to 124.512. 
I. Investment pools organized under the Surplus Funds Investment Pool Act (1982 PA 367, 

MCL 129.111 to 129.118). 
j. Investment pools organized under the Local Government Investment Pool Act (1985 PA 

121, MCL 129.141 to 129.150). 

VI. Safekeeplrc and Custody 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements and financial institution 
deposits, entered into by TADL shall be on a cash (or delivery vs. payment) basis. Securities may 
be held by a third party custodian designated by the Director and evidenced by safekeeping 
receipts as determined by the Director. 

VII. Standard of Prudence 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under the circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise In the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital, as 
well as the probable income to be derived. 

Adopted February 12, 1998 / Revised April 21, 2016 

Motion by: \< o..c...\11 o..d u_r ia..v, 

Support: 

Adopted: 0 N 

Date 

Page2of2 



Accounting Program Update 

Implementation & ADP Contract I Total Start Up Annual ADP 

Training Software Cost Annual Fee Buyout Costs Cost Savings 

lncode - On Premise $55,730.00 $23,970.00 $11,019 .00 $3,000.00 $93,719.00 $12,000.00 

lncode - Saas $55,730.00 $19,821.00 $3,000.00 $78,551.00 $12,000.00 

On-Premise 

License Fees: License fees ($23,970) are invoiced as follows: (a) 25% on the Effective Date (signed contract); (b) 60% on the date the 

applicable software is made available to us for downloading; and (c.) 15% on the earlier of use of the software in live production or 180 days 

after the Available Download Date 

Maintenance and Support Fees: Year 1 maintenance and support fees are waived through the earlier of (a) availability of the Tyler Software for 

use in a live production environment; or (b) one (1) year from the Effective Date. 

Implementation and Other Professional Services: Implementation and other professional services are billed and invoiced as delivered, at the 

rates set forth in the Investment Summary. 

Sa as/ Cloud 

Saas Fees ($19,821) are invoiced on an annual basis, beginning on the commencement of the initial term. This is because they are providing 

and supporting a cloud environment from onset of implementation. 

Implementation and Other Professional Services: Implementation and other professional services are billed and invoiced as delivered, at the 

rates set forth in the Investment Summary 

Motion: That the Director be allowed to contract with Tyler Technologies for Governmental Accounting Services for an amount 

not to exceed $80,000.00. 

https://80,000.00
https://12,000.00
https://78,551.00
https://3,000.00
https://19,821.00
https://55,730.00
https://12,000.00
https://93,719.00
https://3,000.00
https://11,019.00
https://23,970.00
https://55,730.00


HERE 

EVERYONE IS WELCOME 
INCLUSIVE SPACE 

Enhance gathering spaces 
where people can be 

themselves, connect with 
one another, and have more 
access to diverse materials, 

programs, and services. 

tinyurl.com tadlP-lan2021 

Strategic Plan 2021- 2024 

Vision 

w.eare a forward-thinking 
and responsive hub that 
connects, supports, and 

strengthens our community. 

Core Values 

Diversity, Open Access 
Flexibility, Innovation 

Teamwork, Stewardship 

_-•'•._ TRAVERSE AREA 

·.,.· DISTRICT 
LIBRARY 

https://tinyurl.com


HERE HERE 

we Will THINK BIG 
INNOVATIVE 

ENGAGEMENT 
Excite and energize the 

community by expanding the 
idea of what a library can be 

and provide. 

tinyurl.com tadlP-lan2021 

Strategic Plan 2021-2024 

Vision 

We are a forward-thinking 
and responsive hub that 
connects,supports,and 

strengthens our community. 

Core Values 

Diversity, Open Access 
Flexibility, Innovation, 

Teamwork, Stewardship 

~TRAVERSE AREA

IUI DISTRICT 
LIBRARY 

https://tinyurl.com


I 

~ 

'I• _, 
~ ~ 

,,.~1,:1■~1,■~-:~
f•~,s -~- ~ BIR • ~ 

•••■--■••t■:1-11-1•=••··-
,~, ta ~~-l·••:~

' ~D I 

HERE 

we work TOGETHER 
PURPOSEFUL 

PARTNERSHIPS 
Enrich existing, and seek-out 

new relationships, that 
enhance and impact our 

quality of life. 

tinyurl.com tadlP.lan2021 

Strategic Plan 2021- 2024 

Vision 

We are aforward-thinking 
and responsive hub that 
connects,supports,and 

strengthens our community. 

Core Values 

Diversity, Open Access 
Flexibility, Innovation, 

Teamwork, Stewardship 

, , , TRAVERSE AREA 

:, , .:- DISTRICT 
I LIBRARY 

https://tinyurl.com


HERE 

we Will THINK BIG 
INNOVATIVE 

ENGAGEMEN,T 
Excite and energize the 

community by expanding the 
idea of what a library can be 

and provide. 

tinyurl.com tadlP-lan2021 

Strategic Plan 2021- 2024 

Vision 

We are a forward-thinking 
and responsive hub that 
connects,supports,and 

strengthens our community. 

Core Values 

Diversity, Open Access 
Flexibility, Innovation, 

Teamwork, Stewardship 
~TRAVERSE AREA

IUI DISTRICT 
z - LIBRARY 

https://tinyurl.com

	2021-09-16 Regular Board Meeting Packet - scan A
	2021-09-16 Regular Board Meeting Packet - scan B
	2021-09-16 Regular Board Meeting Packet - scan C



Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		2021-09-16 Regular Board Meeting Packet - scan.pdf




		Report created by: 

		

		Organization: 

		




[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found problems which may prevent the document from being fully accessible.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 1

		Passed: 26

		Failed: 3




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Failed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Failed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Failed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top
